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The Board is pleased to announce the annual results of the

Group for the Year.

During the Year, Hong Kong's economy was faced severe
challenges as weakened by the prolonged Sino-US trade
tensions and further struck by the persistent social unrests since
the second half of 2019 which pushed it to the first annual
recession in a decade. The announcement from the World
Health Organization to declare COVID-19 outbreak as a “public
health emergency of international concern” has further slowed

down Hong Kong's economy dramatically.

The Group continues to pursue a long-term business strategy of
diversifying into financial services business, along with the
construction machinery business. The Group is engaged in
rental of construction machinery; trading of construction
machinery, spare parts, and construction materials; provision of
machinery transportation, repair and maintenance services; and
provision of money lending, asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial services
during the Year.

For the construction machinery business, the economic
environment worldwide and local economy in Hong Kong are
full of uncertainties and challenges. The outbreak of COVID-19
since January 2020 and the subsequent quarantine measures
imposed by the Hong Kong government have had certain
impact on the Group's operation since January 2020. Some of
the projects has been delayed for several weeks to months.
Nevertheless, the Board believes that the demand for
construction machinery will return to normal in the second half
of 2020 since the progress of approved projects has been
behind schedule, and it is anticipated that the contractors

would be more focused to speed up the projects.

For the financial services business, the Group is confident in the
prospects of the financial markets in Hong Kong and the
Mainland China, and would like to increase the Group's
presence in the financial market by either organic growth or
working with reputable partners. During the Previous Year, the
Group has set up the first fund with Riverwood Asset
Management (Cayman) Limited with net assets under
management (“AUM") of USD86,947,770 as of 31 March 2020

DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT
EERES
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DIRECTOR'S STATEMENT
EERES

(2019: USD39,947,091) which aims to achieve long-term capital
appreciation by investing in listed and unlisted companies
located in Greater China or deriving a preponderant part of
their income and/or assets from Greater China, and will benefit
from China’'s economic growth. This allows the Group to earn
stable management and advisory fee income and performance

bonus, which is a new source of income to the Group.

During the Year, the Group's revenue increased by
approximately 9.0%, from approximately HK$176.5 million for
the Previous Year to approximately HK$192.4 million for the
Year. The increase was a result of the full year contribution from
the businesses of money lending, asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial services.
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company was
approximately HK$71.6 million for the Year, against the loss
attributable to the owners of the Company of approximately
HK$6.5 million for the Previous Year. Gross profit margin
increased from approximately 15.7% for the Previous Year to

approximately 33.0% for the Year.

Though facing challenges in business environment, the Group
will continue to take a proactive and prudent attitude to
manage and expand its financial services business by constantly
exploring new investment opportunities. With the on-going
investments by the Group, the Board believes that the Group is
in a more competitive position to seize new opportunities in the

coming years.

Last but not least, the Board would like to express its sincere
gratitude to the management of the Group and all the staff for
their hard work and dedication, as well as its shareholders,
business partners and other professional parties for their
support throughout the Year. The Group will continue to
explore a diversified business development model and enhance
its comprehensive strength to create satisfactory returns for our

investors.

Zhang Sheng
Vice Chairman

26 June 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET REVIEW

The economic environment worldwide and the local economy
in Hong Kong are full of uncertainties and challenges. Whilst
various infrastructure projects have been approved and have
commenced, the persistent social unrest and the outbreak of
COVID-19 have delayed the funding approvals procedures as
well as the original schedules of projects. According to the
2020-21 Budget Speech, the Hong Kong government will
continue to invest in infrastructure projects. In the next few
years, the annual capital works expenditure is expected to reach
HK$100 billion on average, and the total construction output
will increase to around HK$300 billion. Due to the
commencement of several large-scale infrastructure projects,
such as the Three Runway System of the Hong Kong
International Airport, Route 6 Development and the Tung
Chung New Town Extension, we would expect a stable growth
in the construction industry in Hong Kong. The Board believes
that the demand for construction machines will remain strong in
the coming years. The management will closely monitor the
rental and trading market of construction machinery business,
and ensure the continuous provision of high quality, reliable

and safe equipment to the construction market.

The financial market of Mainland China is experiencing internal
cyclical and structural adjustments and the domestic economy
in Hong Kong is uncertain with expectation over economic
slowdown and impact of the social conflicts. The Group
completed corporate restructuring and has acquired a new line
of business in financial services in the Previous Year and
expanded its money lending business in the Year. This
diversification in business has broadened the source of income
for the Group from the provision of financial services. With the
advantage of Hong Kong as an international financial center
and the continuing efforts of the government in enhancing our
financial market infrastructures and measures taken to boost the
competitiveness of Hong Kong as an international financial
center, the Board is optimistic with the future prospects in the
provision of financial services and will continue to expand the
Group's business network with the government, enterprises and
financial institutions as well as capabilities in providing

professional financial services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has cautiously managed its strategic development
plan and allocated efforts and resources to the business, namely
the construction machinery business, serving primarily the
construction sector in Hong Kong and the financial business.
During the Year, the Group's principal businesses included (i)
rental of construction machinery, such as crawler cranes, aerial
platforms and foundation equipment, and provision of repair
and maintenance services; (ii) trading of new or used
construction machinery, spare parts and construction materials;
(iii) provision of machinery transportation services; and (iv)
provision of money lending, asset management, securities

brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial services.

Rental of construction machinery and provision of repair
and maintenance services

The Group offered crawler cranes of different sizes, other
mobile cranes, aerial platforms and foundation equipment in its
rental fleet. For crawler cranes, the mix in the rental fleet ranged
from 2.9-tonne mini crawler cranes to 750-tonne massive crawler
cranes. The Group procured these construction machinery
mainly through the manufacturers of construction machinery
located in developed countries in Western Europe and
Northern Asia as well as traders of used construction machinery

around the world.

8 Annual Report F%f 2019/20
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Rental of construction machinery and provision of repair
and maintenance services (continued)

The Group has maintained over 200 units of construction
machinery in the rental fleet during the Year. Details of the
construction machinery carried by the Group which were

available for the rental operations are summarised as follows:

BERENWR D

KO (&)

EEMMEERRBHESCRRERK (B)

WA - AR B T SR 38 200 & R
W, - T ¢ o TR A 1 PR O R
FEEELIT :

As at 31 March

= HS R
2020 2019
= =i
Number in fleet Number in fleet
HEER e B
Crawler cranes and other mobile cranes BB E AR E) B 100 102
Aerial platforms FEETIES 85 85
Foundation equipment B R A 38 S
223 224

In order to maintain a modern fleet of construction machinery
with a greater variety of models, the Group has been replacing
portions of its fleet of construction machinery from time to time.
The Board will continue to monitor the daily operations and
review the expansion plan of the rental fleet and the capital
requirements of the Group regularly. The Group may
reschedule such expansion plan according to the operation and
needs, the preference of the target customers and prevailing
market conditions if necessary. The Group may also revise the
timing and financing arrangements for the purchase of
additional, and replacement of, existing construction machinery
if the market condition changes or other factors deemed

necessary.

REFE LI RIE AR SOE E R - AR
B-ETREREEE D RERN EFSRME
BEHERAREEU LR HEHE NIRRT
EIRAEENEAT R AEEKEAREER
FE BREPHREUMBRTHRA(NALE)
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RELERRBERERBROKRERRBE L
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Trading of construction machinery, spare parts and
construction materials

The Group was also engaged in the trading of new construction
machinery, spare parts and construction materials as well as
used construction machinery. To accommodate the needs of
different customers, the Group offered a wide range of
construction machinery including crawler cranes with lifting
capacity of up to 750 tonnes, aerial platforms and foundation
equipment. The Group entered into several dealership
arrangements with construction machinery manufacturers in
Europe, Japan and Korea. To satisfy customers’ needs, the
Group also sold spare parts to customers for maintenance
purposes or upon request.

Transportation services

The transportation services included local container delivery,
construction site delivery and heavy machinery transport.
According to customers’ requests, the Group arranged and
provided these services with various transportation vehicles and
equipment including 44-tonne heavy load trucks, 8-tonne to
25-tonne crane lorries, 20-feet to 40-feet trailers, and under
38-tonne trucks.

Provision of asset management, securities brokerage,
commodities, futures and other financial services

The Group provides a wide range of financial services, through
its subsidiaries which hold (i) SFC licences for conducting type 1
(dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts), type
4 (advising on securities) and type 9 (asset management)
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance;
(if) membership of the Insurance Authority authorised to offer
general insurance and long-term (including linked long-term)
insurance; and (iii) a money lenders licence, which allows the
Group to provide customers with personal or mortgaged loans
services. In April 2020, the Group formed an alliance with
Oshidori International Holdings Limited (stock code: 622) which
is expected to bring in synergy in sharing of expertise and
resources in the financial services industry to survive the
challenging year of Hong Kong. The Group believes that with
the regional advantages of Hong Kong as an international
financial center, the increasing capability of the Group to
provide diversified financial services offering and professional
services will bring significant business opportunities and long-
term stable income and steady growth to the Group.

10  Annual Report 42§ 2019/20

KO (&)

BREEW  BRATHREEYNEE

AEEMES2HEERN - BRTHREED
AR —FRESRWEE - REATREFNT
Z - AEEREMMNERNZEKN  BERE
BENSETSOMEH B B - TR TS M E
R AEBECEEUN - B AR B MZ LR
SUERERZTRKHL S - RRREPHFER
AEENAEFHEREATHHEE ZHNER
2RMEE -

E i R

EHREEREAMERERRY  HBELER
fRis R BRI MBS RIS - AEERERFEK
ZHASEERTERRBREFERY - 2
AAMEERENERE  SWEE 25 M EH - 20IRE 40
REZENISMELA TR EHEE -

RHEEERE BHEL BEm-
B AR

HERHEM

BRNFEEESERETES MNABGKIET
F1R(FHRH)  F2R(HEEHRS)  F4
BREFREER) RFIB(RHEEER)R
RERS (\REERRERBEER  BRE
feE-—RRBREBLEHR(BREAERMS) RRE
% RNHARBARRZMBLAR  AEEEF
N2 B RRYE - R sTPREMEARZR
BERRE R-T_TFHA ~EBEEEE
EERAR D E (RS - 622) f#ER R - A
EERRBEEXNBRERLZHEBERR
B EBFERMKBON—F - AEEMRE
BRBCEREBRTONEREY  AEEREH
Zc e BRS R EXRBGHEE N TEERE - #5
RAREHEREAARRRERELRA @ HEBHAX
SERER L -



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Provision of asset management, securities brokerage,

commodities, futures and other financial services

(continued)

During the Year, the net realised loss from securities investment

of financial assets at FVTPL was approximately HK$10.3 million
(2019: HK$NIl) and the unrealised fair value gain from financial
assets at FVTPL, comprising listed equity securities in Hong
Kong and an unlisted debt instrument, was approximately
HK$38.3 million (2019: approximately HK$17.9 million). Details
of the Group’s equity securities investments classified as

BERENWR D

KO (&)

RHEEEE BHFEL Bm
SRR ()

CHHERHEM

RAEE  UAFEFEAEE(FABEZZSE
MEEZEFREZBEEEEFEO5103H
EBET(ZT—NE: THT)  MARFEFE
ﬂﬁ """"" MEETABRSZ ERBEEZ AZR AFERK
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) c ERNEB D EAUATENE B EE bt

financial assets at FVTPL are set out as follows: ABERZ @MEEZRAZFREFBEEHINNAT
Percentage
Unrealised oftotal  Percentage
Number of fair value financial of total
shares  Percentage of gain for the assets at assets of
heldat shareholdings  Fairvalueat  yearended  Fair value at FVTPLat  the Group at
31 March  at 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2020 2020 2019 2020 2020 2020 2020
RZR-EF
=h=reH
EHATE
HES AR R-BCEF
“RCEF #LitA =A=t-H
R-BZBF R-B-2FE RZB-AF ZASt-B RSBSEE REER HAEE
ZA=t-B ZA=t-H =A=+-B LEEZ%S S=EciEH BE4R BE4R
FsRA%E ZBRAAN ZAVHE RAYERE ZAYHE ZADY ZAAY
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TR TiEn
Company Name/(Stock Code)
ARER/ (RORE)
China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited (412) 26,058,000 0.11% 114,376 2,345 9,773 7.53% 0.65%
TRELREEEREEERLR W)
CA Cultural Technology Group
Limited (1566) 35,890,000 3.90% - 31,224 107,670 82.93% 7.19%
ZEVHBREIBRAR (1560)
Unlisted debt instrument N/A N/A - 4739 12,383 9.54% 0.83%
FEmEHIA MER NER
114,376 38,308 129,826 100% 8.67%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Money lending services

In January 2020, the Group acquired the entire issued share
capital of Hao Tian Credit Company Limited (“Hao Tian
Credit”), a licensed money lender in Hong Kong, from a
subsidiary of Hao Tian Development Group Limited, the
controlling shareholder of the Company, and it is expected that
such acquisition would potentially enable the Group to increase
its scale in the money lending market, expand its network
coverage and customer base and will bring mortgaged loan
business opportunities and long-term stable income and steady
growth to the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overview

The Group provides a full range of financial services including
securities investment, securities brokerage, margin financing,
financial advisory and asset management. The total revenue
increased by approximately HK$15.9 million, or 9.0%, from
approximately HK$176.5 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$192.4 million for the Year. Such increase was
mainly attributable to full year contribution from the provision
of money lending, asset management, securities brokerage,

commodities, futures and other financial services for the Year.

The gross profit increased by approximately HK$35.8 million, or
129.2%, from approximately HK$27.7 million for the Previous
Year to approximately HK$63.5 million for the Year, whereas the
gross profit margin increased from approximately 15.7% for the
Previous Year to approximately 33.0% for the Year. The increase
in gross profit and gross profit margin was mainly due to gross
profit generated from the provision of money lending, asset
management, securities brokerage, commodities, futures and

other financial services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Rental of construction machinery and provision of repair
and maintenance services

The revenue from rental of construction machinery slightly
increased by approximately HK$2.8 million, or 2.6%, from
approximately HK$106.1 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$108.9 million for the Year.

The gross profit of construction machinery rental services
increased by approximately HK$3.1 million, or 25.6%, from
approximately HK$12.1 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$15.2 million for the Year. In addition, the
gross profit margin of construction machinery rental services
increased from approximately 11.4% for the Previous Year to
approximately 14.0% for the Year. The increase in gross profit
margin of construction machinery rental services was mainly due
to the decrease in sub-contracting fee and repair and

maintenance of machinery.

Trading of construction machinery, spare parts and
construction materials

The revenue from trading of construction machinery, spare
parts and construction materials decreased by approximately
HK$26.3 million, or 48.0%, from approximately HK$54.8 million
for the Previous Year to approximately HK$28.5 million for the
Year. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in
demand for replacement with brand new and environmentally
friendly construction machinery, the delay in the approval of
major infrastructure projects and the uncertainty in the overall

business environment of the construction industry.

For the trading of construction machinery, spare parts and
construction materials, the Group recorded a gross loss of
approximately HK$2.4 million for the Year, compared to a gross

profit of approximately HK$1.3 million for the Previous Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Trading of construction machinery, spare parts and
construction materials (continued)

The gross loss for trading of construction machinery, spare parts
and construction materials was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of (i) decrease in revenue from trading of
construction machinery, spare parts and construction materials;
and (ii) direct cost, including staff costs, remained at a similar
level as the Previous Year for the maintenance of the workforce

for operations.
Transportation services

The revenue from provision of transportation services decreased
by approximately HK$1.2 million, or 80.0%, from approximately
HK$1.5 million for the Previous Year to approximately HK$0.3

million for the Year.

Provision of money lending, asset management,
securities brokerage, commodities, futures and other
financial services

The revenue from our money lending, asset management,
securities brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial
services increased by approximately HK$40.6 million, or 287.9%,
from approximately HK$14.1 million for the Previous Year to
approximately HK$54.7 million for the Year. The gross profit
from our financial services increased by approximately HK$36.9
million, or 261.7%, from approximately HK$14.1 million for the
Previous Year to approximately HK$51.0 million for the Year.
The increase in revenue and gross profit was mainly attributable
to full year contribution from the provision of financial services
for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

The other income and gains increased by approximately
HK$54.0 million, or 216.9%, from approximately HK$24.9 million
for the Previous Year to approximately HK$78.9 million for the
Year. The increase was mainly due to a one-off gain from the
disposal of a subsidiary at approximately HK$32.2 million and
fair value gain on certain financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss of approximately HK$28.0 million.
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The administrative expenses increased by approximately
HK$24.0 million, or 53.0%, from approximately HK$45.3 million
for the Previous Year to approximately HK$69.3 million for the
Year. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly due to
the administrative expenses incurred in the money lending,
asset management, securities brokerage, commodities, futures

and other financial services segment.
FINANCE COSTS

The finance costs increased by approximately HK$6.8 million, or
87.2%, from approximately HK$7.8 million for the Previous Year
to approximately HK$14.6 million for the Year. The increase was
mainly due to the interest expenses incurred from the
convertible notes payable issued by the Company during the
Year. For details, please refer to note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The Group recorded a profit attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$71.6 million for the Year (2019:
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$6.5 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN®mR DN

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group had a solid financial position and continued to
maintain a strong and steady cash flow from operating activities.
During the Year, the Group's primary sources of funding
included cash generated from investing activities and the credit

facilities provided by the commercial banks in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had bank balances and cash
and pledged bank deposits of approximately HK$220.3 million
(2019: approximately HK$129.5 million) and approximately
HK$5.0 million (2019: approximately HK$4.7 million)

respectively.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total assets of
approximately HK$1,498.0 million (2019: approximately
HK$1,080.3 million), net current assets of approximately
HK$565.1 million (2019: approximately HK$362.1 million) and
net assets of approximately HK$988.6 million (2019:
approximately HK$766.8 million).

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's current assets and current
liabilities were approximately HK$815.0 million (2019:
approximately HK$574.0 million) and approximately HK$249.9
million (2019: approximately HK$211.9 million) respectively. The
Group's current ratio was 3.3 times as at 31 March 2020 (2019:

approximately 2.7 times).

The management believes that the Group's current bank
balances and cash, together with the credit facilities available
and the expected cash flow from operations, will be sufficient to

satisfy its current operational requirements.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GEARING RATIO AND INDEBTEDNESS

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing total debts (including
borrowings, loan from a director, amounts due to related
companies and a director and convertible notes payable) with
total equity and was approximately 39.3% as at 31 March 2020
(2019: approximately 32.9%). The increase was mainly due to the
issuance of convertible notes payable by the Company for the
acquisition of Hao Tian Credit, which is principally engaged in
money lending business.

As at 31 March 2020, the borrowings, loan from a director,
amounts due to related companies and a director and
convertible notes payable amounted to approximately
HK$388.5 million (2019: approximately HK$252.4 million) of
which approximately HK$183.6 million were repayable on
demand or within one year, approximately HK$56.8 million were
repayable in the second year; approximately HK$148.1 million
were repayable in the third to fifth year from the end of the
reporting period.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s borrowings and obligations
under finance leases are secured by (i) leasehold land and
building with net carrying amount of approximately HK$Nil
(2019: approximately HK$0.6 million); (ii) bank deposits of
approximately HK$5.0 million (2019: approximately HK$4.7
million); (iii) machinery and motor vehicles with net carrying
amount of approximately HK$175.8 million (2019: approximately
HK$148.4 million); and (iv) loan receivables of approximately
HK$78.0 million (2019: HK$Nil).

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

The total capital expenditure incurred for the Year was
approximately HK$71.3 million (2019: approximately HK$67.5
million), which was mainly used in the purchase of property,

plant and equipment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWR DM

INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's pledged bank deposits, finance lease receivables
and convertible notes payable bore fixed interest rates. The
Group's cash at bank balances are subject to floating interest
rates. The Group also had borrowings and loan from a director
which are subject to interests at fixed and floating interest rates.
Exposure to interest rate risk existed on those outstanding
balances subject to floating interest rate when there are
unexpected adverse interest rate movements. The Group's
policy was to manage its interest rate risk within an agreed
framework to ensure that there were no undue exposures to
significant interest rate movements and rates are approximately

fixed when necessary.
CURRENCY RISK

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with most of the
transactions denominated and settled in Hong Kong Dollars,
Japanese Yen (“JPY") and Euro (“EURQO"). The Group's
exposure to foreign currency risk primarily arose from certain
financial instruments including trade receivables, bank balances
and cash, trade payables, borrowings and obligation under
finance leases which were denominated in JPY, EURO, and
United States dollars. The Group did not adopt any hedging
strategy in the long run but the management continuously
monitored the foreign exchange risk exposure and might enter
into foreign exchange forward contracts on a case-by-case
basis. The Group has not used any hedging contracts to engage

in speculative activities.
CREDIT RISK AND LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management
approach towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a
healthy liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group
strived to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing
credit assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely
monitored the Group's liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group'’s assets, liabilities and other

commitments can meet its funding requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The capital commitments consisted primarily of acquisition of
subsidiaries and purchase of construction machinery for rental
purpose. As at 31 March 2020, the capital commitments
contracted but not provided for amounted to approximately
HK$11.4 million (2019: approximately HK$19.3 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group entered into
an investment agreement in respect of investment in a company
in PRC amounted to RMB10,000,000. The agreement was
subsequently cancelled after the end of the reporting period.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2019, the Group provided guarantees
amounting to approximately HK$10.2 million to the banks in
respect of obligations under finance leases and the Group's
obligations under contracts with certain third party customers.
Under the guarantees, the Group would be liable to make
payments to the banks if the Group failed to perform the
relevant obligations to these customers. As at 31 March 2019,
no provision for the Group's obligations under the guarantee
contracts has been made as the Directors of the Company
considered that it was not probable that the repayment of the
finance lease obligations were in default, and it was therefore

not probable that a claim would be made against the Group.

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN®mR DN

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 April 2020, the Company and Oshidori International
Holdings Limited (“Oshidori”) entered into the share swap
agreement, pursuant to which the Company agreed to issue
and allot 625,000,000 Shares under the general mandate to
Oshidori or its nominee(s) in exchange of the 187,500,000 shares
of Oshidori. All the conditions under the share swap agreement
have been fulfilled and the completion took place on 28 April
2020.

On 24 April 2020, the Company adopted a share award scheme
to (a) recognise the contributions by the participants and to
provide them with incentives in order to retain them; and (b)
attract the right talents for promoting the future development
and expansion of the Group with a view to achieving the
objective of enhancing the value of the Group by motivating
the participants to strive for the continuous operation and future
development and expansion of the Group and aligning the
interests of the participants and the Shareholders. The
maximum number of award shares may be granted under the
scheme is limited to 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of an

offer is made.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 128 staff (2019: 140). The
total staff costs incurred by the Group for the Year were
approximately HK$74.8 million (2019: approximately HK$58.9

million).

The Group generally recruited its employees from the open
market or by referral and entered into employment contracts
with its employees. The Group offered attractive remuneration
packages to the employees. In addition to salaries, the
employees would be entitled to bonuses taking into account
the performance of the Company and the relevant employees.
The Group made defined contributions to the Mandatory
Provident Fund as required under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) for the eligible employees.

The operation staff consisted of experienced machinery
operators and technicians. While there is high demand on such
talented personnel in the market, the Group managed to
maintain a relatively stable workforce by continuous recruitment
from the market or through referrals. New employees were
required to attend induction courses to ensure that they were
equipped with the necessary skills and knowledge to perform
their duties. In order to enhance overall efficiency, the Group
also offered technical trainings to existing employees on the
operation of more advanced construction machinery from time
to time. Selected operation staff were required to attend
external trainings which were conducted by the manufacturers
of the construction machines to acquire up-to-date technical

skills and knowledge on the products of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the

Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®R DN

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend
to shareholders of the Company for the Year.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Save as disclosed below, no material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries or significant investments were conducted by the
Group during the Year.

Disposal of listed securities

On 27 November 2019, the Group completed the disposal of an
aggregate of 300,000,000 shares in China Shandong Hi-Speed
Financial Group Limited (stock code: 412) at the sale price of
HK$0.25 per share for an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$75,000,000 (before transaction costs).

For details of the disposal, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 27 November 2019.

Acquisition of Hao Tian Credit

On 10 September 2019, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Hao Tian Finance Company Limited
to acquire the entire issued share capital of Hao Tian Credit at a
consideration of HK$213,000,000, which shall be satisfied in full
by the issue of the convertible notes in the principal amount of
HK$213,000,000 by the Company upon completion. Hao Tian
Credit is a licensed money lender under the Money Lenders
Ordinance (Cap. 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and is
principally engaged in money lending business in Hong Kong.
The acquisition of Hao Tian Credit constituted a major and
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Completion of the acquisition took place on 31 January 2020,
and Hao Tian Credit has become an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The fair value of the consideration
was determined to be HK$209,322,000.
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (continued)

Acquisition of Hao Tian Credit (continued)

For details of the acquisition of Hao Tian Credit, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 10 September 2019,
29 November 2019, 31 December 2019 and 31 January 2020
respectively, and the circular of the Company dated 27
December 2019.

Acquisition of fine arts for our new fund

On 12 July 2019, the Company as purchaser, Opulent Elite
Investments Limited ("Opulent Elite”) as seller and Chen Tingjia
as warrantor, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
pursuant to which the Company agreed to buy and Opulent
Elite agreed to sell a collection of six (6) sets of canvas and
paper painting art pieces (the “Fine Arts”) at a total
consideration of HK$80,000,000, which was satisfied in full by
the allotment and issue of 275,862,069 Shares to Opulent Elite
at the HK$0.29 per Share upon completion. The completion of
acquisition of the Fine Arts took place on 30 August 2019. The
fair value of the consideration was determined to be
HK$84,300,000. Immediately after completion, the Company
transferred the ownership in the Fine Arts by subscription in
kind to a fund in the form of a limited partnership registered in
the Cayman lIslands, whose general partner and limited partner
are indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company. The
Company intends to attract professional and/or institutional
investors to invest in the said fund, while continuing to provide

investment advisory services to the fund.

For details of the acquisition of the Fine Arts, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 12 July 2019 and 30
August 2019.

BEEEFNWRE DM
XK  HEREARE (8)

WERXEE(E)

EHAZREEREB . HE  F2HARRBHY
AMeE=—8—hFLA+H - A&+t H
ZHAAB - == e e
TFE—A=1t—HzZA%  URARARBHA=
T — . o me HSE =g

R EE WIREI M

RoT—h&E+A+-—H ARFHEAEH) -
HEREARAR (TG - ERET) KR
(ERREAN)FILEE W Bt 0 ARRRE
BEMMAREZLERNOARNREMTRER L2
Ziran ([ 24f7an]) - 44 {E /380,000,000 7T
R TR 8 1% 0.2978 7T 2 (B AR [A) o e A 3% K 2%
17275,862,069 BB D ZBBUELT - g EE R
—E-AFNA=THEK » KELAREEE
#384,300,0008 7T - EFEZEMKR * AARE AR
REREEMcARABEREZLAEBAES
EMRBEMERBMmz B  ZARARBD
EZEBERBARARER A BARRZMEE
2EMBAR - REBAERSIEXREER 3
BBREERELIES  Ye#BERESRM
RE AR

FREMmKE2FE  F2HARRABAHAZ
E-NFELA+ZBAER=ZZT-AFENA=THZ

s o

>

Annual Report 3 2019/20 23



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBEZE IR ELEHR AR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEREN WD

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (continued)

Disposal of a property holding company

On 1 March 2019, Crawler Krane Business Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the sale and
purchase agreement with Bravo Rich Limited, an independent
third party to dispose of (i) the entire issued share capital of
Chim Kee Crane Company Limited (“CKC") and (ii) the then
outstanding shareholder’s loan owing by CKC at an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$100,000,000. CKC was a property
holding company and its principal asset was a parcel of land

situated in Tai Tong, Yuen Long.

On 29 April 2019, the disposal of CKC was completed. CKC
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and the Company
ceased to have any interest in CKC. The Group recorded a net
book gain of approximately HK$32,168,000 from the disposal of
CKC, which was calculated with reference to the difference
between (a) the consideration and (b) the aggregate of (i) the
net book value of CKC; (ii) the amount of the shareholders’ loan;

and (iii) the estimated expenses in connection with the disposal
oiEKE

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 1 March 2019 and 29 April 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

In 2020, while continuing to take most of the advantage as
Hong Kong being a global financial center and the strong
support to the Company’s management team from government,
enterprises and financial institutions in Mainland China, the
Group would also ride the tide of “neo infrastructure”, intensify
government-enterprise cooperation, and establish industry-
guide funds and guarantee funds. Apart from those, the Group
would expect to participate in the opportunities created by the
development of digitised infrastructure such as 5G networks
and data centers in Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater
Bay Area and other regions in Mainland China with a vision to
propel the transformation, upgrade local traditional industries
and support the development of the local digital economy.

1

The Group will pursue the "investment bank + finance” two-
pronged approach and pinpoint business opportunities
emerged in the wake of the pandemic by leveraging on the
strength created from licenses for financial services the Group
holds and its management team’s extensive industry
experience. In addition, the Group will assist more domestic
enterprises in mergers and acquisitions business overseas, while
diversifying its financing system, expanding financing channels
abroad, optimising the debt structure and reducing financing

costs.

Meanwhile, as the Group fully supports the “Belt and Road”
initiative, the Group will acquire traditional financial institutions
with full licenses in those countries along the “Belt and Road”
regions through equity investment or takeover of the right of
operation by consolidating strong industrial support from
Shareholders and platform resources, and leveraging on which,
the Group could gradually extend its footprint to internet

finance, a rapidly developing economic sector.

In light of the above, in consideration to the Group's specified
development path and clear growth philosophy, it is expected
that both its business and revenue will keep achieving steady

growth in the foreseeable future.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBEFE

The biographical details of the Directors and the Senior
Management of the Group as at the date of this report are as

follows:
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Sheng (58 ), aged 50, was appointed as the vice
chairman of the board of directors and an executive director on
1 September 2019. Mr. Zhang holds a post-graduate degree.
He worked in various senior positions in Xiamen United Trust
Investment Company Limited (EFTEt & EEIREBREER
China Minsheng Bank and China Minsheng Investment
Corporation Limited (R BEIR £ &R KD B R A R]).

Mr. FOK Chi Tak (B&), aged 44, was appointed as an executive
director on 28 February 2017 and the co-chief executive officer
on 1 May 2020. Mr. Fok holds a master degree in Business
Administration from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. Fok
involves in the formulation of strategic plans for the business
development of the Group, fund raising activities and potential
merger and acquisition activities of the Group. Mr. Fok is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Fok is also a fellow member of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Mr. Fok currently serves as an
executive director and a chief financial officer of Hao Tian
Development Group Limited (Stock code: 474), the controlling
shareholder of the Company, whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. ZHENG Li (¥B¥), aged 33, was appointed as an executive
director and the chief executive officer on 1 September 2019
and was re-designated as the co-chief executive officer on 1
May 2020. Mr. Zheng was the executive director of China
Minsheng Financial Holding Corporation Limited ("CMFH")
(stock code: 0245) from July 2018 until August 2019 and acted
as the acting chief executive officer of CMFH from July 2018 to
May 2019. Prior to this, Mr. Zheng was employed by Minsheng
E-commerce Company Holding (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (REER
ZR% (&) B R 2 7)) and Minsheng Royal Fund Management
Co,td (RAE ML E & E 1 B R A 7l) where he took a
management role in investment and fund management. Mr.
Zheng served as the secretary to the Office of Board of
Directors of China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. (Stock Code:
01988) from August 2011 to November 2014. Mr. Zheng is the
founder and managing partner at Jiaxingjunli Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (F H E B & & & 1 B R 2 A) and
Jiaxingzeyu Investment Management Co., Ltd. (R EZFIREE
EEBRAF]). Mr. Zheng has obtained LL.M. (Master of laws) at
University of Chicago and is a doctorate candidate in Finance at

Renmin University of China.

Mr. TANG Yiu Chi James (B#8% ), aged 52, was appointed as
an executive director on 24 September 2014. Mr. Tang is
responsible for the overall strategic management and
development of the Group's business operations, marketing
and business development and finance and administration. Mr.
Tang was appointed as the director of Chim Kee Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in June
1989 and he took over the leadership of the Group in May 1994.
Mr. Tang has over 25 years of experience in the rental and
trading of construction machines. Mr. Tang obtained a Bachelor
of Science degree in aerospace engineering from the Syracuse

University and has been serving the Group since his graduation.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Dr. Zhiliang Ovu, JP, (Australia) (Bi7& %), aged 51, was appointed
as an executive director on 28 February 2017. Dr. Ou holds a
Doctor of Philosophy degree in Civil & Resource Engineering
from The University of Western Australia, Australia. Dr. Ou also
holds two Bachelor of Engineering degrees in Engineering
Management & Structural Engineering respectively. Dr. Ou has
over 30 years of professional engineering and management
experience in civil and industrial engineering areas both in
Australia and China, including residential and commercial high-
rise buildings as well as projects in oil & gas, mining and
infrastructure industries. Dr. Ou had been a senior staff member
in the world's leading energy & resource firms including Kellogg
Brown & Root (formerly known as KBR Halliburton),
WorleyParsons Pty Ltd., as well as Sedgman Ltd., which is
specialised in coal processing and handling plants. He was an
independent non-executive director of Rey Resources Limited (a
company listed on ASX focused on exploration and developing
energy resources in Australia). Dr. Ou participated in a number
of key energy and resource projects around the world such as
acting as the Lead Civil and Structural Engineer for BHP Billiton
RGP6 Jimblebar project; Rio Tinto iron ore Dove Siding
expansion project; Chevron Wheatstone Domgas LNG Pipeline
project; Yemen LNG Project (in the Republic of Yemen) and
Western Australia Dampier to Bunbury Natural Gas Pipeline
(Stage 5B) project, etc. Dr. Ou was also an officer at Western
Australia government agency from 2003 to 2006. In addition, Dr.
Ou has extensive experience and network in China. He was the
general manager and the chief engineer of Fujian Liming
Construction Company (f&#&& 2REAEE T2 A7) and deputy
general manager of Fuzhou Henli Real Estate Development Pty
Lid (BN = REMERZEBRAR]) from 1993 to 1997. He was
a guest professor for Inner Mongolia University (R 5 & K £)
and Inner Mongolia University of Science & Technology (A5 &
BHEAE) in China. Currently, Dr. Ou is an executive director of
Hao Tian Development Group Limited (stock code: 474), the
controlling shareholder of the Company, whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua (Z &%), aged 48, was appointed as
an independent non-executive director on 28 February 2017.
Mr. Lee is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lee has extensive experience
in the fields of auditing, accounting and finance. Mr. Lee
currently serves as an independent non-executive director of
China Fortune Investments (Holding) Limited (Stock code: 8116),
Code Agriculture (Holdings) Limited (Stock code: 8153) and
Cornerstone Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code: 8112)
respectively, whose shares are listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lee currently also serves as an independent non-
executive director of Hao Tian Development Group Limited
(Stock code: 474), Up Energy Development Group Limited
(Stock code: 307) and Fujian Nuogi Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 1353),
whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Mr. Lee was also an independent non-executive
director of Teamway International Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1239) from March 2015 to August 2017, and an
executive director of Link-Asia International Co. Ltd. (formerly
known as China Healthcare Enterprise Group Limited) (stock
code: 1143) from November 2015 to December 2019, both of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (EB%), aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 28 February 2017. Mr.
Mak graduated from the China University of Political Science
and Law with a Bachelor of Law degree in 1998. Mr. Mak is a
legal executive of Chiu, Szeto & Cheng, a firm of solicitors in
Hong Kong. Mr. Mak has been working in the legal industry for
over 30 years. Mr. Mak currently serves as an independent non-
executive director of Talent Property Group Limited (Stock
code: 760), Up Energy Development Group Limited (Stock
code: 307) and Fujian Nuogqi Co., Ltd. (Stock code: 1353), whose
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot (Z& &), aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director on 17 March 2017. Mr. Li is
the executive director of First Shanghai Securities Limited ("“First
Shanghai”). Prior to joining First Shanghai, he was the managing
director of South China Financial Holdings Limited (stock code:
619), whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Liis a
chartered wealth manager of the Chartered Wealth Manager
Institute and the director of the Hong Kong Association of
Online Brokers. Mr. Li has held various senior positions
including director of corporate development and vice president
of corporate planning and development in financial institutes
over his 15 years of experience in the financial industry. Mr. Li
has obtained a Bachelor of Arts Degree at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University and has obtained the Postgraduate
Certificate in Business Administration from University of

Leicester in England.
COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping (FRE ), was appointed as the company
secretary on 1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to
practise in Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of
Hong Kong. She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong.
Ms. Chan has many years of experience in advising on corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance,
regulatory and compliance matters. Prior to joining the
Company, she was the company secretary and general counsel
of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms. Chan has a bachelor of
laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from the
University of Hong Kong. She also has a master of corporate

finance degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Lau Chi Hang (2|%E #), aged 38, joined Hao Tian Finance
Company Limited as vice president on 2 February 2015 and was
appointed as General Manager in Hao Tian Credit Company
Limited since 1 October 2017. Mr. Lau graduated from
Benedictine College in USA with a Bachelor Degree in
Commerce. Mr. Lau has more than 10 years of experience in the
banking and financial sector. Before joining the Company, Mr.
Lau had worked in South China Financial Credit, Australia and
New Zealand Banking Group Limited, and Bank of China Credit
Card Center.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board are devoted to achieving and
maintaining high standard of corporate governance as the
Board believes that effective corporate governance practices
are fundamental in enhancing the shareholder value and
safeguarding the interests of the Shareholders and other
stakeholders. Accordingly, the Company has adopted sound
corporate governance principles that emphasise a quality
Board, effective internal control, stringent disclosure practices

and transparency and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has fully complied with the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “"CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, except for the
deviations from the CG Code as described below.

(i)  Under CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual in order to ensure that
there is clear division of responsibilities between the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive of the
Company. On 30 August 2019, the Company announced
that (i) Mr. Zhang Sheng (“Mr. Zhang") has been
appointed as the vice chairman of the Board with effect
from 1 September 2019; and (i) Mr. Zheng Li (“Mr. Zheng")
has been appointed as the chief executive officer of the
Company with effect from 1 September 2019 following the
resignation of Mr. Gao Zhangpeng, the former chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Zhang provides
leadership and is responsible for the effective functioning
and leadership of the Board and Mr. Zheng is responsible
for running the Group's business and effective
implementation of the strategies of the Group. Further,
Mr. Fok Chi Tak, an executive Director, was appointed as
the co-chief executive officer of the Company with effect
from 1 May 2020, alongside with Mr. Zheng.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (continued)

(i) The Nomination Committee was previously chaired by an
executive Director instead of an independent non-
executive Director. To enhance the corporate governance
of the Company, and in compliance with the CG Code
provision A.5.1. Mr. Mak Yiu Tong, an independent non-
executive Director, has been appointed as the chairman of
the Nomination Committee with effect from 1 September
2019.

The Group commits to continuously improve its corporate
governance practices by periodic review to ensure that the

Group continues to meet the requirements of the CG Code.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of
conduct of the Company regarding Directors’ transactions of
the listed securities of the Company. The Company has made
specific enquiry to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with the Model Code and its code of

conduct during the Year.
BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
Role and function

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the
business operations of the Group. It formulates strategic
directions, oversees the operations and monitors the financial
performance of the Group. The Management is delegated with
power and authority by the Board for the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group. The Management is

accountable to the Board for the Company'’s overall operation.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Role and function (continued)

The Board is responsible to the Shareholders for leadership and
control of the Group and is collectively responsible for
promoting the success of the Group by directing and
supervising the Group's affairs. The Board focuses on
formulating the Group's overall strategies, approving the annual
development plan and budget; monitoring financial and
operating performance; reviewing the effectiveness of the
internal control system and supervising and managing
management’s performance.

Regarding the Group's corporate governance, during the Year,
the Board has, in accordance with the terms of reference,
performed the following duties:

o determining and reviewing the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Group;

o reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

o reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices in compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

o developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct applicable to the Directors and employees; and

o reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Group to the Management.
The delegated functions were reviewed by the Board
periodically to ensure they remained appropriate to the needs
of the Group. The Board gave clear directions to the
Management as to the matters that must be approved by the
Board before decisions are made on behalf of the Group by the

Management.
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES

(continued)

Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

TEERHRE
ESRARRESEHA(E)

BYIFRITES -

Membership of Board Committee(s)
EEZEECRE

RABRERY  ESEERARATESR=A

Executive Directors:

HITES:

Mr. Zhang Sheng (Vice chairman)
SRR A (BIFEE)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak (Co-Chief executive officer)
ERmLA (BETHRAEE)

Mr. Zheng Li (Co-Chief executive officer)
BRIE e A (B 7T AB L)

Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James
MRS ot

Dr Zhiliang Ou, J.P.
BEseiEt - XML

Independent Non-executive Directors:
BYFHTES:

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua

TRERLE

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong

Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot
FEBAE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

FHEZEaX8

Member of the Nomination Committee

REZBEKE

Member of the Nomination Committee

REBEEEEKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

HEZBEKE

Chairman of the Audit Committee
BZEZESXE

Member of the Nomination Committee
RELZEEXE

Member of the Remuneration Committee

HMEE K E

Member of the Audit Committee
BEZZEEKE

Chairman of the Nomination Committee
RELZESXE

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

HEREEER

Member of the Audit Committee
BZZEEXE

Member of the Nomination Committee
RELZEEKE

Member of the Remuneration Committee
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Composition (continued)

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report,
there was no financial, business, family or other material/

relevant relationship among the members of the Board.
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company has complied with rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules. Throughout the Year, there were at least three
independent non-executive Directors on the Board and the
number of independent non-executive Directors represents
more than one- third of the Board. As such, there existed a
strong independent element in the Board, which could
effectively exercise independent judgement. The Company has
also complied with rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules which
stipulates that one of the independent non- executive Directors
must possess appropriate professional qualification or
accounting or related financial management expertise. In
compliance with the CG Code, the independent non- executive
Directors are expressly identified as such in all corporate

communications that disclose the names of the Directors.

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Group considers
all independent non-executive Directors to be independent

under the Listing Rules.

36 Annual Report F%f 2019/20

ESSHARESEER(E)

AR (E)

BRAFER [EEhREEBREFE] —&AHA
BEEN EFSSRE CHABEEAMG - %X
% KRS HMER FRBE -

BAFITES

RAE—EESF EMRANE3.1001) & 310A#H » 74
BREFE BEESELBE-RBUIERNTES
BBUFRTESIABEESTENE=S2—
LE-Bit - EFSEREBILN  sEBEL
B A o R QTINE ST LR RIE 310216 -
RMEHP—R2BUFNTESVEABEAEE
BRSNS EEY R EREENG - BETH
XERTH NEBREEUR B ARBAT -
ERRRERNB L IENITES D -

ARREEESBILIIFATESFRIELMRANE
SBEMEBYERL ZFEERE - AEER
RFABMIFRTESRE EMARRBEBILA
=



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Appointment and re-election of Directors

Each executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years unless terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party
on the other, and is subject to termination provisions therein
and provisions on retirement by rotation of Directors as set out
in the Memorandum and the Articles of Association. Each
independent non-executive Director had entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years which
will continue thereafter. During the tenure, the appointment
may be terminated by either party giving the other not less than

three months’ notice in writing.

Pursuant to paragraph A.4.2 of the Code Provisions, all Directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to re-
election by Shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. By virtue of Article 112 of the Articles of
Association, the Board shall have the power from time to time
and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy on the Board or as an additional Director. Any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office only until the first general meeting of the Company
after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such
meeting. Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be

eligible for re-election.

At each annual general meeting, at least one-third of the
Directors for the time being will retire from office by rotation.
However, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to but not less than one-third shall be
the number of retiring Directors. The Directors who shall retire
in each year will be those who have been longest in the office
since their last re-election or appointment but as between
persons who become or were last re-elected Directors on the
same day those to retire will (unless they otherwise agree

among themselves) be determined by lot.
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EERERRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES
(continued)

Supply of and access to information

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Company’s management to fulfill their duties, and upon
reasonable request, to seek independent professional advice
under appropriate circumstances and at the Company's
expenses. All Directors also have access to the company
secretary of the Company who is responsible for ensuring that
the Board procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations,
are followed. Board meetings are structured so as to encourage
open discussion, frank debate and active participation by
Directors in meetings. The Company provides the Board with
such information and explanations as are necessary to enable
Directors to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board. Queries raised by
Directors are answered fully and promptly. Meeting agenda
accompanied by relevant Board/committee papers are
distributed to the Directors/committee members with
reasonable notice in advance of the Board/committee meeting.
Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees,
which recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by
the Board and decisions reached thereat, including any
concerns raised or dissenting views expressed by any Director,
are kept by the company secretary of the Company and open
for inspection by the Directors.

Liability insurance for the Directors

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering
the liabilities in respect of any legal action which may be taken
against the Directors arising out of its corporate activities. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Directors’ continuing professional development program

All Directors confirmed that they had complied with code
provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during the Year. All Directors
had participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
has arranged for, and provided fund for, training in the form of
in-house training seminars or other appropriate courses during
the Year and relevant training materials have been distributed

to all the Directors.
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TEERHRE

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD PRACTICES EESARRESGER(B)
(continued)

Directors’ continuing professional development program EZEZHEEXXRTE(8)
(continued)

The Board meets regularly and, in addition to regular meetings, ZEZ=2TEHAFE@H  KRAISIN  INEEFKE
it meets as and when required by particular circumstances. REER A EeZH - RAFE SEHFE=S
During the Year, the Directors’ attendance of the Board/ € /ZE&&m 2 BRE0T

committees meetings is set out as follows:

Attendance/Number of meetings

HEEERE BTEHERR
Executive Audit  Nomination Remuneration General
Board  Committee = Committee ~ Committee  Committee meeting

E3® HZRE ENZAE R4ZRE FMZEE  RRA®

Total number of meetings BTeBERY 12 4 2 2 3 2
Executive Directors: HITES:
Mr. Zhang Sheng REE LA 6/8 02  NATER 0/0 0/1 112
Mr. Fok Chi Tak ESEAE 1212 44 N/ATER 22 N/ALNER 2/2
Mr. Zheng Li b 7/8 02 NATER NATER NATER 2/2
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James HREtE 12112 44 NATER NATER  NATER 2/2
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. BE=EL

At 1012 26 NATER  NATER 33 2/2

Independent Non-executive Directors: ~ BUFHTEE :

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa, Joshua FRERE 912  NATER 2/2 112 203 2/2
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong ERREE 1012 NATER 2/2 2/2 33 212
Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot FHA%E 112 N/ATER 22 212 33 22
BOARD COMMITTEES BEEZEE

The Board has established (i) Audit Committee, (ii) EEBSEKIZO)BZEZED : (VFHMEZES : Kii)
Remuneration Committee, and (iii) Nomination Committee with REZZE® ' WA TEBHEHE SE=ZEC
defined terms of reference. The terms of reference of each of ZEBEHEMARSEIENBEREFTER TR
the Board committees, which explain their respective roles and 5 Z#7) * & B E 6 E 7] O AR A 7] Bk 32 P8
the authority delegated to them by the Board, are available on W& - E2Z S @ RIEMHT B ERABITHE
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The & G WHEASBZKTASRBYEXRER NEHE
Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to  E1ER NEKEMIFE) - MEBRBA R ARIE °
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able

to seek independent professional advice and other assistance

under appropriate circumstances, at the Company'’s expense.
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EERERRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 23 October
2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraphs C.3 of the CG Code. During the Year and up to the
date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises three
independent non- executive Directors, namely Mr. Lee Chi Hwa
Joshua, Mr. Mak Yiu Tong and Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot. Mr. Lee
Chi Hwa Joshua is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other things,
to review and supervise the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group. It also acts as an important
link between the Board and the Company’s auditors in matters
within the scope of the group audit. Meetings shall be held at
least twice a year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year and up to the date of this report included:

(@) reviewing the audited accounts and final results
announcement for the Year and the interim report and the
interim results announcement for the six months ended 30
September 2019;

(b) reviewing the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and ensured compliance with the relevant
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other statutory
requirements;

(c) reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems;

(d) meeting with the auditors to go through any significant
audit issues or key findings noted during the audit of the
Group's final results for the Year and the unaudited interim
results for the six months ended 30 September 2019; and.

(e) reviewing its terms of reference and making
recommendations for amendments.

All issues raised by the Audit Committee have been addressed
by the Management. The work and findings of the Audit
Committee have been reported to the Board. During the Year,
there was no issue brought to the attention of the Management
and the Board which were of significant importance to require
disclosure in this annual report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23
October 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph B.1 of the CG Code. During the Year and up to the
date of this report, the Remuneration Committee comprises five
members, namely Mr. Zhang Sheng, Dr. Zhiliang Ou, Mr. Lee
Chi Hwa Joshua, Mr. Mak Yiu Tong and Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot.
Mr. Mak Tiu Tong is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee
are, amongst other things, to make recommendations to the
Board on the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and
other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management and on the Group’s policy and structure for all
remuneration of the Directors and senior management. No
individual Director was allowed to be involved in deciding his

own remuneration.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year included:

(@)  making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior

management remuneration;
(b) assessing performance of executive Directors;

(c) reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board's corporate goals
and objectives;

(d) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and senior management;

(e) making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

() considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the Company and its subsidiaries;
and

(9) ensuring that no Director or any of his associates is

involved in deciding his own remuneration.
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TEERRE

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ remunerations are determined by the Board with
reference to Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance
and the results of the Group. In addition, the Directors’
remuneration is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee of
the Company annually. Details of the Directors’ remuneration

are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.
REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

During the Year, the remuneration of senior management
(whose biographies are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in
this annual report), other than the Directors, is listed as below
by band:

EEHMH

EEFMIREESRBEES 2B  BEEER
BARAEEZ REETE ° I EFFHMEA
RAFHEZEEBFRN - EFHFMFEER
AP mARMES -

SREEASFMH

RAEE  BREFIHN SRERAB (HEEHRN
AERIEEREREREBEFE] —8) 2%
PHEsE ST

No. of person

A

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$1,000,000 and below

Further details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed under
Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in note 9 to the

consolidated financial statements.
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 23
October 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance with
paragraph A.5 of the CG Code. During the Year and up to the
date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises five
members, namely Mr. Zhang Sheng, Mr. Fok Chi Tak, Mr. Lee
Chi Hwa Joshua, Mr. Mak Yiu Tong and Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot.
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong has been appointed as the chairman of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 1 September 2019 and
at the same time Mr. Fok Chi Tak ceased to be the chairman
but remains as a member of the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on appointment of Directors

and succession planning for the Directors.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (continued)

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year and up to the date of this annual

report included:

(a)

(e)

reviewing and discussing the Board's structure, size and
composition, diversity as well as the competence, experience,
academic background and qualification of its members;

reviewing retirement of Directors by rotation, the re-
appointment of retiring Directors at annual general meetings;

assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

reviewing its terms of reference and making recommendations
for amendments; and

reviewing the board diversity policy and director nomination
policy of the Company and making relevant recommendations.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of
candidates from Board members for its consideration. The

Nomination Committee may also put forward candidates who
are not nominated by Board members. The factors in assessing

the suitability of a proposed candidate for director include:

business experience relevant and beneficial to the Company,
taking into account the need for diversity of the Board, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, knowledge, professional experience and skills
character and integrity

accomplishments in personal careers

independence

willingness to devote sufficient time to discharge duties as
a Board memboer,

and such other perspectives appropriate to the Company's
business. The Nomination Committee shall make
recommendations for the Board’s consideration and approval.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy. A summary
of such board diversity policy, the measureable objectives set
for implementing such board diversity policy, and the progress
of achieving those objectives are set out below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In
designing the Board’s composition, the diversity of the Board
has been considered from a number of aspects, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge. All
Board appointments will be based on merit, and candidates will
be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversified
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
potential contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the Board.

Monitoring

The Nomination Committee is responsible for monitoring
achievement of the measureable objectives as set out in the
board diversity policy.

Diversity of the Board

The existing board members are well experienced in the
construction industry, investment or finance businesses. Some
of them are professionals in project management, finance,
accounting or legal with extensive experience.

In view of the present scale and complexities of the Group's
operations and the nature of the risks and challenges it faces,
the Nomination Committee considers the Company has
achieved a right balance of skills, experience, knowledge and
diversity among the existing Board members.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy. The Board would
consider, inter alia, the following factors before declaring or

recommending dividend to the shareholders:

the Company'’s actual and expected financial performance;

o retained earnings and distributable reserves of the

Company;

e the level of the Company’s debts to equity ratio, return on

equity and the relevant financial covenants;

®  any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by any contract entered into by the Company or

its subsidiaries;

e the Company's expected working capital requirements

and future expansion plans;

° the general economic conditions, business cycle of the
Company and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance

and position of the Company; and
o any other factors that the Board may deem appropriate.

Any payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of the

Cayman Islands and the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy from time
to time and there can be no assurance that dividends will be

paid in any particular amount or at all for any given period.
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EERERRE

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group in
accordance with the statutory requirements and accounting
standards. The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities
to ensure that the financial statements for the Group are
published in a timely manner. The Management has provided
the Board with monthly updates and sufficient information for
the Board to develop and maintain a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The Directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the generally
accepted accounting principles in Hong Kong, which reflect
amounts that are based on the best estimates and reasonable,
informed and prudent judgment of the Board and management
with an appropriate consideration to materiality. The Directors,
having made appropriate enquires, confirm that they are not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s

ability to continue as a going concern.

The accounting systems and internal control of the Group are
designed to prevent any misappropriation of the Group's
assets, any unauthorised transactions as well as to ensure the
accuracy of the accounting records and the true and fairness of

the financial statements.

The Board also acknowledges its responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
Company’s annual and interim reports, other announcements
and other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules,
and reports to the regulators as well as to information required

to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report contained

in this annual report.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR’'S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged BDO Limited as its external auditor for
the Year. The Audit Committee has been notified of the nature
and the service charges of non-audit services for (i) the
procedures agreed upon in connection with interim results
announcement for the Year and (ii) the additional services in
connection to the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Hao
Tian Credit Company Limited and considered that these non-
audit services have no adverse effect on the independence of
the auditor. There was no disagreement between the Board
and the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor. Details of the
fees paid/payable to BDO Limited during the Year are as
follows:
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HK$
BT
Audit services* BT * 985,000
Non-audit services IEEZ AR 718,000
Total st 1,703,000
*Note:  The amount is included in auditor's remuneration disclosed in note 11 *Mi&t ©  ZL M ALA BERKRM 1 FIRE 2 G B
to the consolidated financial statements. Remaining auditor’s SR - RTREBEIHE A EMREE O EERB %
remuneration are audit fees to other auditors for statutory accounts. -
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS B R T % ph R Bk 4

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control and risk management system,
which is designed to provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement of management and
financial information and records or against financial losses or
fraud. The Group has in place an effective internal control
system which encompasses sound control environment,
appropriate segregation of duties, well defined policies and
procedures, close monitoring and is reviewed and enhanced by

the Management at regular intervals.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS R B T R R ERBE E (48)

(continued)

The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good ANEBEHAEFHFIIST RIFLEEAER LA
corporate governance practice and internal control system. The  ESiZ5I[E - AQRIEHE—EBBE B LA
Company has in place an integrated framework of internal &8 M [NEMEIRER B EIE — EALE | T
control which is consistent with the principles outlined in the & RAIZ4E NEPESIEESR - FFERBMMT -
“Internal Control and Risk Management — A Basic Framework”

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants as illustrated below:

Monitoring

Ex

Information and Communication

Control Activities

EEED

Risk Assessment

BB Al

Control Environment
BEEIRIE
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Ongoing assessment of control systems’ performance
FETHEEFEZRE
Internal audits performed by internal audit department

A AP R EBFTE T BT

Information in sufficient details is provided to the appropriate person in a
timely manner

LReEBEALTREZTSHZZER

Channels of communication across the Group and with customers, suppliers
and external parties

RUANEEANHARERS - HEBEUINLTZBBRE

Channels of communication for people to report any suspected improprieties
RIUAHBRERMARTETRZIBBRE

Policies and procedures for ensuring management directives are carried out
HIE AT RERAITERIES CBOR RIEF

Control activities include performance review, segregation of duties,
authorization, physical count, access control, documentation and records, etc.

ERRPREREM BEDT - K& - BYRE - FHEES - FE R

£

Identification, evaluation and assessment of the key risk factors affecting the
achievement of the Company's objectives are performed regularly

EHER - AENETEERARRE Rz T EZRRRAE

Undertake proper actions to manage the risks so identified

RERA B TR E R TR 2 B R

Channels to communicate the Company’s commitment to integrity and high
ethical standards to the staff are established

RIUKEME TEEARBBNERFHERGBERE

Organizational chart and limits of authority are set and communicated to staff
concerned

I E I A1 AERE B T (EE N R ZABE RER

Reporting lines in accordance with organizational chart and line of authority
are set

IR RIZRIE B N M B I T S 5
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
(continued)

The internal audit department is responsible for conducting
independent reviews of the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management system, reporting
regularly the results to the Board through the Audit Committee
and making recommendations to the relevant department
management for necessary actions.

During the Year, the internal audit department had conducted
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system
covering all material aspects related to financial, operational,
compliance controls, various functions for risk management and
physical and information security. Internal control reports
containing its findings and results were reported to the Audit
Committee during the Audit Committee meetings and had
been delivered to all Directors for review.

The Audit Committee had reported during the Audit
Committee meetings the key findings identified by the
Company's external auditors in respect of the Group's internal
controls and risk management and discussed findings and
actions or measures taken in addressing those findings. The
Company considers the internal control systems and risk
management are effective during the Year. No material issues
on the Group's internal control system and risk management
have been identified by the Group's internal audit department
and the Company’s external auditors during the reporting
period which required significant rectification measures.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Lai Ping was appointed as the company secretary on
1 February 2019. Ms. Chan is a solicitor qualified to practise the
laws of Hong Kong and a member of The Law Society of Hong
Kong. She is also a consultant of a law firm in Hong Kong. Ms.
Chan has many years of experience in advising on corporate
finance, mergers and acquisitions, corporate governance,
regulatory and compliance matters. Prior to joining the
Company, she was the company secretary and general counsel
of China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited, a
company whose shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 412). Ms. Chan has a bachelor of
laws degree and a postgraduate certificate in laws from the
University of Hong Kong. She also has a master of corporate
finance degree from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

During the Year, Ms. Chan has satisfied the requirement of the
Listing Rules for receiving 15 hours of professional training.
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EERERRE

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRIES MAY BE PUT
TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board by addressing them to the company secretary of the
Company, who is responsible for forwarding communications
relating to matters within the Board's direct responsibilities to
the Board and communications relating to ordinary business
matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the senior
management of the Company:

By post

Rooms 2510-2518, 25/F
Shui On Centre

6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai
Hong Kong

By email
jovey.chan@haotianhk.com

Shareholders may also directly raise questions during the
shareholders’ meetings.

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, the Board
may whenever it thinks fit to convene extraordinary general
meetings.

Extraordinary general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more Shareholders holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings.

Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company by mail at Rooms 2510-
2518, 25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within 2 months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING GENERAL
MEETINGS BY SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Shareholders shall follow Article 64 of the Articles of Association
for including a resolution at any general meeting. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the
paragraph headed "“Procedures for convening general meetings

by shareholders”.
COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support
from the Shareholders of the Company. The Company attaches
great priority to establish effective communication with its
Shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance such
communications, the Company provides information relating to
the Company and its business in its annual report and also
disseminates such information electronically through its website

at http://www.haotianint.com.hk

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an
important event as it provides an opportunity for direct
communication between the Board and its Shareholders. All
Directors, senior management and external auditors will make
every effort to attend the annual general meeting of the
Company to address Shareholders’ queries. All the
Shareholders of the Company are given at least twenty one (21)
days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual general
meeting of the Company. The Company supports the CG

Code's principle to encourage Shareholders’ participation.

The Board will review regularly the Group's operation and
corporate governance of the Company in order to ensure
compliance with the Articles of Association of the Company, the
laws of the Cayman Islands and to protect the interest of its

shareholders.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

There was no changes in the constitutional document of the
Company during the Year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

As at the date of this annual report, the Company is principally
engaged in the business of (a) provision of financial services and
related financial advisory services through subsidiaries licensed
to conduct (i) Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in
futures contracts), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities under the SFO; (ii)
money lending activities; and (iii) brokerage of general
insurance and long term (including linked long term) insurance;

and (b) rental and trading of construction machinery.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in

note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 84 to 85. No dividend was
paid or proposed by the Company during the Year, nor has any
dividend been proposed by the Directors since the end of the

Year.
BUSINESS REVIEW

The review of the business of the Group during the Year and
the discussion on the Group's future business development are
set out in the sections headed “Director’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, and the key financial
performance indicators are set out in the section headed,
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. The financial risk
management objectives and policies of the Group are set out in
note 40 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
discussions on the Group's relationships with key stakeholders,
environmental policies and performance and compliance with
relevant laws and regulations which have a significant impact on

the Group are as follows:
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)
Relationship with key stakeholders

The Group's success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise employees, customers and

subcontractors and suppliers.
Employees

Employees are regarded as important and valuable assets of
the Group. The objective of the Group’s human resource
management is to reward and recognise performing staff by
providing a competitive remuneration package and
implementing a sound performance appraisal system with
appropriate incentives, and to promote career development
and progression by appropriate training and providing

opportunities within the Group for career advancement.
Customers

The major customers include construction work companies
engaged in either public or private construction projects in
Hong Kong which require particular types of construction
machinery at different stages of their projects. We have
established long-term business relationship with some of the
customers for over 10 years. The sales and marketing team
maintains contacts with these customers regularly to understand
their needs and to provide relevant information to support their

projects.
Subcontractors and Suppliers

The major suppliers include manufacturers and service providers
of construction machinery, oil companies, and other third-party
service companies for maintenance, transportation and
assembly/disassembly services engaged by us. We proactively
communicate with the suppliers to ensure they are committed
to delivering high-quality and sustainable products and services.
We will select suppliers from the pre-approved lists of

subcontractors and suppliers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We believe that our business also depends on our ability to
meet our customers’ requirements in respect of safety, quality
and environmental aspects. To meet our customers’
requirements on safety, quality and environmental aspects, we
have established safety, quality and environmental management
systems. Through the systematic and effective control of our
operations, compliance with safety, quality and environmental
requirements can be further assured. Further discussions on the
Group's environmental policy and performance are covered by
a separate Environmental, Social and Governance Report which
will be available at the Group's website and the website of the
Stock Exchange on or before 30 September 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Based on the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company
has complied in all material respect with laws and regulations

that have a significant impact on the Company.
PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group identified and determined the major risks which may
affect the operation results and financial conditions of the
Group through risk management process, which includes the

following:

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money
lending business

As at 31 March 2020, the outstanding loan receivables of the
money lending business of the Group (net of impairment) was
approximately HK$363.1 million, representing approximately
24.2% of the total assets of the Company. Any delay or default
in payment of the loans will have an adverse impact on the
Company's working capital, cash flow and subsequently the

profits of the Company.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

Risk in delay or default of payment in the Group’s money
lending business (continued)

To manage such risk, the Company requires borrowers to
provide appropriate security and closely monitors the loan
receivable collection cycle from time to time to get full
collection of the outstanding amounts due from borrowers. The
Company will assess and decide to enforce the security
provided by borrowers or take legal actions as appropriate. All
exposures are subject to regular review and assessment for

possible impairment.
Compliance risk

The Group operates financial services business through
subsidiaries with appropriate licenses to conduct regulated
activities, insurance agency and money lending. During the
course of providing such financial services, the Group would be
exposed to compliance risk, including the risk of legal liability,
being subjected to regulatory proceedings, disciplinary action,
or loss of property or business reputation arising from violation
of laws, regulations and rules due to the operation and
management or practices of the Group or its personnel. In
order to effectively control compliance risk, the Group has put
in place a practicable compliance management system and
provided resources and support to develop lawful and

compliance operations of the Group.
Financial risk

The Group's diversified business is exposed to a variety of risks,
such as market risks, credit risk and liquidity risk. Further details
of the financial risk management objectives and policies are set

out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Company and of the Group during the Year are set out in

note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated

financial statements.
RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on page 89.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company had reserves amounted to
approximately HK$689.0 million available for distribution as
calculated based on Company's share premium, capital reserve,
convertible notes reserve and accumulated losses under
applicable provisions of the Companies Law in the Cayman

Islands.
GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 254.
This summary does not form part of the audited financial

statements.
DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the

date of this report were:
Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Sheng (Vice chairman)

Mr. Fok Chi Tak (Co-Chief executive officer)
Mr. Zheng Li (Co-Chief executive officer)
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James

Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P,, (Australia)
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DIRECTORS (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot

Information regarding directors’ emoluments are set out in note

9 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Directors’ biographical details are set out in the section
headed "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior

Management” in this report.

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an

annual general meeting at least once every three years.

Mr. Fok Chi Tak, Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot and Mr. Mak Yiu Tong
will retire from office as Directors at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company. The aforesaid Directors,

being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive Directors are

independent.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years unless
terminated by not less than three months’ notice in writing
served by either party on the other, and is subject to termination
provisions therein and provisions on retirement by rotation of
Directors as set out in the Memorandum and the Articles. Each
independent non-executive Director has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years which
shall be renewable by mutual agreement thereafter. During the
tenure, the appointment may be terminated by either party

giving the other not less than three months' notice in writing.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and
none of the Directors, or their spouses or children under the
age of 18, had any rights to subscribe for the securities of the

Company, or had exercised any such right during the Year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme and convertible notes
issued by the Company with details as respectively disclosed in
this report and notes 35 and 32 to the consolidated financial
statements, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Company that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company had registered an interest or short position in the
Shares or underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was
taken or deemed to have under provision of the SFO) or were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in
the register referred to therein or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2020, so far as is known to the Directors or chief
executive of the Company, the following persons (other than
Directors or chief executive of the Company), who had interests /\
or short positions in the Shares, the underlying Shares and [ &j
debentures of the Company and its associated corporation  H #
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within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO which were required & 7B T E @ HREFE %&Hﬂf ESUERIY S

to be disclosed pursuant to the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of

Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to

therein, were as follows:

AR AR GDIPTIE B M2 s

KR

Number of Percentage of

Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interest shares held shareholding
(Note 1)
BRERES BB B1ip Rmig EREE RET DL
(M$3E1)
Hao Tian Development Group Limited Interests of controlled corporation 3,735,933,259 84.37%
("HTD") (Note 2)
ERERSEFRAR S HE B R
(T2XRERE] (Mzk2)
Li Shao Yu (Note 3) Interests of controlled corporation 3,735,933,259 84.37%
ZLF(EE3) SEHEE RS
China Construction Bank Corporation Security interest 2,332,384,688 52.67%
("CCBC") (Note 4)
REREFIRITIRDBRAR ([FEZIT]) BRER
(MI5E4)
Opulent Elite Investments Limited Beneficial owner 275,862,069 6.23%
("Opulent Elite”)
WEIEBR AR ([#EE]) EnEAA
Chen Tingjia (Note 5) Interests of controlled corporation 275,862,069 6.23%

BR= 10 (M5 5)

60 Annual Report F%f 2019/20

EESEEE RS



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
(continued)

Notes:

1. The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 4,427,883,632
shares in issue as at 31 March 2020.

2. HTD was deemed to be interested in a total of 3,735,933,259 Shares
pursuant to the SFO, by virtue of its interests in (i) 2,388,944,688 Shares
held by Hao Tian Management (China) Limited; (ii) 775,560,000 Shares
held by Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong) Limited, each of which was
an indirect subsidiary of HTD; and (iii) 571,428,571 underlying Shares were
issuable under a convertible note issued by the Company.

3. Ms. Li was deemed to be interested in the 3,735,933,259 Shares or
underlying Shares pursuant to the SFO, by virtue of her interest in HTD.

4. CCBC, through Cheer Hope Holdings Limited, which is its indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary, held the security interest in those 2,332,384,688 Shares.

5. Ms. Chen Tingjia holds 100% of the issued share capital of Opulent Elite.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, the Company
had not been notified by any persons (other than Directors or
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to
be recorded in the register referred to therein.

SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME
Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme was adopted pursuant to
a resolution passed on 23 October 2015 for the purpose of
providing incentives or rewards to eligible persons who the
Board considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will
contribute to the Group. Under the Share Option Scheme, the
Board may grant options to eligible persons, including directors
of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe for the Shares.
Eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme, amongst others,
include any executives, any employee (including proposed, full-
time or part-time employee), a director or proposed director
(including an independent non- executive director), a direct or
indirect shareholder of any member of the Company and its
subsidiaries and an associate of any of the aforementioned
persons.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Board shall set out in the offer the terms on which the
option is to be granted. The maximum number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other schemes of the Company must not exceed 30% of the
Shares in issue from time to time. No options shall be granted
under the Share Option Scheme at any time if such grant shall
result in the scheme limit being exceeded.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the
Listing Date. The Company may seek approval of its
Shareholders in general meeting for refreshing such 10% limit.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each Eligible Person
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue for
the time. Any further grant of share options in excess of this
limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Any grant of options to any Director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder (as such term as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company, or any of their respective associates
under the Share Option Scheme is subject to the prior approval
of the independent non-executive Directors (excluding
independent non-executive Directors who or whose associates
is the grantee of an options). Where any grant of options to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director, or any of their respective associates, would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares in issue on
the date of such grant; and (ii) having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of
grant, in excess of HK$5.0 million, such further grant of the
options shall be subject to prior approval of the Shareholders
with such person and his associates abstaining from voting in
favour of general meeting.
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SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEME (continued)
Share Option Scheme (continued)

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. Options
granted shall be taken up upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration for the grant of option. Options may be exercised
at any time from the date which option is deemed to be granted
and accepted and expired on the date as the Board in its
absolute discretion determine and which shall not exceeding a
period of 10 years from the date on which the share options are
accepted but subject to the provisions for early termination
thereof contained in the Share Option Scheme.

The subscription price is determined by the Board, and shall not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of offer and (ii) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date. The
Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years commencing on 23 October 2015. No share options
were granted, forfeited or expired during the Year. As at the
date of this annual report, the total number of Shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 100,000,000
Shares, representing approximately 1.98% of the issued shares
of the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition of the entire equity interest in Hao Tian
Credit Company Limited and issue of convertible notes

On 10 September 2019, Hao Tian International Financial
Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company as the purchaser, Hao Tian Finance Company Limited
(“HTF"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of HTD as the vendor, and
the Company entered into the sales and purchase agreement in
relation to an acquisition of the entire issued share capital of
Hao Tian Credit at the total consideration of HK$213,000,000
which was satisfied in full by the issue of the 5.0% convertible
notes due 2023 in the aggregate principal amount of
HK$213,000,000 (the “Convertible Notes”) pursuant to the
specific mandate granted by the Shareholders to the Directors
at an extraordinary general meeting held on 17 January 2020.

HTD is an indirect controlling shareholder of the Company and
HTF is an associate of HTD, and HTF is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the acquisition of the entire equity interest in Hao Tian Credit
and the issue of the Convertible Notes constitute connected
transactions of the Company. Completion took place on 31
January 2020 whereupon Hao Tian Credit has become an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The fair value
of consideration was determined to be HK$209,322,000.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Grant of awarded shares to Connected Grantees under
the Share Award Scheme

On 24 April 2020, as part of the Group's initiatives to incentivize the
performance of its Directors, senior management and employees,
the Board resolved (1) to adopt a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme") whereby awards of Shares may be made by the
Board to eligible participants pursuant to the scheme rules; and (2)
to grant (i) 65,475,610 award shares to four grantees who are
connected persons of the Company, including one of the
executive Directors and three directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries (the “Connected Grantees”), to be issued under
specific mandate; and (i) 196,274,929 award shares to other non-
connected grantees (the “non-Connected Grantees”), to be issued
under the general mandate granted by the Shareholders to the
Directors to allot, issue and otherwise deal with new Shares at the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 18 September
2019. However, the Connected Grantees have not accepted the
relevant awards and the awards have been cancelled by the
Company accordingly. For further details of the Share Award
Scheme, the grant of the awarded shares and the cancellation of
the grant of award shares, please refer to the announcements of
the Company dated 24 April 2020 and 27 April 2020.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION

Licensing of office premises

On 31 December 2019, Glory Century Limited (as the licensor)
("Glory Century”) and Hao Tian Management (Hong Kong)
Limited (as the licensee) (“HTMHK"), an indirect subsidiary of
HTD, entered into a license agreement for the licensing of the
use of the premises located at Rooms 2501-2509, 25/F., Shui On
Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for a term
commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022, at a
monthly licence fee of approximately HK$258,000 for the first
year, HK$319,000 for the second year and HK$346,000 for the
third year (inclusive of management charges). The total licence
fee shall be subject to an annual cap of HK$3,336,000 for the
first year, HK$4,068,000 for the second year and HK$4,392,000
for the third year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
(continued)

Licensing of office premises (continued)

HTMHK is an indirect subsidiary of HTD and Glory Century is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. HTD is an
indirect controlling shareholder of the Company, and HTMHK is
therefore a connected person of the Company under the Listing
Rules. For further details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 31 December 2019.

The auditors of the Company have provided a letter to the Board
pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules confirming that, for the
Year, the continuing connected transaction (i) has received the
approval of the Board; (ii) has been entered into in accordance
with the terms of the agreements governing the transactions; (iii)
has not exceeded the caps disclosed in the relevant
announcements made by the Company and (iv) was in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group if the transaction involved

the provision of goods and services by the Group.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed
and confirmed that the above continuing connected transaction
has been entered into by the Group (a) in the ordinary and usual
course of its business; (b) on normal commercial terms; and (c) in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements governing
the above continuing connected transaction that are fair and

reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the Year set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements included transactions that constitute
connected/continuing connected transactions for which the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have been

complied with.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as those disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected
Transactions” “Continuing connected transaction” and in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance, to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the Management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the

Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year, none of the Directors or Hao Tian
Management (China) Limited and their respective associates
had any interests in a business, apart from the business of the
Group, which competes or may compete with the business of
the Group or has any other conflict of interest with the Group
which would be required to be disclosed under Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets or profits of the
Company against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or
incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or

otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ liability
insurance coverage for the Directors of the Company during the

Year.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group was
formulated by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence. The emolument of
the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company's operating results, individual

performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme as an
incentive to eligible persons, details are set out under heading

“Share Option Scheme” in this annual report.
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group's retirement benefit schemes are set out in

note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
or the laws of Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which
the Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing

shareholders.
MARKET CAPITALISATION

As at 31 March 2020, the market capitalisation of the listed
shares of the Company was approximately HK$1,098.1 million
based on the total number of 4,427,883,632 issued shares of the
Company and the closing price of HK$0.248 per share.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is public available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors, during
the Year, at least 25% of the Company's issued shares were held
by the public as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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EEERE

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s turnover and purchases
attributable to major customers and suppliers during the Year

and Previous Year are as follows:

FREFRHER

RAEEREF TEEPRHEREBIEAEE

EXRBARBRE2AILWT

For the year ended

BEUTHEHLEE
31 March 31 March
2020 2019
—B-8F _ZTNF
=A=+-8 ZA=+—F
Percentage of turnover: EXFERADL
From the largest customer RKERARF 15.8% 11.4%
From the five largest customers in aggregate B8 A AR P 7 448 33.3% 42.3%
Percentage of purchase: REBHEA DL
From the largest supplier KEmAHER 50.9% 42.3%
From the five largest suppliers in aggregate kB8 At fER ~ 425 72.7% 66.5%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholders
(which to the knowledge of the Directors who owned more than
5% of the Company'’s share capital) had any interest in the five

largest customers nor suppliers during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

On behalf of the Board
Zhang Sheng
Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited

Vice Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020
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IBDO

EEE - +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF HAO TIAN INTERNATIONAL
CONSTRUCTION INVESTMENT GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hao
Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out
on pages 84 to 253, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements” section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
"Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Impairment assessment of trade and loan receivables

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 3,
critical accounting judgements and estimates in note 4 and
disclosure of trade and loan receivables in note 21 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of trade and loan
receivables is approximately HK$423,293,000, after making loss
allowance of approximately HK68,279,000. It represents
approximately 28.3% of the total assets of the Group and is
considered quantitatively significant to the Group.

The Group's loss allowance on trade receivables from clients
arising from construction machinery business, cash clients and
other financial services is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime expected credit losses (“ECLs"), while loss allowance on
trade receivables from margin clients and loan receivables is
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs, unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognizes lifetime ECLs.
The estimated loss rates take into account the Group's historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to
the debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

We have identified impairment assessment of trade and loan
receivables as a significant risk due to considerable amount of
judgement and estimates being required in conducting
impairment assessment.

In assessing the rate of ECLs, the management may adopt a
number of assumptions, which are a matter of judgement and
could have a significant effect on the trade and loan receivables.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment assessment

of trade and loan receivables included the following:

e  Obtaining an understanding of and assessing the design,
implementation and operating effectiveness of key internal
controls relating to credit control, debt collection and the
calculation of the ECLs;

e  Assessing the trade and loan receivables ageing report by
group based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due by comparing the details of individual items
with underlying invoices and agreements on a sample

basis;

o Obtaining an understanding of the basis of management's
approach to measuring ECLs of trade and loan receivables
balances and assessing the reasonableness of
management'’s loss allowance estimates by examining the
information used by management to form such judgments,
including testing the accuracy of the historical default
data, evaluating whether the historical loss rate are
appropriately adjusted based on current economic

conditions and forward-looking information;

o Comparing cash receipts from debtors subsequent to the
financial year end relating to trade and loan receivables
balances at 31 March 2020 with bank statements and
relevant underlying document on a sample basis;

o Engaging an independent and qualified valuation
specialists to assist us in evaluating the methodology used
by company valuer in the preparation of the calculation of
the ECLs with reference to the requirements of the

prevailing accounting standards;

o Evaluating the completeness, capabilities and objectivity

of the independent professional valuer.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 3,
critical accounting estimates and judgements in note 4 and
disclosure of property, plant and equipment in note 14 to the

consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount after impairment of the Group's property,
plant and equipment as at 31 March 2020 amounted to
HK$269,119,000. No impairment loss in respect of the property,
plant and equipment was recognised during the year ended 31
March 2020.

Impairment assessments prepared by management are complex
and contain certain judgemental and subjective assumptions
which may be inherently uncertain and could be subject to

management bias.

Management performed an impairment assessment when
indicators of impairment were identified. Management
determined the recoverable amounts based on the higher of
fair value less costs of disposal and value in use, the Group
engaged an independent professional valuer to perform such
valuations. When performing an impairment assessment,
management used the value in use and compared the carrying
values of property, plant and equipment, to determine the

impairment loss which should be recognised for the year, if any.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment included the following:

o Understanding management'’s basis and assessment in
relation to the impairment assessment of property, plant

and equipment;

o Performing fixed assets count and attending fixed assets
inspection to identify the existence of any obsolete and
idle property, plant and equipment and the physical
conditions of property, plant and equipment;

o Inspecting, on a sample basis, historical disposal value to
sale invoices and preforming market research and analysis
to assess whether the estimated resale values of property,

plant and equipment was reasonable;

o Engaging an independent and qualified valuation
specialists to assist us in evaluating management’s
impairment assessment methodology, the key
assumptions applied, discount rate used and calculations
contained with reference to the requirements of the

prevailing accounting standards;

e  Evaluating the reasonableness of the budgeted revenue
and gross margin by considering the approved financial
budgets, the managements business, entity-specific

information, the available industry and market data;
o Re-performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs to
evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the

recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment;

U Comparing financial budgets used in the calculation of

value in use with actual results;

o Evaluating the completeness, capabilities and objectivity

of the independent professional valuer.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Assessing the net realisable value of art works included
in inventories

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 3,
critical accounting judgements and estimates in note 4 and
disclosure of art works included in inventories in note 20 to the

consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2020, the balance of art works was
HK$84,300,000.

Art works inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. The art works inventories have no active public
market. Due to the uniqueness and special nature of art works
inventories, management engages external art experts to assist
the management in assessing and evaluating the valuation of
art works inventories to determine their net realisable values at

the reporting date.

We identified the assessment of the net realisable value of art
works inventories as a key audit matter because the judgement
exercised in determining the net realisable value of art works
inventories, which can be inherently uncertain, and could have a

significant effect on the net realisable value of the inventories.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the net realisable value of

art works inventories included the following:

O assessing the external art experts’ experience,
qualifications and credentials by inspecting the Group's

records and information in the public domain;

e  obtaining the external valuation reports for art works
inventories as at 31 March 2020 and determine the net
realisable value based on the valuation amount of the art
works inventories and compare to the cost of the art works

inventories, on a sample basis;

e  obtaining an understanding of recent market trends for art
works inventories by inspecting recent auction prices and
other publicly available information and applying the
information obtained from the procedures above in

evaluation of the net realisable value of art works inventories;

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether there were any
losses or damage to art works inventories by attending the
inventory count with the assistance of the external art

experts;

o assessing the appropriateness and consistency of the use
of the valuation methodology with relevant accounting

requirements;

o engaging an independent and qualified auditor's expert
to assist in assessing the valuation, such as making
inquiries of company'’s art experts about the factors they
considered in their valuation methodology and assessing
the valuations by considering market trends, the key
factors and key assumptions considered by the company’s
art expert, recent market prices for similar art works

inventories, and assess its authenticity; and

e  evaluating the qualification, competence, capabilities and

objectivity of the company's art experts.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible
assets

Refer to summary of significant accounting policies in note 3,
critical accounting judgements and estimates in note 4 and
disclosure of goodwill and intangible assets in note 16 and 15

to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

The Group has goodwill of HK$42,064,000 net of impairment as
at 31 March 2020, which was allocated to the cash-generating
unit, representing licensed corporation and financial group
segment. An impairment of HK$4,353,000 was made during the
year ended 31 March 2020.

The Group also has intangible assets of HK$14,015,000 as at 31
March 2020, representing customer relationship and securities
brokerage licenses acquired through the acquisition of the Hao
Tian International Financial Holdings Limited during the
financial year ended 31 March 2019.

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets
are considered as a key audit matter due to its complexity and
significant judgement exercised by the Group’s management in
determining the recoverable amounts of cash generating units
("CGUs") where goodwill and other intangible assets have been

allocated.

In determining the amount of recoverable amounts of the
CGUs, the Group engaged an independent professional valuer
to perform such valuation. The value in use calculation applied
by the valuer is determined based on the cash flow projection
for the CGUs discounted to its present value and it requires the
use of key assumptions, including the discount rate, terminal
growth rate, budgeted revenue, and gross margin, taking into
account the financial budgets approved by the directors based
on the performance of the relevant business and also the

management’s expectations for the market development.
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38 3 B BT R 5

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Our response

Our procedures in relation to assess the impairment assessment

of goodwill and other intangible assets included the following:

e  understanding the Group's impairment testing process,
including the valuation model adopted, the CGU
allocation, assumptions used and the involvement of

independent valuer engaged by the Group;

e  evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity of

the independent professional valuer;

o engaging our independent and qualified valuation expert
to evaluate the appropriateness of the valuation model

adopted and discount rate used;

®  evaluating the reasonableness of the budgeted revenue
and gross margin by considering the approved financial
budgets, the managements business, entity-specific

information, the available industry and market data;

o re-performing sensitivity analysis on the key inputs to
evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the

recoverable amount of the CGUs; and
e  comparing financial budgets used in the calculation of

value in use with actual results for the annual assessment
of impairment as at 31 March 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
Company's annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to

cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the

directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial

statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism

throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control.

e  obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Group's internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by the directors.

e conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause

the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among

other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and

significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we

have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on

our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to

outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Wan Che Bun

Practising Certificate no. P05804

Hong Kong, 26 June 2020

R R

REMB BT REMBERAENEE
(%)

REEFZZBNEET - RAREWLFEREA
HEAaMBHRANBARSER - AMEKER
Bt EE - RPEZRBEIREPRAELEE
BIFERZERTAHAARBEELEE  HER
HELNBRAT RS EBHERMBET A
BREFERNEEERBEEENARME
BIVRE TEERS T EBZEH

BB CEESTMEBRERAT
HEDFAD

FFE

HEFBERIR + P05804

BE ZTFFAHZTRH

Annual Report %% 2019/20 83



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBEZE IR ELEHR AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEkEMAZEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—E-EF T NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Revenue WA 5 192,445 176,518
Cost of revenue I PNBEN (128,940) (148,779)
Gross profit EF 63,505 27,739
Other income, other gains and losses  E A A ~ E b lzs & E518 7 78,926 24,892
Administrative expenses THAX (69,283) (45,319)
Expected credit loss on financial assets 4 g4 & -~ & {2 B &8 (48,282) (11,560)
Share of an associate’s/joint ventures’ D{h—EEtE A &),/ A%
results S 57,200 5,453
Finance costs BE R AR 8 (14,639) (7,815)
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRI ADER,(EE) 67,427 (6,610)
Income tax credit FrigBiE e 10 4,190 153
Profit/(loss) for the year FRaH (EE) 71,617 (6,457)
Attributable to: AT A e, :
Owners of the Company RARBEEAA 71,624 (6,452)
Non-controlling interests SEFERR =S (7) (5)
71,617 (6,457)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEeEskAMEZEIRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
“B-BF _—_ThF
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
iz THERT Gl
Other comprehensive expense, HEm2mmsE - HRTHIE
net of tax
Items that may be reclassified HIER[REBF DR E B
subsequently to profit or loss: HE -
Exchange difference arising on MEGINEBEE
translation of foreign operation bE X ZERE (214) 7
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive  FR%F|,(E18) &
income for the year FHEW AR 11 71,403 (6,457)
Attributable to: AN AL -
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ 2SN 71,410 (6,452)
Non-controlling interests FEEA I 2 (7) (5)
71,403 (6,457)
Earnings/(loss) per share (HK cents) FIRARN(BEE)GE)
Basic and diluted (2019: basic) EANEE( T NF:
HIK) 13 1.66 (0.20)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M HARR R

At 31 March 2020 R=Z=ZTF=A=+—H

2020 2019
—B-FFE —TNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5T FH&T FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y B R & 14 269,119 243,860
Intangible assets B EE 15 14,015 16,419
Goodwill RS 16 42,064 46,417
Finance lease receivables RERE EWFIE 18 3,484 6,901
Loan receivables FElE T 19 77,365 16,046
Deferred tax assets TRIEFIIAE E 31 10,014 3,913
Pledged bank deposits PEARITER 24 5,000 4,654
Deposits for acquisition of property,  WEEW¥ - BMELERE S
plant and equipment 22 283 2,719
Investments in an associate/joint R—EEE NG, AEtE Y
ventures & 17 260,338 165,387
Other non-current assets HEuIEnsEE 22 1,345 -
683,027 506,316
Current assets RBEE
Inventories T8 20 86,344 1,716
Trade receivables B 5 KRIE 21 60,227 82,158
Other receivables, deposits and HAb R ERIE ~ 124 NFE I8
prepayments 22 4,128 4,500
Finance lease receivables R E T E e W EkIE 18 3,626 7,104
Loan receivables ElE 19 285,701 147,259
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries & [ Z i B A T F0IE 28 5,134 11,283
Financial assets at fair value through AT EE BHEEZ(LETA
profit or loss BRzemEE 23 129,826 114,376
Tax recoverable AT E A IR - 707
Bank balances, trust and R1THERR ~ ERERBENERP
segregated accounts 24 19,720 7,266
Bank balances and cash RITES LIRS 24 220,295 129,543
815,001 505,912
Assets classified as held for sales SEAFELEERE 25 = 68,086
Total current assets MENEERE 815,001 573,998
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M BARRR

At 31 March 2020 =2 = E - = =S a=l

2020 2019
—EEF —ZTNF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Nz FET FATT
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables B 5 EMNRIE 26 36,535 14,009
Accruals, deposits received and other JEztEMA 2 IS &
payables H At e IR 27 12,212 17,613
Contract liabilities BHERE 5 352 628
Amount due to a director EN—ZEERIE 28 1 7,434
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FEN R R B A R IE 28 5,232 5,034
Amount due to an intermediate A — FEI R R AR R B 508
holding company 28 300 4,290
Borrowings EE 29 148,104 108 1
Obligations under finance leases MEHEESET 30 - 4,153
Loan from a director RE—ZEZER 28 30,000 40,000
Tax payable eI IR 5,540 614
Lease liabilities HEaE 30 11,595 4
249,871 211,892
Liabilities directly associated with O ARENSEE
assets classified as held for sales BEEHBEZEBE 25 - 40
Total current liabilities nRBBEERE 249,871 211,932
Net current assets RBEEFE 565,130 362,066
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERREAERE 1,248,157 868,382
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e M HARR R

At 31 March 2020 R=Z=ZTF=A=+—H

2020 2019
—E-EF T NF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Nz TFET FA&T
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Borrowings EE 29 42,964 37,681
Obligations under finance leases MAERESF 30 = 5,704
Loan from a director KE—BEEZER 28 30,000 30,000
Deferred tax liabilities RIEBIEAE 31 26,402 28,236
Lease liabilities HEBE 30 28,290 -
Convertible notes payable JE S AT AR R AR B2 131,948 -
259,604 101,621
Net assets BEEFE 988,553 766,761
Equity R
Share capital R& 2 34 44,279 41,500
Reserves B 944,034 725,014
Equity attributable to owners of the RAGIHEE AR
Company 988,313 766,514
Non-controlling interests JEFERR R 240 247
Total equity FEZRBEE 988,553 766,761

The consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 253 were 84 E 253 AW AN BREREAEETSN
approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2020 and are ZT-_TF XA -+ ABHI A TIHEEAR

signed on its behalf by: ®E

FOK CHI TAK TANG YIU CHI JAMES
ETE e

DIRECTOR DIRECTOR

EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEDEER

e SR = [

Attributable to owners of the Company

At 31 March 2020 7%

FORERARL
Convertible  Share-based Accum- Non-
Share Share Capital notes  payments Merger  Translation ulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits  Subtotal interests Total
TARE  HRHRA
& RHEE  E4RG BRE  JERE  AORE  RERE  BhEA Mt FERER st
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TiEn TiEn T Tk T TEn AL Thn Thn AR ThR
(Note b) (Note a)
(PzFb) (BfzEa)
At April 2018 R=F-\¥BA-A 24,000 169,724 6,01 - - 1,000 - 140,520 341,535 252 341,781
Loss and total comprehensive EMBEERZERR

expense for the year a% - - - - = - - (6452 (645 (5) (6,457)
Issue of right shares (net of BRRA

direct attributable cost) (MRERERRA)

(Note 34() (B3t 3460) 12,000 166,981 - - - - - - 178,981 - 178,981
Issue of shares (Note 34(b)) BARG (HE 340)) 5,500 198,000 48950 = = = L = 252450 - 52450
At 31 March 2019 RZE-AF=B=1-H 41,500 534,705 55,241 - - 1,000 - 134,068 766,514 27 766,761
Inital application of HKFRS 16 NEERERIHRE

(Note 2.1(o) BRI 165 (3 2100)) = 5 = = - - - 2 2 - 2
Restated at 1 April 2019 R-E-NEMA-BET 41,500 534,705 55,241 - - 1,000 - 134,066 766,512 ] 766,759
Profit for the year - - - - - - - 7,624 7,624 0] et
Other comprehensive income - - - - - - (214) - (214) - (214)
Issue of consideration shares

(Note 34(c) 2759 82759 - - - - - - 85518 - 85,518
Share-based payments expenses - - - - 737 - - - 73] - 73]
Issue of emolument shares

(Note 34(d) 20 ni - - 13 - - - - - -
Issue of Convertiole Notes Al

(Note 32) (H3E32) - - - 64,13 - - - - 6413 - 6413
At 31 March 2020 R-Z-FF=f=1-A 44279 618,181 55,241 64,136 - 1,000 (214) 205690 988,313 240 988,553
Notes: ks

(a) The merger reserve represents the difference between the total equity of (a)
subsidiaries and the aggregated share capital of the relevant subsidiaries

arisen from a group reorganisation occurred in prior years.

(b) The capital reserve represents the deemed capital contribution from the (b)
Company'’s holding company in relation to listing expenses reimbursed to

=]

the Company and acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit HEBLGt ABRZ SREE

or loss in prior years.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #z=—=

= ElIES

2020 2019
—B-BF _—TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REXBERBSHERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit/(loss) before taxation BRERDER,(EE) 67,427 (6,610)
Adjustments for: /?JEL‘/\—FIE BEHAE
Change in fair value of financial assets AHEFFEREZ LA ABR
at fair value through profit or loss Z% MEEZ A FEE (28,036) (17,927)
Share of results of associate/joint ventures D {hEEE R F] AL EFLE (57,200) (5,453)
Share-based payments VAR 3245 3R 1,955
Interest income from bank deposits RITIFRZFE HﬁU\ (418) (48)
Finance lease interest income BMEMEE ZFEWA (378) (1,471)
Finance costs AEKZ 14,639 7,815
Gain on disposal and write-off of property, & RitEME - BE NRE
plant and equipment, net Z W EsHEE (71) (52)
Gain on early redemption of convertible He R IE O ATA IR R IR 2 Was
notes (653) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FERNEB AR e (32,168) -
Gain on bargain purchase arising from WiE—FHBRARMELEZEE
the acquisition of a subsidiary B8 W (18,301) -
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - B RS E
equipment 44,023 39,397
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EE 2,404 601
Compensation received from a customer ~ Bl —REFEE = (5,229)
Impairment loss of property, plant and M - BB RREREEE
equipment - 307
Impairment loss on goodwill EERERE 4,353 -
Expected credit losses on financial assets & RIEE 2 BHEEEIR 48,282 11,560
Operating profit before working capital LEESF AL E R
changes 45,858 22,890
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
—EB-8FE —ThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
(Increase)/decrease in bank balances, IRITHERR - ERERBILERP
trust and segregated accounts (), (12,454) 6,780
Increase in loan receivables JEUUE FRIE N (113,816) (160,131)
Decrease in finance lease receivables A S R IR 7,443 3,054
Decrease in inventories FERD 1,802 17,234
Decrease in trade receivables B 5 B IER A 15,060 30,775
Decrease in other receivables, deposits Hip el skis ~ me &
and prepayments TR FRIE R 300 2,548
Increase in other non-current assets HAuIEmB)EELL N (1,932) -
Decrease in amount due from fellow FEW R R M B A R IER D
subsidiaries 6,703 -
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables 5 RENFEE N, CRd) 22,526 (31,272)
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, deposits EEtEBH - BElWite &
received and other payables and HibERRIBAREGHBE
contract liabilities CRA),/#&m (7,649) 7,820
Cash used in operations EIERTRIRE (36,159) (100,302)
Income tax refunded, net RO THFE 32 1,286
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBFAARE RN
ACTIVITIES (36,127) (99,016)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EZBE _TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHREELAR
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE Y% - WE M&E (31,375) (47,525)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEREEBEMEHIEA
plant and equipment 236 820
Deposits paid for acquisition of property,  EEBW¥ MELRE ZCM:]E
plant and equipment (407) (2,719)
Acquisition of an associate W iE —FETHsE & A R (6,151) -
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits IR EEFRITER 4,654 -
Placement of pledged bank deposits FABERRITER (5,000) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets ~ HEAAFEEBEZ{LET A
at FVTPL BaRzemEEMSHKIE 97,176 -
Proceeds from disposal of shares of & —RNE QR G TS 5RIE
a subsidiary 100,000 -
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of WEE—fEMM B AR - FBRFTEAR S
cash acquired 36,972 (16,044)
Acquisition of joint ventures WhEaE % = (3,934)
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BANATEGFTEBEEZ(LEA
BazemBE (8,501) -
Bank interest received B WERITH R 418 21
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/(USED IN) R&EEBE (FTH)RLSHE
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 188,022 (69,431)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

e

For the year ended 31 March 2020 B &= —

BEREBR

Eema = He s SRE e

2020 2019
t g 222 E— N
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHL
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMETHRERETAR
ACTIVITIES
Interest paid ERFE (11,510) (6,465)
Proceeds from new borrowings MEEMERIE 59,766 28,459
Redemption of convertible notes payable  [& [0l &~ AT # IR 2 45 (13,000) -
Repayments of borrowings EEREE (66,000) (56,071)
Repayments of lease liabilities/obligation EREEaE RMEHERME
under finance leases (7,293) (4,236)
Advance (to)/from an intermediate company (42¥ ),/ K& —F'ﬁEP F‘ﬁ A28 (4,243) 20,837
Repayment to fellow subsidiaries BERRXMBER (1,392) (20,713)
Repayment to a director BE-—EZESEX (40,253) (16,943)
Loan from a director RE— %%%ZTM - 30,000
Advance from a director KE—ZBEZEXN 22,820 24,432
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares BT L RARPTSIA - 180,000
Expenses on right issue A% R X2 - (1,019)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM B &5EE) (FTH), FiSR &3
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (61,105) 178,281
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RERBEEEYBMFE
EQUIVALENTS 90,790 9,834
Effect of changes in exchange rate EXRE T8 (38) 3
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FEHEEREBELEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 129,543 119,709
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTSATEND HXRBEERREEEY
OF THE YEAR 220,295 129,543
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

1.

94

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman
Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law (2004 revision) Chapter 22 of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the its registered office
is Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, P.O. Box 1350, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1108 Cayman Islands and its principal place
of business in Hong Kong changes to Rooms 2510-2518,
25/F, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

The Company's immediate and ultimate holding company
is Hao Tian Management (China) Limited and Asia Link
Capital Investment Holdings Limited, which are
incorporated in Hong Kong and the British Virgin Islands,
respectively, and the ultimate controlling shareholder is
Ms. Li Shao Yu.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
Group is principally engaged in rental of construction
machinery, trading of construction machinery, spare parts
and construction materials, provision of machinery
transportation, repair and maintenance services and
provision of money lending, asset management, securities
brokerage, commodities, futures and other financial

services mainly in Hong Kong.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs")

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied for the first time the following
new and revised standards and interpretation (“new
and revised HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA")
which are effective for the Group’s financial year
beginning on or after 1 April 2019.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Amendments to

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Prepayment Features with

HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation

Amendments to Plan Amendments, Curtailment

HKAS 19 or Settlement

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
HKAS 28 and Joint Ventures

Annual Amendments to HKFRS 3,
Improvements Business Combinations;
to HKFRSs 2015-  HKFRS 11, Joint
2017 Cycle Arrangements; HKAS 12,

Income Taxes and HKAS 23,
Borrowing Costs

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases has
been summarised below. The other new or amended
HKFRSs that are effective from 1 April 2019 did not
have any significant impact on the Group's
accounting policies.

RMFATREETEEMBREER

([EBMBHREER )
21 ERHERETEEHBREE

Ll

AEBECERRA T AE LS
RE(HESMAE])FARM - XL
RAEB _T-NFMOA—-BHzZ®&
Fi6 < B F B A 2 #R] RAEER]
ZAIRRE(HIREERTBEME
WEEA]) -

BERBMERE ZiEh=
EBIEE 1657

B (BRI FERRE
HEREE T
B®)-RE
%2358

EEIERE  AABEE%
RAFI®Y  ENERE
3T

EEGER  HEET - BR
LWL REE

EHe Al RBEAFR
EBMEI T AMLEY

£ 1R

EBMBHE LR BEMBRS
— e R 35
“E—tFAR  [EBEAH] -
2 FEN# BEAMBHRE

ERIZE 1158
[G&E%HE] -
A ER
F125
[FriS i)
kEHET
RN ZE 2355
(BB
ZIEET

KRB BB REERFE 165 [HE ]
ZEEHRANT - BZF-NFOA
—BEAER HMHETHEETEL
M mEEAL EEARERFTERR
EREMERTE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

2.

96

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

R REERTE RV B RE LR
(TERMBREER ) (E)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued) 21 ERAFIT KRBT EAMEREE

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16, “Leases” replaces the previous standards
HKAS 17 “Leases” and effective for the current year
beginning on or after 1 April 2019. The Group has
applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the current

year.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the
leased asset is available for use by the Group. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability and
finance costs. The finance costs are charged to profit
or loss over the lease period so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-
use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the
asset's useful life and the lease term on a straight-

line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease

payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e  variable lease payments that are based on an

index or a rate;

®  amounts expected to be payable by the lessee

under residual value guarantees;

Annual Report § 3k 2019/20

RI(%&)
RMERMBRERNF 16K 2E

BEMBHREERIE 165 [HE] K
BEEMEFE S ERF 7R HE
Bl YR -_F-NFOA—-HZHARER
FIa 2 RFRER - AEEDRAF
EERERBBUBHRELF 1655 -

HEXMHEEEAHAKEEREA
BRREREEEIEBARE &8
ENBESEZABERBMENA - &
ERACEHENRNBRAR  UE
HEAEBER T ER 2 EHREEF
R FRBREEREERERFHE
M E R BeENIRERENE -

MEELCEERBEVZUARERE
HHE - HERERBETINEHENK
ZREFE

o  EEMK(BREEZREE MM

7 AR TR D
. HEREBAFEZARBEM
&

o FABEAREBRSEEREFREADSRE
2508



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BRAFFIIREETERPBREEA
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (TEBYBHEER D) (E)

("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued) 2.1

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

e  the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that

option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease,
if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the
incremental borrowing rate. Right-of-use assets are

measured at cost comprising the following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives

received;
° any initial direct costs; and
° restoration costs.
Payments associated with short-term leases are
recognised on a straight-line basis as expenses in

profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a
lease term of 12 months or less.

R RETERNBEREE
A (&)

EMERMBREEAF16R2E
(/&)

e BEHRZTEE(HAEAS
BEERITEARE) : &

o RILASE Z F (M B R BR A
MATTEZERE) -

HENREREREERNRRF - 7
RAGEZEREEEBE THIEAR :

s MHERBZMKTESRE:

o IR A M ZIEL 28
SN FRERT WEE S 228
o (EMFIEERRA : K

. EEmE-

W

B SRR 2 I RRERENER
BHERRMAX - EHEEEHRR12
BAATZHE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

2.

98

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

To ease the transition to HKFRS 16, the Group

applied the following recognition exemption and

practical expedients at the date of initial application
of HKFRS 16:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

the Group elected not to apply the
requirements of HKFRS 16 in respect of the
recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets to leases for which the remaining lease
term ends within 12 months from the date of
initial application of HKFRS 16, i.e. where the

lease term ends on or before 31 March 2020;

when measuring the lease liabilities at the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16, the Group
applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics
(such as leases with a similar remaining lease
term for a similar class of underlying asset in a

similar economic environment); and

when measuring the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 16, the
Group relied on the previous assessment for
onerous contract provisions as at 31 March 2019
as an alternative to perform an impairment

review.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

RMFATREETEEMBREER
(TEBMBREER ] (E)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued) 21 ERHT KRBT EENBREE

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

The Group has elected to apply its leases
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying HKFRS 16 recognised at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 16. Instead of restating
comparative information, the Group shall recognise
the cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS 16
as an adjustment to the opening balance of
accumulated profits at the date of initial application.
The comparative information presented in 2019 has
not been restated and continues to be reported
under HKAS 17 and related interpretations as
allowed by the transition provision in HKFRS 16.

(@) The following table reconciles the operating
lease commitments as lessee as disclosed
applying HKAS 17 as at 31 March 2019 to the
opening balance for lease liabilities recognised
as at 1 April 2019:

A (&)

EMERMBREEAF16R2E
(/&)

AREREBEYEAEEE TR
BEMBHRELERIFE 165 ERER A
HRRERNERTENEREELSE
16 RATE - AKETREIIL
RER  MERERERBTENBER
SEANF 1R R HEERAR/RE
RFER B Y RN BV ER 2 3R
BT NFETNLLBRERR
RED > WHREEBRBHMBHREER
FI6HBERNZRETRERZES
AHERE 7R MARERE T A2 -

() TREABER-_Z=-NF=H
=t HERBESENFE 17
SIERABRAZREHEAER
R-FE-NFHA—BERAZHE
SREMER UK -

HK$'000
FHET
Reconciliation of operating lease REHEREEBERRZHER
commitments to lease liabilities
Operating lease commitments at R-IB—WS=H= ==
31 March 2019 AR E R 960
Less: Short term leases for which lease B ER —E—ZTF =4
terms end within 31 March 2020 =t+—BAZBRZEES (880)
Less: future interest expenses B RRFEFRX ©)]
Add: obligations under finance leases B S s = JE| =5 — |8
recognised as at 31 March 2019 BRZBMEMHERE 9,857
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019 AT NFMA —HERZ
MEAE 795
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)
Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

(@) (Continued)

The weighted average of the lessees’
incremental borrowing rates applied to lease
liabilities by the relevant group entities
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 April 2019 is 4.56% per

annum.

The right-of-use assets in relation to leases
previously classified as operating leases have
been recognised as if HKFRS 16 had been
applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the lessee’s incremental

borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

The Group has also leased certain machinery
and motor vehicles which previously were
classified as finance leases under HKAS 17. As
the Group has elected to adopt the cumulative
effect method over the adoption of HKFRS 16,
for those finance leases under HKAS 17, the
right-of-use assets and the corresponding lease
liabilities at 1 April 2019 were the carrying
amount of the lease assets and lease liabilities
under HKAS 17 immediately before that date.
For those leases, the Group has accounted for
the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities
applying HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. BEMFFIRKEITERBUHBHREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS ([EBFEREER])(E)
("HKFRSs") (continued)
2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued) 21 ERHT KRBT EENBREE
B (&)
Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued) RABBUBREERF 16K 2HE
(%)
The following table summarised the impact of b) TREMLBEEFBUBRELE
transition to HKFRS 16 on the consolidated AE16RER_T—NEFE=H
statement of financial position as of 31 March =+t—BEZZ SN ATH
2019 to that of 1 April 2019: ZIRE M BIRRRPTER T E -
HKAS 17 HKFRS 16
Carrying Capitalisation Carrying
amount of operating amount
31 March lease 1 April
2019 Reclassification contracts 2019
BRUS
BREER HEER
F17HRREE F16RREE
—E-NF KeHg ZE-NE
= Hi=graH ENDE BREXRL mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TET TEL
Assets EE
ltems presented in % - BER
property, plant and REB25I AR ¢
equipment:
— Right-of-use assets — FREEEE = 12,267 5 12,342
— Machinery — 238,156 (10,576) : 227,580
— Motor Vehicle —E 1,758 (1,691) — 67
Liabilities a8f
Lease liabilities HEEE - 9,857 77 9934
Obligations under finance FEMEEE
leases 9,857 (9,857) - -
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2. RMFIIREBITEBUBREER
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (TEBYBHEER ] (E)

("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued) 21 ERHT /KRBT EMBEREE
B (&)
Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued) RMERYBREREAF16R2E
(&)
() The remaining contractual maturities of the () REBVBRELRE 165 2B
Group's lease liabilities at the date of transition ERH  AEEHSBEZHT

of HKFRS 16 are as follows:

BHEHBEMT

1 April 2019
—E-NFMA—H
Present
value of Total
the minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments

REEE REESE
NRBEE NRBE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FAET FET

Within 1 year —F R 4,199 4,526
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMEA 3,516 3,679
After 2 years but within 5 years MEREBERFA 2,219 2,260
9,934 10,465

Less: Total future interest expenses J& @ &R F| 8z 258 (531)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBBREAE 9,934
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (continued)

(continued)

After the initial recognition of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities as at 1 April 2019, the
Group as a lessee is required to recognise
interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liabilities, and the
depreciation of the right-of-use assets, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental
expenses incurred under operating leases on a
straight-line basis over the lease term. This
results in a negative impact on the reported
profit from operations in the Group's
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, as compared to
the results if HKAS 17 had been applied during
the year.

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
Group as a lessee is required to split rentals
paid under capitalised leases into their capital
element and interest element. These elements
are classified as financing cash outflows, similar
to how leases previously classified as finance
leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than
as operating cash outflows, as was the case for
operating leases under HKAS 17. The adoption
of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a change in
presentation of cash flows within the

consolidated statement of cash flows.

RMFATREETEEMBREER
(TEBMBREER ] (E)

R RETERNBEREE
A (&)

EMERMBREEAF16R2E
(/&)

© (&)

R-F—NFMA— B InRTER
EREEENHEERER A&
B (ERABRA) BRRREERE
e R B B B R IERT 2 M B R 2 2
ERREENE  MIFRERK
RREHNRBEREERLEEE
ERTEAZHEEMAX - BRR
FRERRAELSEEMNET7HRZ
RBRELE - LR BHAKELR
eEalEMEHKRERAZR
ZRRERNELAETE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The Interpretation supports the requirements of
HKAS 12, Income Taxes, by providing guidance over
how to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting

for income taxes.

Under the Interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach
better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The
entity shall also assume the tax authority will examine
amounts that it has a right to examine and have full
knowledge of all related information when making
those examinations. If the entity determines it is
probable that the tax authority will accept an
uncertain tax treatment, then the entity should
measure current and deferred tax in line with its tax
filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or
the “expected value” approach, whichever better

predicts the resolution of the uncertainty.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group has no

uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

RAFAT REIETERM B REEA
(TEBMBREER ] (E)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued) 21 ERHT KRBT EENBREE

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are

met — instead of at fair value through profit or loss.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any prepayment features with negative

compensation.

Amendments to HKAS 19 — Plan Amendments,
Curtailment or Settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a
company should use updated actuarial assumptions
to determine its current service cost and net interest
for the period. Additionally, the effect of the asset
ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or
loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with

separately in other comprehensive income.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not

have any defined benefit plan.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests
in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to
long-term interests (“LTI") in associates or joint
ventures which form part of the net investment in the
associates or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS
9 is applied to these LTI before the impairment
losses guidance within HKAS 28.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have long-term interests in associates or joint

ventures.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 3, Business
Combinations

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 3 which
clarifies that when a joint operator of a business
obtains control over a joint operation, this is a
business combination achieved in stages and the
previously held equity interest should therefore be

remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any transaction in which it obtains control over
a joint operation.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG 2.
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

RMFATREETEEMBREER
(TEBMBREER ] (E)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued) 21 ERHT KRBT EENBREE

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint
Arrangements

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11
which clarify that when a party that participates in,
but does not have joint control of, a joint operation
which is a business and subsequently obtains joint
control of the joint operation, the previously held
equity interest should not be remeasured to its
acquisition date fair value.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any transaction in which it obtains joint control
of the joint operation.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 12 which
clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
are recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit or
loss, other comprehensive income or directly in

equity.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as there were no
income tax consequences to the dividends
distributed by the Group during the year.
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2.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.1 Application of new/revised HKFRSs (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017
Cycle — Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing
Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 23 which
clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to obtain
a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after
the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended
use or sale would become part of the funds an entity
borrows generally and therefore included in the

general pool.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group does not
have any borrowing made specifically to obtain a

qualifying asset.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

2.2 New standards, interpretations and
amendments not yet effective

The following new standards, interpretations and
amendments, which are not yet effective and have
not been adopted early in these financial statements,
will or may have an effect on the Group's future
financial statements:

Amendments to Definition of Material’
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform’
HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

Amendments to Definition of a Business'
HKFRS 3

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets
HKFRS 10 between an Investor and its
and HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to COVID-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions*

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.

g The amendments were originally intended to be effective for
period beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The effective
date has now been deferred/removed. Early application of
the amendments continues to be permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group's accounting policies and
financial statements.

RMFATREETEEMBREER
(TERMBHREER ] (E)

2.2 EARERZHETER - RERET

PATS 1 R A R B 8 I 22 5 B 7S R
RATERA 2 #ET 2R~ B RAEFT#
SRAE ST EAEERRY MK

BEGER BRZEE'
F1HRK

BEgar £

FBIEZIERT

BRMBEHE  NEREERE
ERIZFE 95 -

BrEgar £

FEIHEREE

M5 EZER

ET7RZERT

BAUBRE FEHIER'
ZRIF 3

E&T

FEMBHRE FRREH?2
AERIZE 7 57

HEMBHRE REFEERE
ZAFE105 R ARHEEEE
BEERER HIZBEHE
F28HZIER] AR
BFEMKHRE  COVID-1948R
HAF 16z HeEE

fE&]
T RCTCoTFE-A-ASNRRERZEE
SR -
2 ROF-—F-A-BRNEMKZEE
LGES O

; BRETRIIN_Z—N\F—A—HzxkN
BHREZHEER ERAHREHE
BB - AR EIRATIESR o

4 R-ZF_ZTFRNA—BAHUEREZFE
HARR AR

AEBHREETXSHEMERE

TERAEE Y BHEERIHEE
HREAED -

Annual Report 3 2019/20 109



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBEZE IR ELEHR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs"”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for equity investments which have been measured
at fair value. Assets classified as held for sale are stated at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell as further explained in note 3. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure
purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 16 (since 1 April 2019) or HKAS
17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories”
or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which

are described as follows:

— Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the entity can access at the measurement date;

— Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

— Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset

or liability.
The principal accounting policies are set out below.
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is

achieved when the Company:
— has power over the investee;

—  has exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from

its involvement with the investee; and

— has the ability to use its power over the investee to

affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control

listed above.

3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the

Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit

balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting

policies in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on

consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are

generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair

value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee

Benefits respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date (see
the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations

are measured in accordance with that standard.
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3.

= ElIES

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount of
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or
at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a

transaction-by-transaction basis.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period, and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information
obtained about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the

amounts recognised at that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over

those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group's share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates are
eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is

included as part of the Group's investments in associates.

3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

=osEa = e o e

FEREFEHEE)

&§
I
o
i

RAR/AKEHEEEEARENNE
E TENEARSEREHRNYT
BEOR TE (B IR ) R K R I X F IR

i
kﬂl@ -:zb

Rias

o

.

AEBERBERR2RE NIEAKERERE
B EDAREFEERTAREBERES

BISHORRIIER - ANEBEEL S A IR
gEGMEMEERED FIFFAGZEEER
Hip 2EWERK - 19D - MERRBE QA

E’JT& SHER—IREE)  AAREENGRERE

D EPHREAEBEEMES (HER) - A
SEEHEBENRRERZMEENRBRK
@ REEAAREERBE AR 2R E RRY
8 MERARER B IREAMEEREERER
RN o WEHE N RIFFE LR BT ARASE
BN ERRZIERP —FD e

Annual Report 25 201920 115



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBEZE IR ELEHR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Joint arrangements

Investments in joint arrangements are classified as either
joint operations or joint ventures; depending on the
contractual rights and obligations each investor has rather
than the legal structure of the joint arrangement. For the
joint arrangements that specify that the parties to the joint
arrangements have rights to the assets and obligations to
the liabilities relating to the joint arrangements, they are
classified as joint operations. For the remaining joint

arrangements, they are classified as joint ventures.

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is
a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over
the relevant activities of the arrangement to the group and
at least one other party. Joint control is assessed under

the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as

either:

e  Joint ventures: where the group has rights to only

the net assets of the joint arrangement; or
e  Joint operations: where the group has both the
rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of

the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint

arrangements, the Group considers:
e  The structure of the joint arrangement;

e The legal form of joint arrangements structured

through a separate vehicle;

e  The contractual terms of the joint arrangement

agreement; and

e Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Joint arrangements (continued)

Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group's share of post-acquisition changes in the joint
ventures' net assets except that losses in excess of the
Group's interest in the joint venture are not recognised

unless there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits or losses arising on the transactions between the
Group and its joint ventures are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors' interests in the joint venture.
The investors’ share in the joint venture's profits and losses
resulting from these transactions is eliminated against the
carrying value of the joint venture. Where unrealised losses
provide evidence of impairment of the assets transferred

they are recognised immediately to profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint venture
above the fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired is
capitalised and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in joint venture. Where there is objective
evidence that the investment in a joint venture has been
impaired, the carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-financial

assets.

The Group's interests in joint ventures are stated at cost
less impairment losses, if any. Results of joint ventures are
accounted for by the Group on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, which
represent the lowest level at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes and not

larger than operating segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently there is indication
that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an
acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill has
been allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that reporting period. If the recoverable amount is less
than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill and
then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of

cash-generating units).
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction

of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of
the goods or service is transferred over time if the Group’s

performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer

controls as the Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains

control of the goods or service.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amounts receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer at
contract inception. Where the contract contains a
financing component which provides a significant
financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised under
that contract includes the interest expense accreted on
the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year
or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of rental machinery, machinery and spare parts

Customers obtain control of the machinery and spare
parts when the goods are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised at a point in time
basis upon when the customers accepted the machinery
and spare parts. There is generally only one performance

obligation.
Provision of transportation service

Revenue of transportation service is recognised over time
when the Group transfers control of the services over time,
based on the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be
provided, because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously. Transportation services are
generally provided within one day. There is generally only
one performance obligation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Provision of dealing and broking services on asset

management, securities, commodities and futures

Commission income generated from asset management,
securities brokerage, commodities and futures are
recorded as income on a trade date basis at a point in
time when the control of relevant contract notes or
services are transferred to customers. Control of the
promised goods or services are transferred to the
customer on completion of delivery of the goods or
services. There is generally only one performance

obligation.
Income from other financial services

Income from other financial services is satisfied over time
when the Group transfers control of the services over time,
based on the actual service provided to the end of the
reporting period as a proportion of the total services to be
provided, because the customer receives and uses the
benefits simultaneously. There is generally only one

performance obligation.
Repair and maintenance service income

Revenue of repair and maintenance services is recognised
over time when the Group transfers control of the services
over time, based on the actual service provided to the end
of the reporting period as a proportion of the total
services to be provided, because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously. Repair and
maintenance services are generally provided within one

day. There is generally only one performance obligation.
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis

over the lease terms.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources (continued)
Interest income generated from money lending

Interest income was generated from money lending
business of providing property mortgage loans, machinery
loans, personal loans and margin loans. Revenue
represents interest income earned from loans offered to

the Group's customers.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis using the
effective interest method by apply applicable interest rate
on (i) the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount less
loss allowance for credit-impaired financial assets) or (ii)
the gross carrying amount for non-credit impaired financial

assets.
Other income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the

dividend can be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &=

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing
on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical

cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in

which they arise.
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Borrowing costs which are not eligible for capitalisation to
qualifying assets are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit plans are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling

them to the contributions.
Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of

the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)

after deducting any amount already paid.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term
employee benefits are measured at the present value of
the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made
by the Group in respect of services provided by employees
up to the reporting date. Any changes in the liabilities
carrying amounts resulting from service cost, interest and
remeasurements are recognised in profit or loss except to
the extent that another HKFRS requires or permits their
inclusion in the cost of an asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax

currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit (loss) before
taxation’ as reported in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable and deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.
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= ElIES

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity

respectively.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

A.

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities, but accounting
policy choices exist for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases and/
or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-
value. The Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-value assets
and leases for which at the commencement date
have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been

expensed on straight-line basis over the lease term.
(i) Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at
cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less any
lease incentives received; (iii) any initial direct
costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in
dismantling and removing the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. The Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a
cost model. Under the cost model, the Group
measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of

lease liability.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

A. Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019) (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Right-of-use asset (continued)

The Group has leased a number of properties
under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises it judgement and determines that is
held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use
asset arising from the properties under tenancy

agreements are carried at depreciated cost.
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The
lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group's

incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the
lease are considered to be lease payments: (i)
fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement
date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by
the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv)
the exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

A. Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019) (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Lease liability (continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, the
Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments
made; and iii) remeasuring the carrying amount
to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease
payments arising from change in an index or
rate, a change in the lease term, a change in
the in-substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the

underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

As the accounting under HKFRS 16 for a lessor
is substantially unchanged from the
requirements under HKAS 17, the adoption of
HKFRS 16 does not have significant impact on

these financial statements.

The Group leases certain of its machineries
under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms less than 1 month to third-
party companies. Amounts due from lessees
under finance leases are recognised as
receivables at the amount of the Group's net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect

of the leases.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Leasing (accounting policies applied from 1
April 2019) (continued)

(ili) Accounting as a lessor (continued)

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the
term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
March 2019)

The Group as lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other

leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group's net investment in the leases. Finance lease
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the

leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised
on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and such costs
are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

B.

Leasing (accounting policies applied until 31
March 2019) (continued)

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception
of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability
to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease

obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance
expenses and reduction of the lease obligation so as
to achieve a constant rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability. Finance expenses
are recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in
which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's general policy on borrowing costs (see
the accounting policy above). Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they

are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

In the event that lease incentives are received to
enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental

expense on a straight-line basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as a
finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and

building element of the lease at initial recognition.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold

land is under finance lease.
Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. Such classification requires the asset or the
disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such asset or disposal group and its
sale is highly probable. Management must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification. Non-current assets as held for sale
are measured at the lower of their previous carrying

amount and fair value less costs of sell.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings and
leasehold lands (classified as finance lease) held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a

prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned

assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying

amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on its cost
less their residual values on a straight-line basis at the

following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and building over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 10 years or over the lease

terms, whichever is shorter

Machinery 10 years
Furniture and equipment 4-5 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which

is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as
intangible assets that are acquired separately. The assets’
estimated useful lives from the date they are available for

use as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years

Securities brokerage licenses Indefinite

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

(continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any
subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see the
accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below). Any conclusion that
the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is
reviewed annually to determine whether events and
circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted
for prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation of intangible

assets with finite lives as set out above.

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets
other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately

in profit or loss.
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined on a
weight average method (other than art works). Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and

costs necessary to make the sale.

Cost is valued on a specific identification basis for art
works. Art works are available for immediate sale. Ultimate
timing of the sale is hard to predict given the unique
nature of each art piece and the cyclicality of the global art

market.
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Provisions (continued)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into
account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash
flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows

(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
Financial Instruments
(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is initially
measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or
issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the

transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation

or convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of

principal and interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. There are three measurement categories

into which the Group classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets at
amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest rate method. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on

derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income:
Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, where the
assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Debt
investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income are subsequently measured
at fair value. Interest income calculated using the
effective interest rate method, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income. On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or

loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

0]

Financial assets (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"): Financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not solely payments of principal and interest
are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing
so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting

mismatch.

140 annal Report &% 2019/20

3.

FEREFEE(E)

$RTE(E)

(i)

EREE(B)

EXTH(E)

ARFEFEEHEBET AR

NP EFEREZ ARRE]:
RFEFEREZ(CHABRSEZSE E
BERRBEREEZEREE N1

(U/(

MR E AL AT E B A RS
At IR 2 & BOA B 38 I BRI

RPEFEZEREE - WEKETH
BEZBENREFEMEERERRE
AREeMEENBRFFEESR -

FNTETA(BREBRARNTELR)
WETRERHEFTA  TRITDRE
REFEE -BREREYFE/INM
RERFNBZEMEEDBRIARF

Bt BHEEE AEBT  MAHmE
¥pEAnM - BEFE LMBER

TEADBRREHK AN EIARFER
EREB(FIAREEEKSRE
EH T BAD A W4 HE SR B 46 2 B A
NP EFFEBEBE AR AR
R B ADERR R ERE R A SR EEEC ©



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group could irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the
investment's fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-by-
investment basis. Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income are measured
at fair value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the
investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as FVTPL, whereby changes
in fair value, dividends and interest income are

recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss ("ECL") on trade receivables, loan
receivables, other receivables and finance lease
receivables. The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (i) 12 months ECLs: these are the
ECLs that result from possible default events within
the 12 months after the reporting date; and (ii)
lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is exposed
to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Group expects to receive. The
shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to
the assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss allowances
for trade receivables from client arising from
construction machinery business, cash clients and
other financial services using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime
ECLs. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on the Group's historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables from margin clients and other
debt financial assets, the ECLs are based on the
12-months ECLs. However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime ECLs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and

including forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 90

days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full, without
recourse by the Group to actions such as realising
security (if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is

more than 90 days past due.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at

fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition

as at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for

trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss (continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if
the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a
group of financial liabilities which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains an
embedded derivative that would need to be

separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, with changes in fair value recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except
for the gains and losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other
comprehensive income with no subsequent
reclassification to the statement of profit or loss. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the statement
of profit or loss does not include any interest charged

on these financial liabilities.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade
and other payables, borrowings, certain preference
shares and the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
The related interest expense is recognised in profit

or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or
financial liability and of allocating interest income or
interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or

liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
Equity instruments

Equity instruments is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contact at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the loss allowance,
being the ECL provision measured in accordance
with principles of the accounting policy set out in
note 3; and (i) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKFRS
A

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is

discharged, cancelled or expires.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
(vii) Derecognition (continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments
to a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in
part as a result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are the
consideration paid and are recognised initially and
measured at their fair value on the date the financial
liability or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair
value of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is

recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised when a group entity becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Convertible notes

The component of the convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in the
statement of financial position, net of issue costs. The
corresponding dividends on those shares are charged as

interest expense in profit or loss.

On the issue of the convertible notes, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using a market rate for a
similar note that does not have a conversion option; and
this amount is carried as a long-term liability on the
amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or

redemption.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial Instruments (continued)
Convertible notes (continued)

The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included in the
convertible notes reserve within shareholders’ equity, net
of issue costs. The value of the conversion option carried
in equity is not changed in subsequent years. When the
conversion option is exercised, the balance of the
convertible notes reserve is transferred to share capital or
other appropriate reserve. When the conversion option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
remained in the convertible notes reserve is transferred to
accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit

or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Issue costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible notes based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity
components when the instruments are first recognised.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components

in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The value of any derivative features (such as a call option)
embedded in a compound financial instrument other than
its equity component (such as an equity conversion option)
is included in the liability component. The sum of the
carrying amounts assigned to the liability and equity
components on initial recognition is always equal to the
fair value that would be ascribed to the instrument as a
whole. No gain or loss arises from initially recognising the

components of the instrument separately.

FEREFEHEE)

$RTE(E)
THRRERE(E)

PSR HR Y I E R T AR R EsR
N A R AR R R B AR - B R FORR 3T
B - RIERDIBR 2 i 2 BENERSF
ETE - EMBRREEITER - AR
BLEBEERERALEMEEFHE - 3
BRI BB IDARITER - ATARRIRG
R BHEEREREN - REEER
B ER T g R B R A R k&8 -

BITATIRBEE AERARKRERZ8E
RS RAERESEEZELA 2L
Bl DEEERMRES 2 BBERERSD
BATAI AR IR AR 7 2 2 5 B AN IR TS RKI8
St REEBRERE D °

BMAER SR T APBRER D (flmEs
) LMI\EI’JEHMEI&%E&( Bl anR S
HigE) MEBEEFARBED - VRERED
EZRERERIDORMEARMAKLIES
RIABBREZEEZAVE - TR EFER
TAMATEELEAKAAEE -

Annual Report %8 201920 149



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBEZE IR ELEHR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Emolument shares

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-
settled share-based payments is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest,
with a corresponding increase in equity.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimate of the number of equity instruments expected to
vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered
to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

150 Annual Report 425 2019/20

FEETHEGE)

LRSEEURBTEANRR S
RBRH

E’\LA%&;,%”MHX{%%E&H XX AR

EHELAEi?/QiEAEm%HHF?%EAZKE
1&.:%#%?”3 BEBoEmTAXE BRI
FERELE AN -

REREIR - AREESTRANRE (&
sHEE T AMA - BT RA K ZFE(n
B)RBRETRR - S R H L RBE T
fhit o

BRI & A wt

ERAMEIMMRMANEE SRR - A
NAEEARTAE S B EMBRREENE
ER B BEREEELDHE - A5 RRR - 4
BB R RIIREE LR MR SEEN
HiRAEFH - ERERAIEEINZERE
&t e

fhat RABEERRDRFEEERE - HEF
ETRERTERZ BB R - RIRMER] AR
At IR R R FER]  HETFEER
FORRHEARE - RIS TME AT 23 SR o 4 e e

Qb\ﬂg:{ IZIT

AT REBARNEZERARREE IR
MEF TARRERNEMER R - thER

TAMAZAGEARBREH T MK
iVWE’JﬁF‘&ET FHEHREAFE -



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or
liabilities affected in the future.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements:

Judgements in determining the accounting policy for
the acquisition of Hao Tian Credit

Note 44 describes the acquisition of Hao Tian Credit
Company Limited from Hao Tian Development (the
"Acquisition”) by using acquisition method in accordance
with HKFRS 3. The Acquisition requires judgement by the
directors of the Company in determining the appropriate
accounting policy to apply with.

In making their judgement, the directors of the Company
consider the detailed criteria for acquisition method set
out in HKFRS 3 and in particular, whether the Acquisition

has adequate business substance.

With a view to continuously developing financial services
businesses in Hong Kong, the Acquisition allowed the
Group to increase its scale in the financial service and
money lending sectors. This will potentially increase the
Group's revenue and enhance the Group's financial

performance.

4,

REE R (8)
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND 4. BRSTHER MG (E)

ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.
Impairment of financial assets

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade
receivables, loan receivables, finance lease receivables
and other receivables by assessing the ECLs. This requires
the use of estimates and judgements. ECLs are based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, and an assessment
of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of reporting period. Where the
estimation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts of accounts
receivable and thus the impairment loss in the period in

which such estimate is changed.

1 52 Annual Report F%f 2019/20

CRENLESES

AT R/BBERARNEBZRZARRHRE IR
MfEET TR RN EMERRIR - HER
RETABRRABERRREH T — K
FEANEERABERDELREAHE -

TREERME

AEBEBFHEREEBRMGETEZRK
PR BWER - BEHERKSRREA
FEWR IR 2 B iR - ML BFZER G
KAE - BREEBRAAEEBEEERS
BEBRAEE  YREBEEBAREREAK
WEBARE LI BB EEL R
- Mzt ARNRRE G - AR
FERKERZEEE  YEAMPEZGT
SEN IR 2 RERE -



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Management judgment is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
such as any assets have become obsolete or idle, has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of
an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal or value
in use which is estimated based upon the continue use of
the asset in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key
assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections. Changing the judgment and estimations
adopted by management in assessing impairment,
including the estimated resale values with reference to the
historical disposal values or second-hand market price of
the assets and the estimated future cash flows generating
from the property, plant and equipment with reference to
the historical and expected rental income from leasing for
assets in use, could affect the recoverable amounts used
in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group's
financial position and results of operations. As at 31 March
2020, the carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is approximately HK$269,119,000 (2019:
HK$243,860,000). In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, as the carrying value of the property, plant and
equipment is higher than the recoverable amount,
HK$307,000 impairment loss has been provided during the
year ended 31 March 2019. No impairment loss has been
provided during the year ended 31 March 2020.

4,

REE R (8)
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Impairment of goodwill

In impairment testing, the Group determines the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which
the assets belong. Determining whether impairment needs
to be provided requires an estimation of future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash generating units. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the cash
generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or a change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of future

cash flows, a material impairment loss may arise.
Impairment of intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amount of the intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that they have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the intangible assets are estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if

any.

Assessing the net realisable value of art works
included in inventories

Valuation of art works is subjective and the net realisable
value fluctuates over time. Management relies on the
valuation opinion of specialists who consider a number of
factors including (i) recent transactions for comparable art
works; and (i) supply and demand and current economic
environment. Due to the subjectivity involved in estimating
the net realisable value, if the artwork market deteriorates
and the overall economic condition were to deteriorate,

actual write-offs would be higher than estimated.
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5. REVENUE 5.0 K
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WADHTIT -
2020 2019
“B-%F T NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Revenue from contract with customers: ~ EF /A ZHA -
Sale of machinery and spare parts HEWW KEA T 25,100 46,163
Sale of rental machinery S EFH E e 3,389 8,597
Transportation service income B RS 364 1,549
Repair and maintenance service income 4 {& R ARE RRIFULA 8,527 7,991
Commission income generated from BEEHE JIFLLe mak
asset management, securities HEEF 2ASBANRR
brokerage, commodities, futures E 5w AR TS 2 WA
and income from other financial
services 15,236 1,305
Revenue from other sources: B HIRZ HA -
Rental income from leasing KEHEWMW 2 HEWA
of machinery 81,897 78,033
Rental income from sub-leasing R B A 2 S WA
of machinery 18,478 20,076
Interest income generated from money  FUEEAE Z K U A
lending 36,054 12,804
Interest income from margin financing REREBEBCBE ZHERKA 3,400 -
192,445 176,518
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5. REVENUE (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

(i) Disaggregated revenue information

For the year ended 31 March 2020

5. WA(E)

EFEEHZBA

(i)

DEBAER

BE—S-—FF-FA=1—HIFE

Provision of
asset
management,
securities
brokerage,
Trading of commodities,
construction Provision of futures
machinery repair and Provision of and other
and maintenance transportation financial
Segments spare parts service services services Total
Rt
EEEE -
BEBMR Bm 85
BERSH REBER Rt REAM
28 HE RERK ERRY SRR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT THER TET TERT
Sale of machinery HERMLERTH
and spare parts 25,100 - - - 25,100
Sale of rental machinery HERERM 3,389 - - - 3,389
Transportation service EHRBBA
income - - 364 - 364
Repair and maintenance BB RRERBIA
service income - 8,527 - - 8,527
Commission income BEER  EHFLRE -
generated from asset BmkHEELZAE
management, securities WA R E At 2 PR 7%
brokerage, commodities, ZHA
futures and income from
other financial services - - - 15,236 15,236
Total revenue from EERHZHBRA
contract with customers 28,489 8,527 364 15,236 52,616
Geographical markets B WS
Hong Kong E 24,392 7,961 364 15,236 47,953
Macau b 4,097 566 - - 4,663
Total revenue from contract ~ EF AN ZBKA
with customers 28,489 8,527 364 15,236 52,616
Timing of revenue recognition W AR
At a point in time RE—BREZE 28,489 - - 10,768 39,257
Over time (A - 8,527 364 4,468 13,359
Total revenue from contract ~ EF QM 2BKA
with customers 28,489 8,527 364 15,236 52,616
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5. REVENUE (continued) 5. WA(E)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EEEHNZWA(E)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (continued) (i) DEWAEBRE)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 HZE_E—NWF=A=1+—HILFE
Provision of
asset
management,
Trading of securities
construction brokerage,
machinery, commodities,
spare parts Provision of futures
and repair and Provision of and other
construction maintenance transportation financial
Segments materials service services services Total
e
BEER .
BRATHR o 8
BEME REEER e R
D HE RERE B8RS SEMRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THT THIT T
Sale of machinery and spare parts & R EREH 46,163 = 4 & 46,163
Sale of rental machinery SHERE 8,597 = = < 8,597
Transportation service income  iB#fRISUA = = 1,549 E 1,549
Repair and maintenance service  #18 RIRERBUA
income - 7,91 - - 7,991
Commission income generated ~ AEEIE « FHLL »
from asset management, AmkBEEE 2 AE
securities brokerage, WA LA R E A & B AR
commodities, futures and ZWA
income from other financial
services - - - 1,305 1,305
Total revenue from contract ~ EF AN ZAKA
with customers 54,760 7,991 1,549 1,305 65,605
Geographical markets BT
Hong Kong 90 54,680 7,451 1,528 1,305 64,964
Macau ] 80 540 21 = 641
Total revenue from contract ~ EF AN ZAKA
with customers 54,760 7,991 1,549 1,305 65,605
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5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

Contract liabilities

The contract liabilities represented the aggregate
amount of the transaction price allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of
the end of the reporting period. The Group expects
the transaction price allocated to the unsatisfied
performance obligations will be recognised as
revenue when the Group transfers goods to

customers.

Contract liabilities include short-term advances
received to deliver machinery and spare parts. The
decrease in contract liabilities as at 31 March 2020
was mainly due to the decrease in short-term
advances received from customers in relation to the
sales of machinery and spare parts at the end of the

year.

LN

BEFEHNZBA(E)

(ii)

BHAE

BNEBEREIEEEEREHRER
ERBHBEZRHERRARE - A%
EEMOEERRERBHELT 2R
HEBRHRAKREBEERTEFRK
FER AN

BNEBERRBRARNEM L ERTH
MWEZ EHRBR - R T T F=
A=+—8 AHEERIETEZAR
FRMHERM S BREMMAETP
WER 2 FE R B A

2020 2019
—ER-EF —ZT-NHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Balance at 1 April R A—Hz &8 628 1,951
Decrease in contract liabilities as AFEANERERFEVETAEG L
a result of recognising revenue BEZWAMEHRESLNEE
during the year that was included NoRAn
in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (276) (1,951)
Increase in the contract liabilities as a K $5E i G AT IR Al 45 & & 2
result of billing in advance of BHEEEN
sales of goods - 628
Balance at 31 March R=R=+—HB &% 352 628
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5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(iii)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance

obligations is summarised below:
Sale of machinery and spare parts

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery

of the machinery and spare parts.
Sale of rental machinery

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery

of the rental machinery.
Transportation service income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
when the Group transfers control of the services over
time, based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion of the
total services to be provided, because the customer
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.
Transportation services are generally provided within
one day. There is generally only one performance
obligation.

5. WAE)

EFEHNZBA(E)

(iii)

RHEE

BRAREROEEZEMBRANT

HERMR EHEH

NEERRAEREERZTHRE

o

31 sl

HEHEHMH

BHORER RN HERMESETT

EHRERA

BHEENANEERBREER RS
28 1) 4 B B B ) 1T B 7T 30 DA ¥R 5 H
R ERIRB A8 TIREZ AR
BZUPIREE  RASEFRKE
BREMANED - EHRBAFTNR —X
miEft - BERA-HBHNEME -
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5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(iii)

Performance obligations
Repair and maintenance service income

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
when the Group transfers control of the services over
time, based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion of the
total services to be provided, because the customer
receives and uses the benefits simultaneously. Repair
and maintenance services are generally provided
within one day. There is generally only one

performance obligation.

Commission income generated from asset
management, securities brokerage, commodities
and futures

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when the execution of purchases, sales or other
transaction or services by the Group on behalf of its

clients at an agreed rate.
Income from other financial services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
when the Group transfers control of the services over
time, based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion of the
total services to be provided, because the customer

receives and uses the benefits simultaneously.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DEER

Information reported to the chief executive officer, being o BB IR AT 4 5 EB IR i M7 B AR £k (B
the chief operating decision maker (“"CODM"), for the FELBRREAEEEERRALD) 2
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of ZEMETEAEBZXBBIL -

segment performance focuses on the nature of the

operations of the Group.

Specifically, the Group's reportable and operating BREmE  REDSHBEREERFSHE

segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows: REBZ A HMERKEDEWAT :

Trading of construction machinery and spare parts — sale of crawler cranes, aerial platforms and
foundation equipment

REMW L ERTHIEE B i - FHiE TIES IR EHE

Rental of construction machinery and provision of — rent of cranes, aerial platforms and foundation

repair and maintenance services equipment and provision of repair and

maintenance service for the machinery rented

S NIR M 1S RRE IR HEMW - AR TES R E R AR LHEEMMRE
e RIRE RS
Provision of transportation services — provision of transportation service including local

container delivery, site construction delivery and
heavy machinery delivery

R E SR RS REERRT - SRS EEERRE - HBREEE
a1 AR 75 K B B M AR 3 i AR 745

Provision of money lending, asset management, — provision of property mortgage loans, machinery
securities brokerage, commodities, futures and loans and personal loans service, asset
other financial services management, securities brokerage, commodities

and futures service

RERE BEEE RBHrEL Bm- HEREM REHEMERBER  BRERREAERRS - BE

T B ARTS B - BHLRL  BmMlHERS

No segment assets and liabilities are presented as the HAREFEEERARALBEEHAEHIHEE
CODM does not regularly review segment assets and kB BABZINOBEERAE -
liabilities.
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DWER(E)
Segment revenue and results DHBBAREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and AT RASEIRAHREREEDEE D 2K
results by reportable and operating segment. AREBEDIT o
For the year ended 31 March 2020 BE-E-_ZF=-RA=1+—HLEE
Money
lending, asset
management,
Rental of securities
construction brokerage,
Trading of machinery commodities,
construction  and provision futures and
machinery  of repairand  Provision of other
and  maintenance transportation financial
spare parts services services services Total
HfE
BEEE
BEREMK HER Bm B8
BRAZMN REKER Rt REfM
HE RERH EnRY% SRRK @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TER TER
Revenue WA
From external customers KB 4MFRP 28,489 108,902 364 54,690 192,445
Segment results P ERIE (5,211) (5,623) (906) (19,834) (31,574)
Other income, other gains ~ E KA « Uiz
and losses RER 75,541
Finance costs BE AN (6,536)
Corporate expenses NEBX (27,204)
Share of an associate's/ AE—HBERE/
joint ventures' results REMRRE 57,200
Profit before taxation BRE AR A 67,427
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEHER(B)
Segment revenue and results (continued) DI AR EE(E)
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE_Z-—NF=RA=1+—HLFE
Money
lending, asset
management,
Trading of Rental of securities
construction construction brokerage,
machinery, machinery commodities,
spare parts  and provision futures
and of repair and Provision of and other
construction maintenance  transportation financial
materials services services services Total
g -
BERE
A AN BHEL
BAZMHK HER Hm - #HE
jeaay REHEE tefit REAM
HE RIRERH BRI ERIRY Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THT THT THET
Revenue WA
From external customers R BHNERE 54,760 106,100 1,549 14,109 176,518
Segment results DEEE (268) 6,001 (1,121) (6,987) (2,375)
Other income, other gains  E AU A ~ bz
and losses LER 16,565
Finance costs Eﬂiéfﬁi$ (3,380)
Corporate expenses NGl 53 (22,873)
Share of profit of joint AEEERERT
ventures 5453
Loss before taxation PR AT ES 1R (6,610)

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating

segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies.

Segment results represent the profit earned by or loss

from each segment without allocation of certain other

income, other gains and losses, certain finance costs,

corporate expenses and share of an associate’s/joint

ventures' results. This is the measure reported to the

CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

BRI HEREED R 2 S BEREAREE
ZEHABER B - DWMEEEEDRERD
fETHMRA - EftlamkER 5T
BERA RAAXARSE—HE#ER
A/ BELEEA BN TRV SN RE
EZBE - L ARDEEREFERRRE
BEERRABEZIAN
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6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2020

6. 2WER(GE)

Hitb o EE R

BE_Z_EF-A=1t—HLEE

Money
lending, asset
Rental of management,
Trading of  construction securities
construction machinery brokerage,
machinery,  and provision commodities,
spare partsand  of repairand ~ Provisionof  futures and
construction  maintenance transportation other financial
materials services services services  Unallocated Total
B
BERH BEER -
BEMEH - HER RELL
wRRAR  RUSBR Rt BR HER
BENMRHE RERHE ERRE HtsmRE x5 8 At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TR THER THR THER THER
Amounts (charged) credited T2 A ELH
in the measure of segment (30 5FA
profit or loss: LEE:
Depreciation of property, nE - BER
plant and equipment RENE - (39,179) (301) (3,507) (1,036) (44,023)
Gain/(loss) on disposal and HERMENE
write-off of property, plant  FiE iR/
and equipment, net (B1) 3% - - 224 (153) = A
Expected credit loss on TREE RS
financial assets EEBE (277) (6,165) 9 (41,849) - (48,282)
Finance lease income BEREKA 378 - - - - 378
Finance costs BERK (209) (4,846) (23) (3,025) (6,536) (14,639)
Amounts regularly provided ~ FHREFEELE
to the CODM but not AEANERGTE
included in the measure of A EEREAF
segment profit or loss: STAZERE
Income tax (expense) credit  FT{EHE (X )% (135) 2,185 52 2,088 = 4,190
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=osEa = e o e
6. DEER(E)

Hittn &R (48)

For the year ended 31 March 2019 BE-Z-hEF=A=+—HLFE
Money
lending, asset
Rental of management,
Tradingof  construction securities
construction  machinery and brokerage,
machinery, provision of commodities,
spare parts and repair and Provision of futures and
construction  maintenance  transportation  other financial
materials services services services Unallocated Total
&
REH BEER
B HER B
BRTHR  REEER Rt Ao HER
BEMHHE RERH Eak%  EtemkE AR 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT TAR TR TAL TAL
Amounts (charged) credited  FFE D TR
inthe measure of segment (IR )3T A
profit or loss: 288
Depreciation of property, nE - BENRRE
plant and equipment il = (34,959) (644) (354) (3,440) (39,397)
Gain on disposal and write-off H&E R #E7% «
of property, plant and BE Rk EkE
equipment, net et - - 52 = - 52
Impairment loss of property, 1% ~ BiE k&
plant and equipment HEER - (307) = = = (307)
Expected credit loss on TREECEREE
financial assets BR (511) 700 - (11,749) - (11,560)
Finance lease income BEREUA 1471 - - - - 1471
Finance costs REMN A (149) (4,235) (45) 6) (3,380) (7,.815)
Amounts reqularly provided TR TEERE
to the CODM but not RRAERGE
included in the measure of I8 TT%
segment profit or loss: AL RHE
Income tax (expense) credit  FTEH (FX )% (152) 819 1 (515) = 153
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. AHFERE)
Information about major customers BREEREFZEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years HEFELOAEEAWABBI0% 2EFP K
contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group are as AT
follows:
2020 2019
—B-BF  __ZENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Customer A ZEA
— trading of construction machinery — BRI E N/A T3 F 18,466
— rental of construction machinery and ~ — JEEE IR S A &
provision of repair and REAEE R
maintenance services REBIRTS N/ATEHR 451
N/ATERA 18,917
Customer B XFB
— rental of construction machinery and ~ — ZREEHIR S A &
provision of repair and REEER
maintenance services IRERTE 30,226 19,977
— provision of transportation services — IR HEH RSB 87 59
30,313 20,036
/ The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the y MR AN AL R H A AR 3B 10% ©

total revenue of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
The Group’s revenue from external customers is mainly

derived from customers located in Hong Kong and Macau,

which is determined based on the location of customers.

oERER (8)

AEBRBEIFEFPRATEELEBMNRE
BRRFIZER  ANEREFHMEEE

B

2020 2019
k. “Jemd. 2 e S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT

External revenue: ANEBUZ A -
Hong Kong 55 187,782 173,807
Macau SR P 4,663 3,211
192,445 176,518

The Group's non-current assets based on the

geographical location of the owners of these assets are as

AEBZIRDEE (ERZFEERBA
ZHIBME)WAT

follows:
Interests in an associate/
joint venture Other non-current assets Total (Note)
R-EBEAT/
RELECER HitFERBEE st (Fiat)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
“B-%f “T-NF ZB-RE T If SRR =
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000
THET TR Tz THT TERT TR
Hong Kong &% 250,700 161,733 324,927 314,069 575,627 475,802
PRC BE 9,638 3,654 271 - 9,909 3,654

260,338 165,387

325,198 314,069 585,536 479,456

Note: Non-current assets excluded loan receivables, deposit for
acquisition of property, plant and equipment, other non-current
assets, finance lease receivables, pledged bank deposits and
deferred tax assets.

M : ERBEETBREREET  KEVE BER
Rz HEtERBEE - MARERERK
B BERRTEFARELERIAEE °
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. HttA - Httlhm R ESE
2020 2019
—EZBF _TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FBT
Other income HAbW A
Interest income from bank deposits RITESF S HA 418 48
Finance lease income BMEHEEWA 378 1,471
Rental income AU A 2,622 168
Sundry income FETAU A 1,539 1,108
4,957 2,795
Other gains and (losses) Hio Wz R (&518)
Net foreign exchange loss ANE 51 F RE (907) (804)
Net gain on disposal and write-off of & RME S - BE RE&E
property, plant and equipment 2 W e F R 71 52
Compensation received from a customer W —ZEFEEE - 5,229
Impairment loss of property, plantand ~ #1% - BE R REREERE
equipment - (307)
Impairment loss of goodwill SR EiE] (4,353) -
Change in fair value of financial assets AR HEE BB LGt ABS
at fair value through profit and loss (TAAFEFEEHZLETA
BBy, (PL) B ZeRMEEL N FE
HE) 28,036 17,927
Gain on early redemption of convertible 2 A& [@ AT ARG 245 2 U 25
notes 653 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERNB AR W 32,168 -
Gain on bargain purchase ZHEBEE WA 18,301 -
73,969 22,097
78,926 24,892
FINANCE COSTS 8. MEMA
2020 2019
—EZBF _T-NF
HK$'000  HK$'000
THER T
Interest on borrowings EEF B 8,574 6,148
Interest on convertible notes payable JE S AT R IS = B T B 4,321 -
Interest on lease liabilities/obligation HEAE BMERAEEANE
under finance leases 1,040 317
Interest on loans from a director KE—RBEZZEXRFE 704 1,350
14,639 7,815
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DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors

and chief executive were as follows:

9.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

EE TRRABREEMS

ESRTRESIME

ENENEEZRITRAER ZMET

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE-S-SF=-A=-t-HLFE

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme Emolument
Fees benefits contributions Shares Total
K BIRER
e H3g# HELE LA k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THER THER TR FTHER
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Zhang Sheng (Note 1) R4 (FiisE1) - 3,231 9 - 3,240
Mr. Fok Chi Tak (Note 5)  E&fE4L A4 (BH3ES) - 2,496 18 = 2,514
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James B raE - 1,989 18 = 2,007
Dr. Zhiliang Ou, J.P. RE=ELT K FHLT = = = - -
Mr. Zheng Li (Note 2) B384 4 (s 2) - 2,692 - 2,701
Sub-total et - 10,408 54 - 10,462
Independent non- BYFHITES
executive directors
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua ~ Z&#E &4 120 - - - 120
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong (Note 3) ZE@E %4 (FizE3) 120 - - - 120
Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot FERESE 120 - - - 120
Sub-total INEF 360 - - - 360
Chief executive THAR
Mr. Zheng Li (Note 2) 238 5% A (Bt 2) - - s - -
Mr. Gao Zhangpeng aEBEE
(Note 4) (FfiE4) - 621 8 737 1,366
Sub-total INEF - 621 8 737 1,366
Total G 360 11,029 62 737 12,188
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)

9. EX THARREEME(E)

EERTRERME (&

For the year ended 31 March 2019
BHE_Z-NE=-A=1+T—RHLEE

Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
HFak RIKEH
we HmEF FTEI R B8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James B f2%E fc 4 - 1,989 18 2,007
Dr. Zhiliang Ou A St = = - -
Mr. Fok Chi Tak ExEERE - 2,496 18 2,514
Sub-total /NEt = 4,485 36 4,521
Independent non- BYFHITES
executive directors
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua ZE &4 4 120 = = 120
Mr. Mak Yiu Tong ERESS 120 = = 120
Mr. Li Chi Keung Eliot =2 S 120 = = 120
Sub-total /NET 360 = = 360
Chief executive THRAR
Mr. Zhou Yong BABELE - 821 9 830
Mr. Liu Xiaodong 2R T E - 853 8 861
Mr. Gao Zhangpeng = EELE A
(Note 4) (MF5E4) = 125 = 125
Sub-total NS - 1,799 17 1,816
Total aEr 360 6,284 53 6,697
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(continued)

Notes:

(1

Mr. Zhang Sheng was appointed as an executive Director of the
Company and vice chairman of the Board with effect from 1
September 2019.

Mr. Zheng Li was appointed as an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of the Company with effect from 1 September
2019.

Mr. Mak Yiu Tong was appointed as chairman of Nomination
Committee with effect from 1 September 2019.

Mr. Gao Zhangpeng was appointed as the chief executive officer of
the Company with effect from 1 March 2019 and resigned as the
chief executive officer with effect from 31 August 2019.

Mr. Fok Chi Tak was appointed as the co-chief executive officer of
the Company with effect from 1 May 2020.

The executive directors’ emoluments were for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments were for
their services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.

EE  THRBREEME (B)

EERTRARNE (F)

i

) FBEEEZERARANTEEREFTSAIT
B B=Z i yuH s s

2 BEREEZE/ARARITESRRITEAE
HZ=FJLEAH S Hritesie

B ERRALEZERRZZEGEIR B_F
—NENH—HiEX -

W E

7

B kAR - T-NE=A - BREEEAA
FATRER  TA-E-NENA=T—B
HIITE R -

o

o))

6 ETRELERZER/ARAMFETEAR B
T_TETA-HBER -

6 BTEEZHMEAREREEARRRALES
TSPt e AR TG 15

7) BUNRRATEFIMEANSEERATEEM
TRLA AR T 4TS
@ BE-E-TFER-T—AE-—A=—t+—HItF

B MEVENEFHTRARCHERRE
MEERBE 2 25k
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9.

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Employees’ emoluments

The five highest paid individuals included four (2019: two)
directors and one (2019: two) chief executive(s) for the year
ended 31 March 2020, whose emoluments are included in
the above. The emoluments of the remaining individual

for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows:

EE  THRIBREEME (B)

BEME

HE_Z-_FF=-A=1+—RHLEE 7%
EaEATH  BRENR(ZE—NF:
MB)EER—H(ZE—NF:MB)EE
TBRAB  EBlezH#BEIR L - BEZ
T-NFZA=ZT—HLFE HHALZ
BlemT :

2020 2019

—ECEF —_T-hNHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Salaries, allowances and benefits e~ EENRER N/AREH 715
Retirement benefits scheme contributions EAREFEF 2|5k N/ATiEH 18
N/ATEBA 733

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

BT N IIHRE 2 AR

2020 2019
—E-®F —T-A%F
Number of Number of

employee employee

BEAH BEAZK

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T

N/ATEH 1
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

10. TAXATION 10. BB
2020 2019
=BF —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THExT FETL
Hong Kong: i
Current tax B EAF: 18 3,418 614
Under-provision in prior years BAFEREBDE = e
3,418 828
Deferred tax credit EEFR AR R (7,608) (981)
Income tax credit PSR (4,190) (153)
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the BB G T IR W EF E A E EARATEN 2
estimated assessable profit for both years. 16.5% 51 & °
The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit/ REEHEAR BGaBRRMEMEEEER
(loss) before taxation per the consolidated statement of RZ BT ATER](E18) Z HERMT
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
2020 2019
“B_BF F: %
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FETT
Profit/(loss) before taxation BB AR, (E518) 67,427 6,610)
Taxation at Hong Kong Profits BREBMEMHE 16.5% 515
Tax rate of 16.5% 11,125 (1,091)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAHBAZ 2 BB E
for tax purpose 8,109 3,822
Tax effect of income not taxable BERVIBRAZ RIEZE
for tax purpose (22,972) (2,976)
Under provision in prior years BEFERBTR = 147
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERRIBERB 2 HIEZE 1,141 -
Utilisation of tax losses not recognised B AR FER N IEE 1R (1,412) -
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiary  REfih BEHER &K= 2 i B A 7
operating in other jurisdiction TR E z & (290) (6)
Others HAt 109 (49)
Income tax credit PSR (4,190) (153)
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

11. PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR

1. ERER(&HE)

2020 2019
—ECEF —_T-hNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit/(loss) for the year is arrived at FRsH, (E8) Th& kR
after charging: THI|&RIARER
Auditor’s remuneration Z &R & 1,346 921
Amortisation of intangible assets I B 5 2,404 601
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% - BB R EITE
equipment 44,023 39,397
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses &R AR Y 2 7 &K A 26,996 49,528
Minimum lease payment in respect of THRBE s HEKBENK
— Land and buildings — i REF = 3,055
— Machinery — MW - 10,791
Short-term leases expenses EHEERS 3,551 -
Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 1,040 -
Staff costs: BTRA :
Directors’ and chief executive’s EENITHEH NS
emoluments 12,188 6,697
Other staff costs HMh 8 TR
— Salaries and other benefits — e REMBER 60,505 50,278
— Retirement benefits scheme — RREAFT B K
contributions 2,121 1,878
74,814 58,853

12. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed by the directors of the
Company for both years nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. BREF,(FHE)
The calculation of the basic and diluted (2019: basic) RAABBEEAEBEBRERAREE(ZF
earnings/(loss) per share attributable to owners of the —hEF: BR)EF(BE) HERATH
Company is based on the following data: BEE
2020 2019
—R-RE —FIE
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHEIL
Earnings/(loss) BF,(&8)
Earnings/(loss) for the purpose of basic ~ FLat B &I EAR K #E
and diluted (2019: basic) earnings/ (ZZ—h&F: BEK)&H/
(loss) per share (earnings/(loss) for the (E518) 2 &F/ (E518) (KR F]
year attributable to owners of the BB AELFRNRAF, (EE))
Company) 71,624 (6,452)
2020 2019
—2_RF T NF
‘000 ‘000
TR TR
Number of shares BBEE
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ BtErE GRRER L E#H
shares for the purposes of basic and ZT-NEF o EXN)BRFS
diluted (2019: basic) earnings/(loss) (B518) 2 L mAg hntE 15 8k
per share 4,313,199 326356
There were no potential ordinary shares on issue for the BHRBE_ZE-—NEF=A=+—HILFEIL
year ended 31 March 2019, hence no diluted loss per BEOITEELER  WUEZESSREE
share was presented. B o
Basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 BE_Z_TF=A=+—HILFEZER
March 2020 is same as basic earnings per share as the ERREERNEGRERBMNER - RE
convertible notes outstanding during the year had an anti- REABRITERATRREBR S GRER K&
dilutive effect on the basic and diluted earnings per share. SERFN AR REEE -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 9% BERRE
Leasehold
and and Leasehold Furniture and Motor Right of
building  improvements Machinery equipment Vehicle use assets Total
RELHREF HERE HR GRRRE RE ERELE &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TEL TET TEL TET
CosT A
At 1 April 2018 RZZ-\EWA—-A 74,084 2119 414,266 1,401 15172 - 507,042
Additions AE 387 - 66,634 56 463 - 67,540
Additions from acquisition of  RKEHBAAIMAE
subsidiaries = 1,342 = 2,059 - - 3401
Disposals HE = (549) - (350) (408) - (1,303)
Reclassification to inventories E#HHBEFE - = (17,770) 3 2 - (17,770)
Reclassification to asset SNARENRARE
classified asheldfor sales ~ HEZE 73271) = = . e - 73271)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 1,200 2916 463,130 3,166 15,227 - 485,639
Initial application of HKFRS 16 & XERZBHHHE
EAIE 165 = = (12253) - (5239 17,51 75
Restated at 1 April 2019 RZE-NEMA—RET 1,200 2916 450,877 3,166 9994 17,561 485,714
Additions AE - 4,640 28,654 780 20 37,244 71,338
Additions from acquisition of  EYEHBARIMAE
subsidiaries - - - m - - m
Disposals/write-off HE /M - (156 z 2 (2,083) - 2239
Reclassification to inventories  EFHBEHE - - (5,169) = s - (5,165)
Exchange Adjustment 5% - ® = = - - ®
At 31 March 2020 W-BZZF=A=1-A 1,200 7,392 474,366 4117 7931 54,805 549,811
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #E =TS =—ZF=A=+—HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% BERSZEE)
(continued)

Leasehold
land and Leasehold Furniture and Motor Right of
building  improvements Machinery equipment Vehicle use assets Total
HELHREF HERE B HHRRE RE RAESE &g
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL T TAL TEL THL TAL TAL
ACCUMULATED iHAERAE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\FmA-A 3393 1,074 203,010 1,068 12520 - 221,065
Charge for the year TEERY 2,461 199 34,887 493 1,357 - 39,397
Eliminated on disposals \VNEE B = = z (124) (408) & (532)
Reclassification to inventories  E¥HEEHFE - - (13,230) L d A (13.230)
Impairment loss on property, #1% * BE kX EREER
plant and equipment - - 307 - - - 307
Reclassification to asset NP RENERRE
classified as asset held HERE
for sales (5,228) = = - - L (5,228)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=R=1-H 626 1,213 204974 1437 13469 - 201,779
Initial application of HKFRS 16 &R ERBEH RS
EHIZ 165 = - (1,677) - (3,542) 5219 -
Restated at 1 Aprl 2019 R=E—hEMA—BE| 626 1273 2397 1437 9977 5219 2,779
Charge for the year REEMEY 20 041 35931 438 35 6,958 44,023
Fliminated on disposals’ ~ TAE /HshEs 415K
write-off - @ - - (2,070) - (2,074)
Reclassification to inventories EHNEEFE = = (3,035) - - - (3,035)
Exchange Adjustment A% - 0] = = = - (1)
At 31 March 2020 ZECEF=A=1-A 646 1,909 256,193 1,875 7,892 12177 280,692
NET BOOK VALUE QEE gﬁ
At 31 March 2020 ZECEF=A=1-A 554 5,483 218,173 2,242 39 42,628 269,119
At 31 March 2019 RZB-NE=A=1-A 514 1,643 238,156 1,729 1,758 - 243,860
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. ¥13% - BERRE(E)

(continued)

The carrying value of machinery and motor vehicles as at
31 March 2019 includes amount of HK$146,736,000 and
HK$1,692,000 in respect of assets held under finance lease
arrangement, respectively. The liabilities arising from these
finance lease arrangements were either classified as
borrowings or obligations under finance leases as at 31
March 2019.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had conducted an
impairment test on machinery as certain machinery were
idle. The recoverable amounts are based on the fair value
less cost of disposal of those machinery by reference to
the market value for the existing use of the machinery and
the costs to reproduce or replace in new condition the
machinery being valued in accordance with current
construction costs for similar machinery, with allowance for
accrued depreciation as evidenced by observed condition
or obsolescence present, whether arising from physical,
functional or economic causes. An impairment loss of
approximately HK$307,000 was recognised to write down
the carrying amount of certain machinery to their
recoverable amounts of HK$14,143,000 during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

The fair value less cost of disposal of the machinery is
classified as a Level 3 measurement. For the years ended
31 March 2020 and 2019, there were no transfers into or

out of Level 3.

The carrying value of machinery as at 31 March 2020
includes amount of HK$162,616,000 being pledged to

secure other borrowings.

The Group has pledged leasehold land and buildings with
a carrying amount of HK$574,000 to secure bank
borrowings of the Group as at 31 March 2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
Securities
Customer brokerage
relationship licenses Total
EFEFE RELLER nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT THET
COST %N
At 1 April 2018 R-B—\EWA—H 4 - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BT 2 A 12,020 5,000 17,020
At 31 March 2019,1 April 2019 RZE-HAE=A=+—8 "
and 31 March 2020 —2-NENA—-AH
kR—ZEBE-EHF=-A=+-—H 12,020 5,000 17,020
ACCUMULATED Rt @
AMORTISATION
At 1 April 2018 RZZE-N\ENA—H = = T
Charge for the year RFRERX 601 - 601
At 31 March 2019 and R-8-hE=A=+-—H
1 April 2019 R-B-hENA—A 601 3 601
Charge for the year REERX 2,404 = 2,404
At 31 March 2020 R-ZE-EF=HF=+-—H 3,005 - 3,005
NET BOOK VALUE SREFE
At 31 March 2020 R-E-EF=F=+-—H 9,015 5,000 14,015
At 31 March 2019 NS —y === 5| = 5-—(8 11,419 5,000 16,419
Approximately HK$17,020,000 of the total amounts BEHER17,020000BETHEEZE_T—NF
represents amount paid for the customer relationship and A=+ BUEFEAEEFAKEZKE
securities brokerage licenses acquired by the Group, Be iR AR AR MEARFBERKE?
which amounted to approximately HK$12,020,000 and KA RR 2 B8 D A4 12,020,000 % 7T
approximately HK$5,000,000 respectively, through the 2 495,000,000 7 7T ©

acquisition of Hao Tian International Financial Holdings
Limited during the year ended 31 March 2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

15.

16.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The recoverable amount of intangible asset has been
determined based on a value in use calculation. That
calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five year
period with a discount rate of 13.0% (2019: 10.7%). Cash
flows after five years period are extrapolated at 3% (2019:
3%) growth rate. Another key assumption for the value in
use calculation is the budgeted revenue and gross margin,
which is determined based on the units’s past
performance and management's expectations for the

market development.

. BREE(GE)

mEEEZAI BB IR BERAEERTE
EEE c R EAEAERBREEMILER
FHRBEEZRERETEA - BIRER
13.0% (=& — h¢ 107%) - AF %R &
MEE3I% (ZE—NEF : 3%) R EHH -
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ:@ﬁﬁ FREREATEERA R
EFME - WHRBREMATRARERERE
MBS EREMEE °

16. EE
GOODWILL "
2020 2019
—ECRF —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
The amount arises on acquisition of: WHEATIHEMEAZ £
Hao Tian International Financial Holdings ZXEIE & gIEAR A
Limited
— Original amount —REEH 46,417 46,417
— Impairment loss — BEEE (4,353) -
Total carrying amount FRmE&E 42,064 46,417

The recoverable amount of Hao Tian International
Financial Holdings Limited (“"HTIFH") has been
determined based on a value in use calculation prepared
by an independent valuer, CHFT Advisory and Appraisal
Ltd. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering
a five-year period with a discount rate of 13.0% (2019:
10.7%). Cash flows after the five-year period are
extrapolated at 3% (2019: 3%) growth rate. Another key
assumption for the value in use calculation is the budgeted
revenue and gross margin, which is determined based on
the unit's past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. An impairment
test in relation to the goodwill allocated to HTIFH and the
related intangible asset (Note 15) has been performed by
the Group. Due to the unfavourable market situation, the
directors of the Company reduced the budgeted revenue
and profit estimation, which caused the carrying amount
of HTIFH as at 31 March 2020 exceeded its value in use
based on cash flow projections. Accordingly, an
impairment loss of HK$4,353,000 (2019: HK$Nil) was
recognised to goodwill allocated to HTIFH during the year
ended 31 March 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 #E =TS =—ZF=A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE/JOINT 17. RA—REHEQT S8t ¥RE
VENTURES
2020 2019
—EEFE —ZThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAETT
Share of net assets DhEEFE 260,338 165,387

Included in the balance is goodwill of HK$362,000 (2019:

HK$ 134,000).

BB BIEEE36200ET(ZE—-NF:

134,000/ 7T) °

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, particulars of the associate T e i&: T —E=HA=+—H -
and joint ventures were as follows: BME N RESPEZFBNOT :
Place of incorporation, Percentage of
operation and principal ownership
Name activity Relationship interests
AR R A i R FrER
&% DYSETES S 2fEa EZEAL
2020 2019
—R-%F T hF
RRESEEBRA Provision of asset Associate 20.00% N/A
management service T
in the PRC
FRESERARAA R ERHTEEER B R A
RS
HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund Investment holdings in the Joint Venture 37.19% 51.58%
(Formerly known as Cayman Islands
“Riverwood China Growth Fund”)
HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund RASHSRE RERE
(A7 [Riverwood China REER
Growth Fund])
ELRBEREFRELS Investment holdings in the Joint Venture 35.00% 35.00%

ERERAF
R RBRREXRERS
ERERAF

PRC
R BRI E A

U>

REhE
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE/JOINT 17. A—REBELQAT SELECRE
VENTURES (continued) (%)
(@) Summarised financial information of material (a) EXRGETECHEERBE(CH
joint venture, adjusted for any difference in BHBRERFEHAR):

accounting policies:

HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund

HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund

2020 2019

—ECEF —T-hNHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FAETT

Current assets MENEE 691,523 319,786

Current liabilities E=K=T 17,370 6,228

Revenue WA 156,028 22,044
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive &A% F, (B1E) &

income/(expense) for the year 2EKE(FX) 8% 133,486 (27,838)

Cash and cash equivalents BeMReEEY 15,514 397
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17. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE/JOINT

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VENTURES (continued)

(a)

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

U7/

Summarised financial information of material

joint venture, adjusted for any difference in

accounting policies: (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

information to the carrying amount of the investment

in HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund recognised in

the consolidated financial statements:

R—EBELR AELEZRE
(&)

BEXRELECUMBERBE(EH
B REREZRELAR): (B)

(a)

F B ER B RS MR ERR
#EZ HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund
EREE K :

2020 2019
—E-8F T 5
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Equity attributable to the owners A AFE(LREZS 674,106 313,558
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7S5 B &5 FT /G #EAE 2 L 151
interests 37.19% 51.58%
Carrying amount of the Group's REE P HT Riverwood
investment in HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund
Multi-Growth Fund I EREE 250,700 11615739
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

17. INVESTMENTS IN AN ASSOCIATE/JOINT 17. R—EHEQRT SEL¥2RE
VENTURES (continued) (%)
(b) Summarised financial information (immaterial (b) HBERBE(FEABKEQAR &
associate/joint venture): ).
2020 2019
—EB-EF —ZT-NHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Aggregate carrying amount of ERIFEE R E N7,
individually immaterial associate/ B ERERGE I BEHRE
joint venture in the consolidated 2 IRHEEE
financial statements 9,638 3,654
Aggregate financial information of the R&E@EEE N GE],/ AL PE Y
Group’s associate/joint venture: FE BB s &R -
Non-current assets EMBEE 1,293 1,611
Current assets mENEE 38,739 9,004
Current liabilities mEaE 1,172 176
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive G & F, /(1) &
income/(expense) for the year 2EWE(FAX) @58 202 (803)
18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 18. MIEHERWFIE
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-hNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Current finance lease receivables BN HEA 0 & 70 & e W sk I8 3,998 8,004
Less: Provision for impairment loss B OREEERE (372) (900)
3,626 7,104
Non-current finance lease receivables SEBNHA Bt & FH & FE GRIR 3,842 6,901
Less: Provision for impairment loss B OREEERE (358) -
3,484 6,901
7,110 14,005
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Leasing arrangements
Certain of the Group's machinery are leased out under
finance leases. All leases are denominated in HK$. The
term of finance leases entered into ranges from 3 years to

4 years (2019: 2 years to 5 years).

Amounts receivable under finance leases

18.

BMEHERBREGE)

HEZH
AEBEETHRDREREEE LA - A
HEHEANETTAE - MEHEER L ZF
HNFIFRAF(ZT—NEF : 2F85F) °

BMERERT 2 BWHKIR

Minimum Present value

lease of lease

payments payments

R HE

HERR HARZBEE

2020 2020

“E-FF CZF-T|EHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FET

Within one year —FR 4,180 3,626

In the second year FIT s 2,121 1,837

In the third year E=F 1,724 1,647

8,025 7,110

Less: unearned finance income B REREELE WA (915) N/ATEHA
Present value of minimum lease FEWRERENR2BRE

payments receivable 7,110 7,110
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &2 —Z=-—ZTF=A=+—HIFE

18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. MEHESRWE(E)

Amounts receivable under finance leases (continued)

MEHEET 2 BRRE(E)

Minimum Present value
lease of lease
payments payments
=& HE
HEMNR R E
2019 2019
—ET-EFE ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FA&T
Not later than one year TEMR—F 8,321 7,104
Later than one year and not EBR—FRTMERAF
later than five years 7,335 6,901
15,656 14,005
Less: unearned finance income VB REREREE WA (1,651) N/AT B
Present value of minimum U HREEENRZIRE
lease payments receivable 14,005 14,005
The effective interest rates of the finance leases as at 31 RZZE-_EF=A=+—H mEHEZE

March 2020 range from 7.47% to 10.79% per annum (2019:

4.55% to 12.0% per annum).

There was no unguaranteed residual value in connection

with finance lease arrangements or contingent lease

£ GEA455%FE 12.0%) °

arrangements of the Group that needed to be recorded as 8 -

at the end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

18. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. BMEHEREWFIE(E)
Movements of loss allowance on finance lease FAREHEERRESERESS
receivables during the year
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
E—RRER ERRER FoRER
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
12 months not credit- credit-
EG[E impaired impaired Total
ZHITEH ZHITEH
1218 B EH FEER EEER
FEER FEERE EERE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FET FET
As at 1 April 2018 RZZ—-\FHA—H 1,600 e 4 1,600
Credited to profit or loss RigssEt A (700) < - (700)
As at 31 March 2019 and R-ZE—NF
1 April 2019 ==t
“E-NFMA—H 900 - - 900
Credited to profit or loss RIEFETA (170) — - (170)
As at 31 March 2020 R-ZE-ZF
=A=+—8 730 - - 7.30
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19. LOAN RECEIVABLES 19. ERER
2020 2019
—EZEF —ET—hNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FHT
Non-current: SEBNHR -
Secured, fixed-rate loan receivables B EEFRE R
(Note) (P5E) 79,250 16,968
Less: allowance for impairment R E R (1,885) (922)
77,365 16,046
Current: BNER
Secured, fixed-rate loan receivables B EE =B R
(Note) (P¥5E) 149,125 67,276
Unsecured and guaranteed, fixed-rate AR R A EREWRETE
loan receivables FZEEZH 92,092 61,913
Unsecured and non-guaranteed, KR R EERIEWEE
fixed-rate loan receivables FERER 90,332 24,114
Less: allowance for impairment B RERE (45,848) (6,044)
285,701 147,259
363,066 163,305
Note: The loan receivables are secured by properties, equity securities Mz : BUWEFABRARTE 2 - IRANEH KW
and machineries held by the borrowers. VEHER -
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19. LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) . ERER(E)

Movements on the Group'’s allowance for impairment of AEBEKEFRERE 2 ZEHWNT :
loan receivables are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

F-ER SRR E=ER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET FET

Balance at 1 April 2018 \_T NEMA—H
1EE5 12 s W 4
New loans originated %ﬁzﬁféfﬁx 6,966 - 8 6,966
Balance at 31 March 2019 R =t
and 1 April 2019 kZZE-NFHA—H 6,966 - R 6,966
Assets derecognised or repaid B IFERNEREZEE (2,710) = ~ (2,710)
Transfer from stage 1to stage 2 {5 —[FEEB 2 E LR (18,441) 18,441 - -
Transfer from stage 2to stage 3 MFE_MEREBREE =[EE - (3,722 3722 -
Changes arising from P& ER TS A 2
transfer of stages - 8,703 18,717 27,420
New loans originated HEEW 16,057 = < 16,057
Balance at 31 March 2020 NET e s
ZREER 1,872 23,422 22,439 47,733
In general, loan receivables are considered as default —RmE - WU E ek E i8R 5 HA S Fue
when the loan receivables or its related instalments are HiH890 B - AIERERBRAELN - R
overdue by over 90 days. As at 31 March 2020, loan ZEF=RA=+—HB RE2UEHEES
receivables of HK$141,890,000 (2019: HK$Nil) were default BEBEEBE]) TEENZEKRERE
under lifetime expected credit loss (“ECL") and a provision 141,890,000/ 8L (ZFE—NF : TEIL) * &
of HK$22,439,000 (2019: HK$Nil) were provided ERLILET PR B 22,439,000 TT( =T — A,
respectively. FTBIT) e
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 #z=—=

19.

20.

= ElIES

LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 19. BRERK(E)
For loans that are not credit-impaired without significant HRNIEEERELBVBERUAREERR
increase in credit risk since initial recognition “Stage 1", ECL WRBEEN(TE R 28X - BHE
is measured at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime EEBRBEENRRI2E AL A EEEE
ECL that result from default events possible within the next DNEMS|I B2 HBEREEEE 2 LLHIFT
12 months. If a significant increase in credit risk since initial 2 - WEMRERUREHNEERBREE
recognition is identified (“Stage 2") but not yet deemed to BI(E_EEDERRACSHREER
be credit impaired, ECL is measured based on lifetime ECL. B RFEHEEBRLR: REREEEIEG
In general, when loan receivables or its related instalments B —RME - HEKERSEEA \Hﬁﬁ
are overdue by 30 days, there are significant increase in TOEHI30E - EERREARIEMN - BE
credit risk. During the year ended 31 March 2020, total Z_TF=A=+—HIFE " *E?J%i‘ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
provision of HK$18,328,000 (2019: HK$6,966,000) under EEEER 2T F—BEBERFE_BEZ
Stage 1 and Stage 2 were recognised in the consolidated B {h 42 %618,328,000/8 (= F — L &F -
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive 6,966,000 7T) BRERE BRm REMEEIK
income based on assessment from ECL model. MR AR o
As at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020, the gross carrying RIZE-NWF=ZA=T—ARZT_ZTF=
amount of loan receivables was HK$170,271,000 and A=+—B RBUERZEERLES R
HK$410,799,000 respectively thus the maximum exposure 170,271,000 7T }%2.410,799,0007 7 » At -
to loss was HK$170,271,000 and HK$410,799,000 &= BB e E D R /170,271,000% 7T K&
respectively. The increase in the loss allowance of 410,799,000 8 7T © B 18 B W E R 3
HK$40,767,000 was due to net increase in the gross BERERmEAE LR FE I - REEEEE
carrying amount after settlement of loan receivables and HN40,767,000 7T °
origination of new loans.
INVENTORIES 20. 78
2020 2019
—B-BRF _—TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT T
Art works 217 84,300 -
Machinery A7 389 389
Spare parts BRZH 1,360 1,327
Consumable good B 295 -
86,344 1,716
During the year, no written-down of inventories has been FA - BEMRENEE(ZZE—LF : TF
made (2019: HK$NIl). JL) °
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

21. BEZRWIA

2020 2019
—ECBF —ZT-hNHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Trade receivables from clients I TIEEMELEKREEFZ
arising from B 5 WA
— Rental income from construction — BREMMER 2 HE KA
machinery business 54,355 45,963
— Trading and provision of other — BRI E R IR
service from construction machinery H AR 591 622
— Securities brokerage — FH & 16,582 511l 4e)
— Provision of other financial services — REEME RS 8,972 =
Margin and other trade related deposits LA TNIE B PTE £ 442 R I B #E
with brokers and financial institutions ZRBeMNHEME FEEL S
arising from
— futures brokerage — B B4 273 3,005
Less: allowance for impairment B ORERE (20,546) (18,558)
60,227 82,158
For those cash commodities and securities trading clients, MREHSHALBAEERPME - —
it normally takes two to three days to settle after trade RZEXHZRGBHPERE=ZBRNEE -

date of those transactions. These outstanding unsettled
trades due from clients are reported as trade receivables
from clients.

The margin clients of the commodities and securities
brokerage business are required to pledge their shares to

the Group for credit facilities for securities trading.

The settlement terms of trade receivables from clearing

houses are usually one to two days after the trade date.

ZEHAGEREBEZREEPFRIAIIRKA
BEFZEZRMFIE

ITEWEWBZ ZHQT%LAHX =} Jﬂﬂéfﬁi‘%ﬁ

E\"

KREBEMZESRERBAZEERRER
RpBEHR—EMA -
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 21. EFRWRE(E)

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables from
client arising from construction machinery business and
other financial services, presented based on invoice date
net of allowance for impairment at the end of the

reporting period:

AT BRIMERREERMEL LA EE
RIBAELRBE TP 28 5 WA IR
RERE) RBEZ A2 2 REDT

2020 2019

—ECEF —NEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FAT

0-30 days 0Z30H 17,068 8,712
31-90 days 31290H 14,334 13,680
91-180 days 912180 H 8,023 2,403
181-365 days 1812365 H 4,096 3,135
Over 365 days 3658 650 5,981
44,171 33,911

Trade receivables from cash and margin clients arising
from the commodities and securities brokerage business
are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date.
No aging analysis is disclosed as in the opinion of
directors, the aging analysis does not provide additional
value in view of the nature of commodities and securities
dealing business. The amount of credit facilities granted
to margin clients is determined by the discounted market
value of the collateral securities accepted by the Group.
As at 31 March 2020, the total value of securities pledged
as collateral in respect of the margin loans was
approximately HK$80,543,000 (2019: HK$147,424,000)
based on the market value of the securities as at the end

of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Credits are extended to brokerage clients on a case-by-
case basis in accordance with the financial status of clients
such as their financial conditions, trading records, business
profile and collateral available to the Group. Clients
trading in commodities and obtaining securities margin
financing from the Group are required to observe the
Group's margin policies. For commodities, initial margins
are required before trading and thereafter clients are
required to keep the equity position at a prescribed

maintenance margin level.

The Group applies simplified approach to provide for ECL
for trade receivables from client arising from construction
machinery business, cash clients and other financial
services, and general approach for trade receivables from
margin clients prescribed by HKFRS 9. To measure the
ECL of trade receivables, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
ECL of trade receivables as at 31 March 2020 was
approximately HK$20,546,000 (2019: HK$18,558,000) based
on the counterparties’ past repayment history. The
estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical
observed default rates over the expected life of the
debtors and study of other corporates’ default and
recovery data from international credit-rating agencies
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

1. EZRBREGE)

REEPZEEEAREREP <M BRAE
ATFUER - BREPZIMBAN - KB
8% XA RAERTARE 2B R -
feEmmE B AR B AREENESRE
BEZEPHABTASBEZRBEEER -
REmME REBMABNIPSRES
HEBEPZRRARBEREZRESKFE

BEBBMBRELNEIRZIEE A%
EERAG AR EERRER BeRP
R E M S mh AR 7S AT E £ FE U P AR 2 TR HA
EEEIBFHERE  WER—MAERKB
REBESRFP 2B ZRUGIBEZEREEER
FHREE - RETEE HRBGRIEZBHEER
B BZREWHEE BER G EERRR
ol  ERRZGHF2BAERGTH - &
SERFER S -_EF=A=+—HZHE
BB BB %) 520,546,000 L (= — 1
% : 18,558,000 7T) ° fhatEEXRTIIREIE
WBR RTERT FEAA 2 BT B BB A9 LA R BT
BEE R s 5 B i 2 4 R B EUR
ZWFE AR - WL BAR BN R ARk
FBAMAIS 2B EEERHEL FH% -
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21. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for impairment of

trade receivables

General approach

21. EZEWFEE(E)

BEZRWREAZREBRRERE

—RAE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3  approach Total
E-RR S-ER S=ZER @HtoE mct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET FHT FHET TET
As at 1 April 2018 R-ZE—\EMA—H = = - 14,185 14,185
Charged/(credited) to Rz (FEA)
profit or loss 1,000 = 4,883 (589) 5,294
Amount written-off as MIE AT A E 258
uncollectible = = = (921) (921)
As at 31 March 2019 and T B
1 April 2019 SR E
—E-NEMA—H 1,000 - 4,883 12,675 18,558
(Credited)/charged to M8z (GEA),/ 1k
profit or loss (283) = e 7,154 6,871
Amount written-off as MIE AT AT E 258
uncollectible = = (4,883) = (4,883)
As at 31 March 2020 RZEZTF
E- =1 F 717 - - 19,829 20,546
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22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22. HtEEWRIE - BERFEMNNKE
PREPAYMENTS
2020 2019
—F-%F T NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHIT
Non-current: SEMED
Deposits for acquisition of property, W%  BERRBZE®
plant and equipment 407 271
Other non-current assets HiIEmBEE 1,932 =
Less: allowance for impairment W R ERE (711) =
1,628 2S
Current: ik
Other receivables H i fE U 5RIA 306 71
Deposits Be 2,401 3,516
Prepayments TART IR 2,105 1,494
Less: allowance for impairment B BB RS (684) (581)
4,128 4,500

Annual Report 25 201920 195



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBEZE IR ELEHR AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M
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22. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 22. HtbfEWRIR - BERFANKEE)
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for impairment of HttEWRERZRE ZBESERESD
other receivables and deposits

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

F-BER FER F=ER

Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL

12 months not credit- credit-
EGE impaired impaired Total

2R 2R

1218 A & FEER FEER

FEBE FEERE FERE e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THET FET FET
As at 1 April 2018, RZT—)\F
31 March 2019 Rl B
and 1 April 2019 —E-NF

AR RS

=5 T

MA—H 581 - - 581

Charged to profit or loss R8s kR 814 — N 814
As at 31 March 2020 RZZE-TF

== N39S - - 1,395
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

23. UAFEFEEESTABREZE
BMEE

2020 2019
—EEFE —ZThF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAETT
Financial assets at FVTPL AT EE2 B EE L
SFABECEREE
Listed equity instrument ST E 117,442 114,376
Unlisted debt instrument, at fair value FETEKIR  BAFE 12,384 e
129,826 114,376

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash

Pledged bank deposits were pledged to banks to secure
bank borrowings granted to the Group as set out in note
29 and interest bearing at a prevailing market rate of 0.19%
per annum (2019: 0.59% per annum).

Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates
which range from 0.0010% to 0.0860% (2019: 0.0001% to
0.0021%) per annum.

Bank balances, trust and segregated accounts

The Group maintains segregated trust accounts with
authorised institutions to hold clients’ monies arising from
its normal course of business. The Group has classified the
clients’ monies as bank balances, trust and segregated
accounts under the current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and
recognised the corresponding trade payables (note 26) to
respective clients on the grounds that it is liable for any
loss or misappropriation of clients’ monies. The clients’
monies as bank balances, trust and segregated accounts is
restricted and governed by the Securities and Futures
(Client Money) Rules under the Securities and Futures

Ordinance.

24. HitRBEREE
EEFRTERARBITERRRES

REBE D EIPRITEFER T IRIT - BAE
RAEEMERTEE GRUMRFE29H)
ZER REBEBTMSHNEGF019% (=
T—NF : §F059%)FTE °

IRITESIREFEN T 0.0010% £ 0.0860% (—
Z—HF : 0.0001% E0.0021%) ZFE1TH 5
FIEFTE o

RITHERR - EERBURF

AEBERRBARBFRRIBIULERRP - UiF
MEPRIEREBEBEFAEL LKA - N
SESEFPFIAD BREAMBAMRAR M
BEEE N ZRITHERR  EERBIUKE
WEREARTPRIAZEMBRIIEHEE
FEEZEEMERENBEETEMNBEREE
SN TRIA (M52 26) - RITHEER  EFERIB
VRFEREPREBEXBEFAABKRIIATZ
EnLHE (RPRA) RRIFARERRE
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25. A DISPOSAL COMPANY CLASSIFIED AS HELD 25.

—B2ERBEHEZLERT

FOR SALE

Chim Kee Crane Company Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, engaged in investment
of leasehold land in Hong Kong. In March 2019, the Group
entered into agreements for the disposal of its entire
interests in Chim Kee Crane Company Limited for an
aggregate consideration of HK$100,000,000 (the
“Disposal”). Accordingly, the assets and liabilities
attributable to Chim Kee Crane Company Limited, as
included in the Group's rental of construction machinery
and provision of repair and maintenance services for
segment reporting purposes, had been classified as assets
and liabilities held for sale and were presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2019. By reference to the sales consideration and
the carrying value of Chim Kee Crane Company Limited as
at 31 March 2019, no impairment loss was recorded for the
year ended 31 March 2019. The Disposal was completed
in April 2019.

The major classes of assets and liabilities classified as held

for sale as at 31 March 2019 were as follows:

ARrEZEE2ENB AR SR BERBRA
AR ERREREHELHMER - RZF
—NF=R - REBEFABK(E 100,000,000
EBILHEER G RERER AR 22
m([BESEDTIIHE - Bt - Ao R
HEEMMRAS ERERMEE AR M
BRIRERBARZ hRERERAFE
HEERBBEEDBEABRELEZEERSE
& YR-_TE-—NEZA=Z+—HZHAH
BARARAEFEY - K2EHERBRS
REBEEAERATN - E—NEFE=ZA=+—
HEEE BERBEE T —-—NLF=A
=+ HIEFESSEMRERE - HES
HERZE—NFMHATHK °

RZZB-AF=ZA=+—RH  2BEK/FEL
EZEENABZIEDEWMT

2019

—T-hF

HK$'000

FETT

Property, plant & equipment M - BB REE 68,043
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments HMEUHIE « Ze KRB IA 1
Bank balances and cash IRTTHEBR MRS 42
Total assets classified as held for sale DEAFELECEERE 68,086
Creditors and accruals e BREFR & BT & 40
Total liabilities classified as held for sale DI BEELEZBEAEE 40
Net assets BEFE 68,046
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26. TRADE PAYABLES

26. B EMNFA

2020 2019
“B-BF —ZFNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER T e
Margin and other deposits payable to B HEREFCLEEY
clients arising from commodities, ENEFPzRBS REMIRE
futures and securities brokerage 18,963 7,971
Trade payables to brokers and clearing i ~ HIE RESFELTESE
houses arising from commodities, MG NEEF 2 E
futures and securities brokerage FETFRIE 10,873 116
Trade payables arising from construction &M MIZEY RS EE
machinery and sales of construction 2B S EMNFIA
materials 6,699 5,922
36,535 14,009

The settlement terms of payable to brokers, clearing
houses and securities trading clients from the ordinary
course of business of brokerage in securities range from
two to three days after the trade date of those
transactions. Margin and other deposits received from
clients for their trading of commodities and futures

contracts were payable on demand.

Trade payables arising from construction machinery and
sales of construction materials business comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purchases. The normal credit period

taken for trade purchases is 0-45 days.

REBFEFCLERFEEZBNERL - &
HEMkBEEESFEPZARNGEER RZE
RXHAKME=ZH - FAmAAEANEE
EPWE z REE R EMIRE AR EREE

o

pii

BEBREEEMHNIHERTEL 2B PR
NHREBRESREZRABERA - BS
R —RIEEMF/OELSHE -
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26. TRADE PAYABLES (continued) 26. EZEMNAREE)
An aging analysis of the Group's trade payables arising I £ B AR AE HA K (9 SR SR R R 2R Rl 4
from construction machinery and sale of construction TR S BB S N S IE R E [ H 25|
materials business at the end of the reporting period TEERAFINT

presented based on the invoice date is as follows:

2020 2019

—EZBFE _TNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FETT

0-30 days 0230H 1,415 1,581
31-60 days 3ME60H 1,549 1,724
61-180 days 612180 H 2,897 2,058
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 48 151
Over 365 days 365 A E 790 408
6,699 5,922

27. ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER  27. &R - EWRE R BN FIE
PAYABLES

2020 2019
—B-%F —EFE-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
Accruals JEEtE A 5,320 6,470
Deposit received B Wiz E 2,100 10,238
Other payables H{th fE T 5RI8 1,182 905
Convertible notes interest payable FEf AT AR R A B (M 5E 32)
(Note 32) 3,610 -
12,212 17,613
Note: As at 31 March 2020, HK$1,188,000 (2019: HK$2,084,000) iz : RZE-_ZEF=A=+—H 1,188,000t (=
represented interest payable to a director. T— L5 : 2,084,000 7T ) IR ER —BEEFIS o
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28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FELLOW 28. W NERKEABRE FEN—
SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNT DUE TO AN BMrEERARRE Y F—&
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY/ ESRE RA—BESZEX

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO A DIRECTOR/LOAN
FROM A DIRECTOR

Amount due from a director W —FEERIE

The amount is interest-free, unsecured and are repayable ZEFBERRE - BERRARERER -
on demand.

Details of amount due from a director, which is non-trade W —RZEEFHEAIEEFED - FEHT
nature, are as follows: R

Maximum amount
outstanding during the

As at 31 March year ended 31 March
BE=A=tmHLFE
R=H =+ REBRSEH
Name 2020 2019 2020 2019
HE ZR-¥F —E-NE ZR-%F _TAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET T FTER i F 7
Mr. Tang Yiu Chi, James B{#2%8 5t 4 - = - /8
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28. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO FELLOW 28. B NEREME D TFHIE BN —
SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNT DUE TO AN BEHEERARRE W F—A
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING COMPANY/ BEENE KE-—KESCERE)

AMOUNT DUE FROM/TO A DIRECTOR/LOAN
FROM A DIRECTOR (continued)

Amount due to a director, amounts due from/to EN—REEHE B NEZHEL
fellow subsidiaries and amount due to an BIFIER B — B EER A RRIE

intermediate holding company

These amounts are non-trade nature, interest-free, ZEFIBRIFESHHE - 8 - BEH LA
unsecured and are repayable on demand. RERER -

Loan from a director RE—BEBZEX

The amount of HK$40,000,000 is unsecured, bearing an A#040,000,000 7% 7T < FRIE A EK IR KR F
interest of 2% per annum and was matured on 11 May ME2%EE  ERZE—NEFRAT—H
2019 without repayable on demand clause. FER - IR ESRIER IR o

The amount of HK$30,000,000 is unsecured, bearing an #%030,000,000 /%8 7T < 5008 A E K K iR F
interest of 2% per annum and was matured on 13 May ME2%stE ERN-_EBE-ZEFERA+=H
2020 without repayable on demand clause. BH - WRIRE SKERIRK o

The amount of HK$30,000,000 is unsecured, bearing an A#30,000,000 78 T 2 FUIE A B IR IR LR F
interest of 3% per annum and will be matured on 15 March FE3I%TE - BR_E-_—_F=A+HA
2022 without repayable on demand clause. FH - WERESREEGRRK -
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29. BORROWINGS 29. B8
Bank borrowings RITHE
2020 2019
“B-%F —ZTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Secured and guaranteed interest-bearing B#EIF R EERFTERITER
bank loans:
Repayable on demand or within BERIN—FANEE
one year 9,861 29,389
Repayable after one year which contain R —F&EE - BFKRENK
a repayable on demand clause BB (&3h 21,941 31,813
Total bank borrowings BEIRITEE 31,802 61,202
Analysis based on scheduled repayment BRI E R 7:EIETEEER
terms set out in the loan agreements, B2 2T -
into:
On demand or within one year BRERS N —FNR 9,861 29,389
More than one year, but not iR —FETHBEMRF
exceeding two years 7,340 9,854
More than two years, but not BBRMEENERRATE
exceeding five years 14,601 18,170
More than five years BB A F - 3,789
Total bank borrowings BwIRTTEE 31,802 61,202

Bank borrowings bear interest at floating interest rates.
The effective interest rates of borrowings as at the end of
each of the reporting period ranged from 3.50% to 4.50%
per annum (2019: 2.79% to 6.13% per annum).

IRITEBRZHNEAS - REZFREHK
EEZBERFRNFEEE3.50% 2 4.50% (=
T—NE : BE279%%6.13%) °

Annual Report 3 2019/20 203



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® 2 XBIBEZE IR ELEHR AR

29. BORROWINGS (continued)

Bank borrowings (continued)

The bank borrowings and other banking facilities are

secured and guaranteed by:

(@) Pledge of leasehold land and buildings (Note 14)
held by the Group as at 31 March 2019;

(b) Pledge of bank deposits amounting to HK$5,000,000
and HK$4,654,000 (Note 24) held by the Group as at
31 March 2020 and 2019, respectively; and

(c) At 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Company has issued
guarantees to banks to secure banking facilities

granted to certain subsidiaries.
Other borrowings

It is the Group's policy to lease certain of its motor vehicles
and machinery under financing arrangement. The Group
entered into financing arrangement with several financial
institutions, pursuant to which, the Group transferred the
legal title of certain machinery of the Group to these
financial institutions at net consideration of HK$59,766,000
(2019: HK$28,460,000). The Group is obligated to pay
monthly instalments in accordance with respective
agreements. Upon the maturity of the lease, the Group is
entitled to purchase back the machinery at cash
considerations in accordance with respective agreements
which are expected lower than the market values of
respective machinery. Despite the fact that arrangement
involves a legal form of a lease, the Group accounted for
the arrangement as a collateralised borrowing at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, in

accordance with the substance of the arrangement.
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29. BE(E)

RITHEE(E)

RITEE REMRITEEH THSBEER
RIER

(@) AKBER-_F-NE=A=t+—HH
BB iiﬂz&@ﬂﬁﬁ&m) R

b) AKRER-_F_FTER-FT-NF=
A=+ BRAZRITERD A
5,000,000 7T K2 4,654,000 7T ( Y &E
20)2EH &

0 MRZEZZEFR_ZF—NLF=A
=+—H ARRCRETHERQR
R 2 RITIEEMIRTTH EER -

Htpfd &

AEBZBXRAREREREHERETA
BREW AEBEETSREEI A E
ZHE - B AREEEAEEE T
EEFERTZECRBE  FREAR
59,766,000 7% 7T ( —Z & — fL4F © 28,460,000%
L) c AEBERBRES HERA D BN
e RNMHEEME AEEEEREBESHZE
LAIR @B (FREME R S 2 T8 ) B Bl
W BEREIRAEZERZER  A&E
BELHE 2 NG HHRE A AN B
FIEEARINEEREE -
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29. BORROWINGS (continued)

Other borrowings (continued)

The borrowing terms range from 3 to 5 years (2019: 3to 5
years) under these collateralised borrowing arrangement.
Interest rates underlying these arrangements are either
fixed ranging from 2.88% to 4.79% per annum (2019: 2.88%
to 4.97% per annum) or variable ranging from 3.27% to
5.74% per annum (2019: 3.54% to 5.15% per annum) at
respective contract dates. None of these collateralised

borrowing include contingent payments.

29. BE (&)

HitfE& ()

BEZEZEREERY  BEEANTFIES
F(ZE—NF:385F) - 2ELH 28
BFR TR A4 BB 2 B EF 5% 2.88%
BAT%(ZF — N F: FF E288%=
4.97%) S IF B E R K3 27% E574% (= F
—NE : ERE3I54%E515%) T8 ° %5
EHEEREFBEIANK -

Present value of

minimum repayments

REERZEE
2020 2019
—ER-FFE CTEhF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Principal amount: RNEFE -
Within one year —F R 116,302 56,915
Within a period of more than one year BE—F A FERNBBRE
but not more than two years 26,771 26,457
Within a period of more than two years ~ AHIRG A BT BB TS
but not more than five years 16,193 11,224
159,266 94,596
Less: Amount due for settlement within & : + — & A R E|HI{E 8 2 7 IE
twelve months (shown under GIRREBEERET)
current liabilities) (116,302) (56,915)
Amount due for settlement after T+ @A EDHERE 2 I8
twelve months 42,964 37,681

Other borrowings are effectively secured by the underlying
assets of HK$162,616,000 (2019: HK$125,981,000) as the
rights to the assets would be transferred to the financial
institutions in the event of default by repayment by the
Group.

HEEEEIL162,616,0008 T (ZE—1
F 1 125,981,000 70) Z HEE & EEE A
REAMASEBERER  BIEEHGER

ERESREE
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29. BORROWINGS (continued)
Other borrowings (continued)

Certain other borrowings included in the Group's
borrowings are secured by certain loan receivables held by
the Group with carrying value amount to HK$77,965,000,
bear interest of 8.75% per annum, and repayable within one

financial year from the end of the reporting period.

Included in the Group's borrowings are bank borrowings
and other borrowings, with carrying amount of
HK$31,802,000 and HK$74,605,000 (2019: HK$43,062,000
and HK$19,838,000) respectively which contain a
repayment on demand clause.

29.

BE (&)
HittfE& ()

BT AREEBEE 2 HMEEUREREF
S TERMEE A 77,965,0008 T 2 EUWE X
EHEIR - BB RIRF R ERLTIS%ETE - I
ARG AR —AMRFEANEE -

REEZEEBFEEREED B A 31,802,000
7 I 74,605,000 L( = F — N F-
43,062,000 7T } 19,838,000 7T ) Z $R1T15
BEREMEE  BREREREFETIEN -

2020 2019
—EZEF —E—hNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Total borrowings: BEBEE
Current Liabilities mENARE 148,104 118,117
Non-current liabilities SEmEAaE 42,964 37,681
191,068 155,798
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS UNDER

FINANCE LEASES

30. HEEE WEHEEE

2020 2019
—EEFE —ZThF
Obligation
Lease under finance
liabilities leases
HEAE REHERE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FATT
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BREBNDNE
Current liabilities mEEE 11,595 4,153
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 28,290 5,704
39,885 9,857

The Group leases various properties mainly as its office
and these lease liabilities were measured at net present
value of the lease payments during the lease terms that
are not yet paid. Extension options are included in a
number of property leases across the Group. Periods
covered by the extension options were included in the
lease terms if the Group was reasonably certain to exercise

the options.

The Group also leases certain of its motor vehicles,

machineries, office premises and warehouses.

Lease liabilities (2019: obligations under finance leases)
have lease terms range from 1.5 to 5 years (2019: 3 to 5
years). Interest rates underlying all lease liabilities (2019:
obligations under finance leases) are fixed ranging from
1.41% to 4.40% per annum (2019: 1.40% to 4.14% per
annum) at respective contract dates. None of the leases
include contingent rentals.

ZIKE@TH EETYE FEERPRE %

LHEABREBRNARNEEN R FEE
E‘I’E REEZEYERERBLERERE
o MAEESERESTHFELEREREE
At RiBREFREFTRE MR AREA -

AEBETEES TAE - #K - ROEWE
RRE -

HEBE(CZZ—hF:  mERESRE) 2
HA 1. 5i5$(:5§—n¢ e )t
FEHEER(ZE—NF: EHESHE)
Za‘*IJPKEA A ,i@ HHETEAESFI14%E
4.40% (ZFE—NF : BF1.40%ZE4.14%) °
Ei%a‘*ﬂiaffﬁﬁ,ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ o
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30. LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS UNDER
FINANCE LEASES (continued)

30. HEAE WMEAESE(E)

Present value of

Minimum minimum lease
lease payments payments
REHESR EEHENRZRE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—E-RE —_T-NF ZBIBFE —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHT TERT TET
Lease liabilities HEAR(ZZ—N&F:
(2019: obligations under MEMERMT
finance leases payable) JERFIR)
Within one year —FR 13,011 4,478 11,595 4,153
Within a period of more AE—FL R
than one year but not THEBmF
more than two years 11,340 3,647 10,388 3,485
Within a period of more HEIMEL LB
than two years but not THBLF
more than five years 18,821 2,260 17,902 2,219
43,172 10,385 39,885 9,857
Less: future finance charges o ARBMEEA (3,287) (528) N/ABEAR N/ATER
Lease liabilities e E T
(2019: present value MEEFZHRE)
of lease obligations) 39,885 9,857 39,885 9,857
Less: Amounts due for W Tl ARFEE
settlement within e O =TT
twelve months MBAEET)
(shown under current
liabilities) (11,595) (4,153)
Amounts due for settlement +TZARKIHER
after twelve months 7 = 28,290 5,704

Lease liabilities (2019: obligations under finance leases) for
motor vehicles and machineries are effectively secured by
the underlying assets as the rights to the leased assets
would be reverted to the lessor in the event of default of

repayment by the Group.
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31. DEFERRED TAX 31. EEHIE

UTAAEEREMRBEFERRAZEE
EENR (BB EEREEE -

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised by the Group and the movements thereon,

during the current and prior years.

Fair value
adjustments
arising from
acquisition  Accelerated
of tax Tax loss
subsidiaries depreciation and others Total
WEHELR
Eixz BIEEE
DNFERE MEBHEFE REAM e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET FET FET
At 1 April 2018 RZF—-N\FHA—H o (28,098) 4,778 (23,320)
Credited (charged) to A (k) B
profit or loss 100 (4,404) 5,285 981
Acquisition of == NG
subsidiaries (1,984) - — (1,984)
At 31 March 2019 and R_E—H4F
1 April 2019 = A=l
—E-NEMA—H (1,884) (32,502) 10,063 (24,323)
Acquisition of s B B 8 2 )
subsidiaries 327 - - 30
Credited to AR
profit or loss 396 1,197 6,015 7,608
At 31 March 2020 R-B-2F
EEET= (1,161) (31,305) 16,078 (16,388)
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31. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 31. EEBE(E)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$89,421,000 (2019: HK$87,773,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of HK$64,279,000
(2019: HK$60,988,000) of such losses. The management of
the Group assessed the future cash flows of the
subsidiaries of the Group with reference to the machinery
hire agreements and in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, taxable profit will be probably available against
which the unused tax losses can be utilised in the
foreseeable future. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the remaining HK$25,142,000
(2019: HK$26,785,000) due to unpredictability of future
profit streams. All tax losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances

for financial reporting purposes:

RmEBKR AEBADABEEIR
89,421,000 7t (== — /L 4F : 87,773,0007%
7o) AL AR HEARIORA - WE KRB BEEE
e R R JE B 1B B EE 64,279,000 T ( = F
—JLEF + 60,988,000787T) - AEEERBL
SLERWARBRETAEBWB AT 2K
RESRE MARAEZRAE  ERNE
G BB S A A T R AR R AT B A 2 R &)
FAFRTEESIE - AR ICHE A 8 LATER) - #E
£ 5L 8 125,142,000 T ( —Z T — I F -
26,785,000 70 ) ERIEETHIEEE - FT A
TRIAE B A MR B Ak g o

AT EIIA T B8R E B 69w 2 BT IR
REERDAT

2020 2019

—EIEF —ZE-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FETT

Deferred tax assets EEFRTBEE 10,014 3,913
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE E (26,402) (28,236)
(16,388) (24,323)
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32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES

As set out in Note 44, the Company issued convertible
notes with aggregate principal amount of HK$213,000,000
as the purchase consideration for the acquisition of equity
interests in Hao Tian Credit on 31 January 2020.

The convertible notes have a maturity date of 3 years from
the date of issue (i.e. 30 January 2023), bear interest rate
of 5% per annum, and are payable at each anniversary year
of issue in arrear (the “Convertible Notes”). The
Convertible Notes contain a right to convert at a maximum
of 608,571,428 shares of the Company at the conversion
price of HK$0.35 per share. Unless previously converted or
purchased or redeemed, the Company would redeem the
Convertible Notes on the maturity date at the redemption
amount which was 100% of the principal amount of the

Convertible Notes then outstanding.

The Company may at any time before maturity and from
time to time redeem the Convertible Notes (in whole but
not in part) at the principal amount of such Convertible
Notes together with unpaid interest accrued up to the

date of such early redemption.

Since the exercise of conversion option embedded in the
Convertible Notes would result in settlement by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash for a fixed number of
shares of the Company, the embedded conversion option
was therefore accounted for as an equity instrument. The
aggregate principal amount of HK$213,000,000 from the
issue of the Convertible Notes had been split into liability
and equity components. On the issue of the Convertible
Notes, the fair value of the Convertible Notes, the liability
component and the residual value being equity
component were determined as approximately
HK$209,322,000, HK$145,186,000 and HK$64,136,000
respectively, based on the valuation by Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuers. The liability component was carried as financial
liability at amortised cost until extinguished or conversion.
The carrying amount of the conversion option credited to

equity was not re-measured in subsequent periods.

32. ABRRERE

WA A4FRE - KRBT F—RA=+—
H - ARRQaEFEITA LB 5213,000,000 4
T ABBRER  ERUEEREEREZ
BERE -

RRER 2 FE B AT B AR 3E (AP
_7__¢ A=1+8) BREFNEK%5
B WEARSERITEF B ([ARKRE
TJ?;J) o A Tﬁkﬁﬁ%’%ﬁéﬂ—ﬁﬂﬁﬂx%’iﬂx
0.35/8 7T A #2 5% % 608,571,428 f% 78 A &) f%
7o BRIESLAIEEE  BERER - TAIK

AR EIE B IREER TR R E R
BB AN £ %8 100% 2 & 0] & %A 08 0] AT A AR 22
% e

ARB R REH B ATRER R AR R A AR R
BEACRERRNAERNERD RN REER
BB 2 & (MIERED ) AR -

fE

HRITE AT AR RIEA 2 HRBRE RSB IAE
BRCHMBARREREROMEN  BAS
BMREARY AR TR - FITARKRER
27 & 48 213,000,0008 LB 2 ABERKE
mEbD - RIBBUBEXSBERMGEEMITES
BRHE AR AR ZAE - RETAREERE
BESREREZ AFE  BEHD KRR
EBE(MERED) D RIEE &%) 209,322,000
P& T ~ 145,186,000/ 7T K 64,136, OOO?%T_I: 2
BEHDRBHENAARISERARE
ERIEREBRBIE o 5T ARES Z}ﬁ‘ﬁxﬁézﬁ%
EETENERAMENTE -
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32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 32. TTEREE(E)
On 10 February 2020, the Company early redeemed the NZZE_FTF A +H ARRIREBERAEE
Convertible Notes in the aggregate principal amount of BFEAFELELDBARAIELASARE A
HK$13,000,000 pursuant to the redemption notice issued 13,000,000/ 70 Z AT R & - N A RN B
to the Noteholder. The Company recorded a gain on =515 B | A AR R AR 2 W& 49 653,000 78
redemption of convertible notes of approximately JC °
HK$653,000 in profit or loss.
The movements of the liability component and equity FA - RREB BB RERHD 2
component of the Convertible Notes during the year are gHun
as follows:
Liability Equity
component component
of of
Convertible Convertible
notes notes Total
THRREE TREREE
ZEEHY ERE¥D e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
As at 1 April 2019 RZZE-NFHA—H - 5 -
Issue of the Convertible Notes BITRRRER (M5 44)
(Note 44) 145,186 64,136 209,322
Effective imputed interest expense ERABREENERAX
recognised 4,321 B 4,321
Early redemption IR RIEE ] (13,000) = (13,000)
Repayment of interest expense EBENERY (296) = (296)
Gain resulted from early redemption TR (653) = (653)
As at 31 March 2020 RZZE-ZTF=HA=1+—H 135,558 64,136 199,694

212 annual Report &% 2019/20



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

e R R M
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32. TTERREE(E)

2020

—EEF

HK$'000

FET

Current — included in accruals, deposits B — AR ER  EliRER

received and other payables (Note 27) H b e 5108 (M aE27) 3,610

Non-current — convertible notes payable ERE) — AR EE 131,948

Liability component of Convertible Notes AREERzaEHSlD 135,558
Effective imputed interest on the Convertible Notes was T HRY E i > TR ) S T R B A R
calculated using the effective interest method by applying SFEIR T ERREFZR18.48%FE19.85%:1E o

the average effective interest rate ranging from 18.48% to

19.85% per annum.
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 33. EEHELEEBZHER
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Non-cash changes

FREED
Gain on Purchase
As at Financing Redemption Initial  of property As at
1 April Financing cost  Acquisition  of Convertible application Plant and 31 March
2019 cashflows  recognised  of subsidiary notes  of HKFRS 16 Machinery 2020
ERER
R=F-0¥ BE BER ROT&RE FREE®RE  BENE.  R-FCEE
mMA-A ReRE BERT  WENELR REzkE  RUE16% BER®E =A=1-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL Tin Tin T ThL TET AL Tin
(Note)
(B3t
Borrowings =1 155,798 (14,808) 8,574 41,504 - - - 191,068
Lease liability/Obligation  HE&(E/BEHE
under finance leases Bff 9,857 (8,333) 1,040 - - 71 31,284 39.885
Amount due to an R —RRAERAR
intermediate holding £
company 4,290 (4.243) o 253 a x - 300
Amounts due tofellow  ERRZHBARFE
subsidiaries 5034 (1,392) - 1,590 - - - 5232
Amount due toadirector  ER—ZEZHE 7434 7433 5 2 E = - 1
Loan from a director RE—4E2ZER 70000 (10,000 i = & = - 60,000
Accrual-interest payable  EFTE:FIE 2,084 1.8%) 5025 = 1) = B 4,798
Convertible notes payable [EfTATARER & (13,000 - 145,186 (239) = - 131,948
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33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 33¢

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

METBMELEGEZHER(E)

Non-cash changes

FREED

Purchase of

As at Finance property, Share As at
1 April Financing cost plant and issue 31 March
2018 cash flows recognised equipment costs 2019
RZB-N\F MmE ERR BEME RZZ-hE
mA—-A BeRE MEHA BERZE ROBOEE Z=A=t-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT TAL TAT AT AT

(Note)

(PsE)
Borrowings tE 165,271 (83,760) 6,148 18,139 | 155,798
Obligation under finance leases BEMRESR 12,681 (4.553) 317 1412 L 9857
Amount due to an intermediate JER— R R = 4,290 = P o 4,290

holding company NGIE

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries  JE 7 2t B B FIE 260 4774 ~ = - 5,034
Amount due to a director EN—ZEEHE = 7434 < = & 7434
Loan from a director RE—ZEZZER 40,000 30,000 = - il 70,000
Accrual-interest payable [ER T FI S 734 = 1,350 = - 2,084
Accrual cost of right issue A% 2 FERtA AR - (1,019 - - 1,019 5

Note: The cash flows represent the proceeds from new borrowings
advanced from/repaid to related companies, and repayment of
loan/loan from a director, repayment of borrowings, lease
liabilities/obligations under finance leases, amount due to a
director, payment of interest and payment of convertible notes
payable.

i : RERBIEFEEMSIA KABERRZR
R MAEARER  HEER RE—RESR
ZER EREE HEAE MEBREEE.
RN —REEFR - FISNFRARENATBRER
B
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. BA&
Number Share
of shares capital
RGO EE @S
Thousand
shares HK$'000
TR TBT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each BREECO BT EMAR
At 1 April 2018, 31 March 2019, RZE-N\FHA—HB -
1 April 2019 and 31 March 2020 —2-NF=A=+—8"
—E-NFHA-BAK
—E-TF=A=+—H 20,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HFREEC. BT LB
At 1 April 2018 RZE—-—N\FMHA—H 2,400,000 24,000
Issue of shares by right issue on RZZE-N\FNANLBER
9 August 2018 (Note (a)) HHAREATAR D (2L (a) 1,200,000 12,000
Issue of shares on 15 February 2019 A =l e s ]
(Note (b)) BT (KI5 (b)) 550,000 5,500
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 i s e S e =
==l S 4,150,000 41,500
Issue of consideration shares on RZE-NFNA=TRHET
30 August 2019 (Note (c)) RERD (3 () 275,862 2,759
Issue of emolument shares on RZZE—NFNLARBET
6 September 2019 (Note (d)) B <& A% 15 (BT 3E (d)) 2,022 20
At 31 March 2020 R-B-_BF=A=+—8 4,427,884 44,279
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Note (a):

Note (b):

Note (c):

Note (d):

On 25 June 2018, the Company proposed a 1-for-2 rights issue.
The rights issue was completed on 9 August 2018 and
1,200,000,000 shares were issued for a total cash consideration
(before expenses) of HK$180,000,000. HK$899,000 professional
fee was incurred as direct attribute cost.

On 17 December 2018, the Company proposed to issue
550,000,000 shares for the settlement of the acquisition of 4.05%
interests in China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited.
The issuance of shares was completed on 15 February 2019 and
550,000,000 shares were issued.

On 30 August 2019, the Group completed the acquisition of
assets with appraised value of approximately HK$84,300,000,
which was satisfied in full by the allotment and issue of the
275,862,069 consideration shares by the Company. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 12
July 2019 and 30 August 2019.

On 6 September 2019, 2,021,563 shares were issued to Mr. Gao
Zhangpeng (“Mr. Gao") according to the terms and conditions
of the service contract with Mr. Gao as emolument shares
("Emolument Shares”) for his appointment as the chief
executive officer of the Company, Mr. Gao has resigned as the
chief executive officer with effect from 31 August 2019. For
details of the Emolument Shares and the resignation of Mr.
Gao, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
28 February 2019 and 30 August 2019 respectively.

34. BRAR(E)

FiEE (a)

FRE (o) :

ML (o) :

BIRE(d) :

RZBE—NFANAZ1+HB ' XAAIE=HN
ZH-EHEETHRR  HBRRZZE-NAEN
AR B 3217 1,200,000,000 B% B {5 -
& @A E(BRFSZAT) 4180,000,0007 7T
ERELZEEEF899,000/8 T AEEEMN
DN

RZT—N\EF+ZA++tH  NAREHHE
47 550,000,000 % B {5 » LA A< Uk B e B 1L 2]
BERSBEBEBRARZ4.05%KE8 o R
TRZ=ZFE—NF=-A +HhBEK: BT
550,000,000 A& A& 1n -

RZT—hENA=TH  AEEZKKE
EHEHEEA 84,300,000 8T 2 EE * BAR
A VAR 2% K 2517 275,862,069 A& (KB % {7 B 2L
B ¥BERLHEAARBHAE=-T—NLF
tATZARZE-NENA=THZRE -

RZZE—NFNAKRAB ' 2021563 KHE
ERESEREE(RELE]D I REE
HZERREGBITTREE  (EREEE
FEARRARITHBAKZIEZ M<K ([
ERG))  BEALEBRETRER A=
—NENA=Z+—BRER - BEAMSKRND
kErEBEZHE A2HARFBHS
ME_T—NF_A=-+\BRZT—NF
N H=SEE
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 35. RO ZAHNRS

Shareholders of the Company have approved and
adopted a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 23
October 2015.

A summary of the Scheme is set out as below:

The Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 23 October 2015. Under the Scheme, the
directors of the Company shall, in its absolute discretion
select, make an offer to any eligible participants to
subscribe for shares of the Company at a subscription
price being not less than the highest of (i) the closing price
of shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange'’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; or (i)
the average closing prices of the shares of the Company
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; or (iii) the nominal value of the share on the offer
date. The offer of a grant of options may be accepted

within seven days from the date of the offer grant.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time
under the Scheme together with options which may be
granted under any other share option schemes for the
time being of the Company must not in aggregate exceed
10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
date of the approval of the Scheme.

No options have been granted since the adoption of the

Scheme.
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 36.

The Group as lessor

The Group sub-leased vacant space of its leased
warehouse and leased and sub-leased its owned and
leased machinery under operating lease agreements.
Income earned from the leasing during the year is
HK$102,997,000 (2019: HK$97,541,000). Leases are
negotiated on a monthly basis.

The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable

operating leases are as follows:

ReHERH
FEBEHBHAA

AEBRECEHERZSHEASSEMN
TETH CYHEREHESE RHEEH
oo RAFE - HEMBUAR 102,997,000
B (T —F : 97,541,000/87L) - HE
P& AT AR e

RETATHELEHENRER S RUIR
LI

2020 2019

—B-BF _TNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Not later than one year TER—F 5,175 1,616
Later than one year and not later BR—FERTNERME

than two years 4,027 -
Later than two years and not later EBRMERTER=F

than three years 3,114 =

12,316 1,616
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36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT (continued)

36. BREHERH(E)

The Group as lessee AEBRABEA
As at 31 March 2019, the Group had commitments for RIE—NWE=ZA=+—8  XEBETH
future minimum lease payments under non- cancellable HEEHEE T ARREEEENFEE 2
operating leases which fall due as follows: HERWAT :
2019
—NF
HK$'000
FHETT
Within one year —&=5y 924
In the second to fifth year inclusive REZFERF(RREEREMT) 36
960
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by REHENTEAEERNLE BEYE

the Group for office, warehouse property and certain of its
machineries. Leases are negotiated for a period of one to
three years and rentals are fixed at the time of entering

the respective leases.

RETHRENZES - a‘*ﬂ,%\,%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@%,ﬁﬁ
—E2=F MBS INEEREEREE

37. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 37. EXREE
2020 2019
—_ 7 —_ E'E _j_LE'E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of addition BEARNEWME « FE M&ERN
of property, plant and equipment =¥
— contracted for but not provided in — BRIAVBRERE IS sRER+
the consolidated financial EENE
statements 11,430 19,253
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group entered BE_T_TF-_A=+—HILFE £&
into an investment agreement in respect of investment in B E —HP ARG EwE  FE
a company in PRC amounted to RMB10,000,000. The AR #10,000,000 7T ° :#Z k12 R RS EA
agreement was subsequently cancelled after the end of RIBZTEY o

the reporting period.
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38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in funds under the control of an independent trustee.
Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the MPF
Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions. Except for voluntary
contribution, no forfeited contribution under the MPF
Scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in
future years. The cap of contribution amount is HK$1,500

per employee per month.

The retirement benefits schemes contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represent contributions paid or payable to the
funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the

schemes.

The contributions paid and payable to the MPF Schemes
by the Group are disclosed in notes 9 and 11.

38. RIRERIFHE

spiE st Bl RIBRBIE AR S E ERHIE
BREMELAEEEERERL - BERFTEIZE
EBVNAKEZEE BB FEAES
ZEERA - REBVEEE BEMES
YRS BIRARIFTA Z tE R AT & 5t 8]t
R AEBEERBESH B ZEREERE
T 2K - RiIgRBESF S - FREREE
BN RARKEFRETEE AT ERUKE KA
REREN X - HEREEEAELHA
TSR LR 1,500787T

Hoeia s 5t 8l e 2 RIKEAE BIHRE
FAEBR@LEMEEmKRERPIR  HER
AEBZFERATR L EENKENE
TZHK e

AEBEN R EMRESFTE 2 B
9O MBHTEE 11 IHEE -
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39. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. EXEmER

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements except for certain subsidiaries engaged in
securities and futures dealings and broking, which are
regulated by the Hong Kong Securities and Futures
Commission (the “SFC").

During the year, the subsidiaries of the Group which are
subject to minimum capital requirements imposed by
respective regulatory authorities, complied with all the

minimum capital requirements.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
include the borrowings, loan from a director, obligation
under finance leases and equity attributable to owners of

the Company, comprising share capital and reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure by
considering the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. In view of this, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redemption
of existing debt. The Group's overall strategy remains

unchanged throughout the year.
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40. €@ T A

Categories of financial instruments TRMIACZESR
2020 2019
—EBC8F —ThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Financial assets at amortised costs: REBHERAIRZERMEE *
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H At EYGRIE 63,595 85,164
Finance lease receivables R E FH S e EE 7,110 14,005
Loan receivables EUE R 363,066 163,305
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries B E NG e 5,134 11,283
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITER 5,000 4,654
Bank balances, trust and IRITEERR - EENBYRP
segregated accounts 19,720 7,266
Bank balances and cash RITESR KRS 220,295 129,543
Financial assets at fair value through  LIAFEFEEHS{LABREZ
profit or loss: TREE
Listed equity instrument rhEET A 117,442 114,376
Unlisted debt instrument FEMEKIA 12,384 =
813,746 529596
Financial liabilities at amortised costs: REBEF AR ERERE :
Trade and other payables B 5 KA M E TRIE 48,747 31,622
Amount due to a director BN —RESHIE 1 7434
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries G ANIEE = PNGIE e 5,232 5,034
Amount due to an intermediate B —E A R A R FUE
holding company 300 4,290
Borrowings ER=t 191,068 155,798
Obligations under finance leases MEMERE - 9,857
Loans from a director RKE—REFZEXR 60,000 70,000
Convertible notes payable FE S RIHRIR R AR 131,948 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 39,885 2
477,181 284,035
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. SRITHE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREAREEEERBE

The Group’s major financial instruments include finance
lease receivables, trade receivables, other receivables and
deposits, other non-current assets, loan receivables,
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, trust and segregated accounts,
bank balances and cash, financial asset at fair value
through profit and loss, trade payables, accruals, deposits
received and other payables, amounts due to a director
and related companies, borrowings, lease liabilities/
obligations under finance leases, loan from a director and
convertible notes payable. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.
Currency risk

Certain transactions of the Group are denominated in
currencies which are different from the functional
currencies of the group entities and therefore the Group is
exposed to foreign currency risk. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the management of the Group monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign

currency exposure if necessary.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency

denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at

the end of reporting period are as follows:

40. EMIE(E)

TREREEEERBE(B)

Ewmk(E)

EHR - AEBELSNEFENEEEE
REBAEMEREREDT

Assets Liabilities
BE =K

2020 2019 2020 2019
“F-RF —ZE-hF -BTRF T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET FHET FAT
Japanese Yen (“JPY") RIE((HE] 10,860 9,569 (134) (9,280)
Euro Dollars ("EURQ") BT ([ER 7T ) 853 5,543 (176) (145)
Macau Pataca BFITT 341 353 — -
Renminbi AREE 346 118 (899) =
United States Dollars ("USD") 7t ([ 37t ]) 12,539 19,064 (13) (525)
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. €I A(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the sensitivity of the Group to
8%, 9% and 8% increase and decrease in HK$ against the
JPY, EURO and USD (2019: 8%, 9%, 8%) respectively. 8%,
9%, and 8% are the sensitivity rates used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of
the possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for 8%, 9%
and 8% change in foreign currency rates. A positive/
negative number below indicates an decrease/increase in
post-tax profit (2019: increase/decrease in post-tax loss)
where the relevant currencies strengthen 8%, 9% and 8%
against HKS$. For 8%, 9% and 8% weakening of the relevant
currencies against HK$, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the post-tax profit (2019: post-tax
loss).

TREREEREERBE(E)

Ewmk(E)

BRI T

TROPEIAEEETH AR - BTkE
TTHEREZES% 9% K8w(—E—NF:
8% ~ 9% . 8% ) HI B JE ° 8% ~ 9% K 8% 5=
A BETEA 8 REHIE R HME | b B 52 F 8
FRELLE - KREEEH T LR EX
HEFTE - FUREDITEBEAREE A
BHEMNE®IAR  YAEREHRMELIZ
8%~ 9% M BHHVE KB ENMEHTHE - TRK
E/BBRTERFBERLBETIHES
9% R 8% E R LR AR A B IN(=ZF
—NEF: RBREBEREMNORD) 228 -
RERERLETRES% - 9% R8%ME
HASBRHRZEMN(ZE—NF : RERRE
BIELRFREARNTE -

2020 2019

—B-BRF _—TNF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHER T

JPY against HK$ HE X AT 717 19
EURO against HK$ BT H BT 51 406
USD against HK$ ETTHABTT 837 1,238

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the currency risk
as the exposure at the end of the reporting period does

not reflect the exposure during the year.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group is exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-rate
borrowings, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
due to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of the banks’ respective
HK$ Best Lending Rate from the Group’s borrowings
denominated in HK$.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group is also exposed
to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate loan
from a director, fixed-rate borrowings and lease liabilities/

obligations under finance leases.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate hedging
contracts or any other interest rate related derivative
financial instruments. However, management monitors the
Group's related interest rate exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant interest rate exposure when

the need arises.

. SRTARE)

CREREERERREE(E)

MEER

RZE_TFERZF-NF=A=+—8 -
BHREAMGNEES AEEREERE
B BERROTERRBITERERE 2R
ENERER - AEEZBESRENERRERE
EEREAREEBITAHENEE PR 2R
THEBTREZEEFRMELIR ZKE o

R-B-TER-T-NE=A=+—H .
AEENEH AR E — AR B2 BRI EY
% EEAREEREEAE RAEES
ARMZ ATEFIRER -

RS 830 B BT SRR RS S AV S E AT E
FRBEOTESBTE - Ril > BEEE
T BRI AN B 2 AR R A R A R IS E B
B EREHEAFEERE
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. €I A(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to the variable-rate pledged bank
deposits, bank balances, borrowings at the end of the
reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. 100
basis points (2019: 100 basis points) increase or decrease
is used on variable-rate borrowings after considering the
impact of volatile financial market conditions. The directors
of the Company used 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis
points) for assessing interest rate risk on bank balances
because they considered that the fluctuations on interest

rate on bank balances would be less significant.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2019: 100 basis
points) higher/lower for variable-rate borrowings and lease
liabilities/obligations under finance leases and 50 basis
points (2019: 50 basis points) higher/lower for balances
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
pre-tax profit for the year ended 31 March 2020 would
have decreased/increased by HK$242,000 (2019: pre-tax
loss increased/decreased by HK$704,000).

The basis points change represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest

rates.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the interest rate
risk as the exposure at the end of the reporting period

does not reflect the exposure during the year.

228 Annual Report &% 2019/20

TREREERERBE(E)

FEmb(E)
HBE T

AT GUERE DT TIIRIEN IR ERRAT 2%
BEEMBITER  RITEH  (EERRE
E o T IBRRRHREMREREEZ SR
TARBRBAFERAEEMEE - &M
D100MEER (ZFT— L - 100EEEL) TY
REBTRTAKB ZZERANTRE
E o ARPEFEASOEREM(ZFT—N5F:
SOMEZES) URHARITESRZ M ERR - R
AR RERRBITHEBRZ AT ZBI TEK -

WEEEELRHEESE BEBEETZF
L EFH/TEKI00EES(ZZT—NF 100
EES) MEsRZ TR EF T K50 & 26
ZE—NF S0EER) MAABHEMES
REAE  AXEBEHE-_ZT_TF=H
=+ —RIEFEZBRBALEF RER L,
242,000 T (ZE—F - BREAE R
0,58 4> 704,000 7T )

ERSHHEEREUNE AL B
2 874 -

ARAREERR  ARBEHRARY TR
BRE A E R - R DT I AR F R
[\ B o



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2020, other than trade receivables, other
receivables and deposits, loan receivables, finance lease
receivables and bank balances and cash, whose carrying
amounts best represent the maximum exposure to credit
risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group arising from the
amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial

guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed in note 43.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the

consolidated statements of financial position.

The Group trades only with recognised and credit-worthy
customers with no requirement for collateral. It is the
Group's policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is

not significant.

40. EMIE(E)

CREREERERREE(E)

AR

RZBEZTF=A=+—H  BREEAEJR
EFRMEER 2 ZAEERR 2 E ZEYGK
1B HthEWRIE kRS  BRER - &
THERWRIE RIBITEBRIERIN - AE
EfERSERAEEEENBERZREA
EERBR B EAEBARE 2 HEERE
Bz ARBELE BEBIRHF43H

Ego

REERR  BHFHARBTEEMNSAE
ERXUBBRRzESEERRREGRS M
BARKRFAESIHECERCREE ZRE
=0

AEEERLRATACEERFCEPENTR
% - EBERD - ARERRSMBEBRIZE
RAAETRSZEPHABBERZER
FF e tbsh - R ER BRI A AR
B2 ERERILE TNEK o
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. €I A(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with pledged bank deposits and bank balances
since they are substantially deposited at creditworthy
banks and financial institution with no recent history of
default and good reputation. Management does not
expect that there will be any significant losses from non-
performance by these counterparties. The Group
considers these balances have low credit risk and the
amount of the loss allowance for impairment was

negligible.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the directors of the
Company have delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action are
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the directors
of the Company review the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and bills receivable at the end of each
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the credit risk
of the Group is significantly reduced.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Trade receivables

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group's historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished

between the Group's different customer bases.

The following tables provide information about the
Group's exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade
receivables as at 31 March 2020 and 2019:

40. EMIE(E)

TREREEEERBE(B)

FERE(E)
() EBEZEUFE

AEERASEN2HEREEBRL
CHAEESREGRZERER -
2HBEREEBRDERRGRE
- -mRAEEREEEBERBERLY
BRTITRAEPA Rz TRBEE -
BRBBEAMRR T ENBREE
TEEAKETREFEZ BIEE—

TREHABAEER_Z_FTFR
—F— W& =R = B s
ERRLESRUKAZEHERS
BER

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance

BB ER AREAE BRERE

(%) HK$’000 HK$’000

F&T TExT
Current ENER 6.2 18,201 1,133
1-30 days past due #HA1Z=30H 12.6 15,761 1,979
31-90 days past due #EI31 290 H 20.8 6,971 1,453
91-180 days past due BHEI91 £ 180 H 23.8 6,629 1,581
More than 180 days past due #1H 180 H A £ 83.2 16,356 13,601
At 31 March 2020 N=B=FTHF
=H=+—~H 63,918 19,747
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. SRITHE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREAREEEERBX (&)

(continued)

Credit risk (continued) EERR(E)
(i) Trade receivables (continued) () ESEWEE)
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TR IE = BEEARE EER A
(%) HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Current ENEA 5.8 9,249 537
1-30 days past due BMEI1E30H 12.0 11,727 1,405
31-90 days past due #EI31 =90 H 26.1 4,877 1,275
91-180 days past due BEI91 =180 H 37.9 2,425 918
More than 180 days past due #1H8180 H A E 46.6 18,307 8,539
At 31 March 2019 R-ZE—h&F
=H=+—A8” 46,585 12,674
Excluded from the above tables are ECLs for trade ERITEREeEFHEBE S RINGKIBEZE
receivables from cash clients of HK$82,000 (2019: HA{= B 518 82,0008 7T ( —F— 1.4 : 1,000
HK$1,000). BIT) °
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Other receivables and deposits

Other receivables and deposits mainly included or
comprised other receivables from related parties and
others. Management considered these receivables to
be low credit risk and thus the loss allowance
provision recognised was limited to 12 months
expected losses. For other receivables, amount due
from intermediate holding company, amount due
from fellow subsidiaries and amount due from a
director, there were no significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. The Group assessed the

expected credit loss to be immaterial.
Loan receivables

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, loan receivables of
HK$243,589,000 and HK$10,073,000 were past due.
The Group is exposed to credit risk in the event that
the loan borrowers fail to perform its obligation to
repay the amount in full. The management of the
Group takes active negotiation and follow-up action
to recover the loan receivables in order to minimise
the credit risk. In the opinion of the directors of the
Group, the risk of non-recoverability of the amount is
minimal, as the loan receivables were secured by
sufficient collateral which could recover the amount
of the loan receivables in case the loan borrowers fail
to perform its obligation. Details are set out in note
19.

40. EMIE(E)

CREREERERREE(E)

FERE(E)
(i) HMEEUFEREZE

(iii)

HpEW AN T EBEREH
BT R E ATy 2 B WA © B
BERRZEFRUABALEREFER
% - Hit - EERERREEA12(E
AERERRR - 2R EMWENKFIR -
FEN R EER R B RIR - AR A
BRARFEALER-—BESHIA
B Y16 7 58 LA SR 1= 5 B I R R E 4R
e ARERARBEEHEBRLTE
* o

ERE

RZZEZZEERZZF-NLE=A
=+—HB ' ERE 243,589,000 T
510,073,000 7T B 31 8 © fiw] & 3K A&
RAREBITHE2HEERBZES
AAEBEAZEERR AEEE
1 [ DATE IR AE 2 1T ik 7 I BR AR 2
TEANEEKRER B RKEEER
BREREK - NEEEERA - R
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Loan receivables (continued)

The following significant changes in the gross
carrying amounts of loan receivables contributed to
the increase in the loss allowances for the year ended
31 March 2020:

—  Origination of new loan receivables net of those
settled resulted in an increase in loss allowances
of HK$13,347,000

— Increase in amounts past due over 30 days but
within 90 days resulted in an increase in loss
allowances of HK$8,703,000.

— Increase in amounts past due over 90 days
resulted in an increase in loss allowances of
HK$18,717,000.

Finance lease receivable

In order to minimize the credit risk in relation to
finance lease receivables, credit limits and credit
terms granted to customers are approved by
delegated officers and follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In this regard, the directors
of the Company consider that the credit risk of the
Group is significantly reduced. Except for the finance
lease receivable is credit-impaired, which are
assessed for impairment individually, the remaining
finance lease receivable is grouped under a provision
matrix based on industry types, the historical past

due information and lessees’ creditworthiness.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the operations of the Group and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of borrowings and ensures

compliance with loan covenants.

In addition, certain subsidiaries of the Company is
regulated by SFC and is subject to certain requirements
under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources)
Rules and accordingly, the Group has to monitor the
liquidity of this subsidiary to ensure compliance with the
relevant rules. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding from major financial institutions to meet its

liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment on
demand clause are included in the earliest time band
regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-
derivative financial liabilities are based on the agreed
repayment dates. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

forward interest rates at the end of the year.

40. EMIE(E)

EREREEREBRREE(E)

RBE TR

AEBBBEETTRRE MRS SEYER
REEERR/ENENAEESE ZKFE
ErnEchR  WRRERSREKE
FE EEEREDREENBRLBRRE
TR o

gHN - RRBETHBRRZEEERE
WEETES RS (MRER) RRIAETE
THRE Bt AEERERBEMBARZ
MEBESMN - AERTEHERRBRE - A%
BZBREETHERERDESTER - U
EREARTENRSFHELE T 20 HH
BRECHAREERE  NWENEERS
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BENARMRRERENRE A HAMGIE
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. SRITHE (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies cREAREEEERBX (&)

(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRER(E)
Weighted More than More than Total
average  Within one one year twoyears  contractual
effective ~ yearoron butlessthan but less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand two years five years cash flow amount

it 32 —FH0R —FiE WENLE  BRRER
EBRNZ FEER  EWEUR BRENR REREBAR REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
iR TER AR AR FAR

At 31 March 2020 R-2-BFZA=+-H
Trade payables BHENTUR N/ATEA 36,535 = = 36,535 36,535
Accruals, deposits received and E:ER  ERiRER

other payables Hi 708 N/ATEA 12,212 - - 12,212 12,212
Amounts due to related parties [EREEN AT N/ATEA 5,533 = = 5,533 5,533
Loans from a director RE—RES/EX 2.50 30,050 31,763 - 61,813 60,000
Borrowings EE 5.82 133,095 35,930 31,975 201,000 191,068
Convertible note payables ERARRERE 19.85 10,000 10,000 210,000 230,000 131,948
Lease liabilities HEBE 419 13,011 11,340 18,821 43,172 39,885

240,436 89,033 260,796 590,265 477,181
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. €T A(E)

Financial risk management objectives and policies CREREEEERBEK(E)
(continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESRERE(E)
Weighted More than More than Total
average Within one one year two years contractual
effective yearoron  butlessthan  but less than More than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand two years five years five years cash flow amount
il S| —FIAR —FUE MELE BOANE

ik FHEX  ERFAR BRFENUR LFNE BReRBER KA
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TAT TEL TAT TAT

At 31 March 2019 RZB-hE=A=t-H
Trade payables ZHERTE N/AZNER 14,009 ¢ = - 14,009 14,009
Accruals, deposits received and ~ [E:HER » B E R

other payables HiENFE N/AZNER 17,613 = = = 17,613 17,613
Amounts due to related parties  [EfT 1 AIFUE N/AZNER 16,758 = = - 16,758 16,758
Loan from a director RE—ZEEET 2.00 41,600 31,200 - - 72,800 70,000
Borrowings B 409 91,010 38,277 3091 3,841 164,039 155,798
Obligation under finance lease ~ BIETAEEMT 347 4478 3,647 2260 - 10,385 9857

185,468 73,124 33,171 3,841 295,604 284,035

Financial guarantees issued it 2 A ERR

Maximum amount quaranteed ~ ER 7 AL E N/AT A 10,170 - - = 10,170 -
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= ElIES

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40. €@ I A (&)
Financial risk management objectives and policies CREREEEERBEK(E)
(continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEBE SRR (E)
Borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are REBBFEFTIGEHNEEFT A L EE A
included in the “on demand” time band in the above Dz [REX] BHEEGE - R_T_TF
maturity analysis. As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the RZZ-NF=A=+—RH  ZEREHK
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these BRIR RN & #8585 Rl 49 45 106,407,000 7% 7T &
borrowings amounted to approximately HK$106,407,000 62,900,000 7T © &t RAEBE AR -
and HK$62,900,000 respectively. Taking into account the AAREZHEEHFTRAIGESITELBRE
Group's financial position, the directors of the Company IAESKENRFER « ARREERR *ﬁﬁﬂf
do not believe that it is probable that the lenders will FEERER BEARTERER B EERE -
exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate RIZTEHIE KB ﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬁi&*‘]%fﬁimﬁﬁk
repayment. The directors of the Company believe that HIEATR -
such loans will be repaid in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements and the
principal and interest cash outflows according to the
scheduled repayment dates are set out as follows:
Weighted More than ~ More than Total
average  Within one one year but two year but contractual
effective ~ yearoron  lessthan  lessthan  More than undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate  demand  twoyears  fiveyears  fiveyears  cash flow amount
MEF —FHR -FHE RENUL ANARR
{7l FEER EWFEAR BRENR  EFENE REREAR REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR A TER THER TER TER
Borrowing (EL
At 31 March 2020 RZ2-%%
SH==H 6.74 83914 12,634 15,462 - 112,010 106,407
At 31 March 2019 RZZ-NE
SHE 5.04 21916 17,843 24,255 3,841 67,855 62,900
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Equity price risk

The management would manage its exposure arising from
these investments by closely monitoring the performance
of respective listed equity security and market conditions.
The management would consider diversifying the portfolio

of these investments as they consider appropriate.

The sensitivity analysis on equity price risk includes the
Group's financial instruments, which fair value or future
cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in their
corresponding or underlying asset’s equity price. If the
prices of the respective listed equity instruments had been
10% higher/lower, profit (2019: loss) for the year would
increase/decrease (2019: decrease/increase) by
HK$11,744,000 (2019: HK$11,438,000).

10% (2019: 10%) change in price represents the directors
of the Company’s assessment of the reasonably possible

change in price.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the Group was exposed to
concentration risk on the listed equity investments
included in financial assets at FVTPL as they comprise
equity shares issued by several companies listed in Hong

Kong.

. SRTARE)

CREREERERREE(E)

RAEE R

EEEREETYEZE EMBRAES 2 RE
EMRAAEREREZEFRE AR - B2
EXNERBEERERZTZEREZ
e o

BABERRRBBESTEEAEE S
MTA EAFESKRIEERESHEAAR
SR EE 2 RAERE(LmKS - (HiEF
ST EZER L TE10% « AIA
FERM(ZT—NF : BEB) &M md
—NE R 180) 11,744,000 T
(ZZ—H%F : 11,438,000/87T) °

10% (ZZ—N5F  10%) BEREHR/EAR
EEmMHEERAIERENSEET) -

RZE_TFER_T-NE=A=1+—8
REEB EMRARE (GFANRAFEF=E
BEBFABRZeREE) AXEFRE
B REAERBEEETAES LMARME
T2 o
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

This note provides information about how the Group

determines fair values of various financial assets.

@i)

Fair value of the Group's financial instruments that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group's financial instruments are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. The following table gives information about
how the fair values of these financial instruments are
determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s)

and inputs used).

40. €MIAE(E)

EMTAZAFENE

A EREAEENTEETLSREREERN

TEOER -
() MERHEEBRATEHEZAEE

ERMIRAZAFRE

AEBETeRIANSRERRIEZ
RNFEFHE . TRERBRANTEE
ZEEMIT A2 AFEERIZMER
M ERM MEABR) 2B -

Significant Sensitivity of
Fair value Valuation techniques unobservable fair value
Financial assets Fair value as at 31 March hierarchy and key inputs input Range  totheinput
EARAHE AYEHBARE
SHEE REB=t-HZATE ATEGH  HERERIZAAHE aAgE B Z8RE
2020 2019
kb2 ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$000
TER TER
Listed equity 117,442 14376 Level Quoted prices in NIARER NATER NATER
instruments £ an active market
LTERTA WERMS 2 HiE
Unlisted debt 12,384 - Lewl3 Estimated based on the quoted  Discount for lackof ~ 15.80% 5% increase/decrease in discount rate
instrument s=a price of market comparable  marketability would result in decrease/increase
EITERTE companies By mEmEE in fair value by HK$1,136,000

FEMATALBAF BERE

TR L/ TR EEHATE
/011360008 T

Of the total gains and losses for the year included in
profit or loss, net gain of HK$28,036,000 (2019:
HK$17,927,000) relates to financial assets at FVTPL
held at the end of the current year. Fair value gains
or losses on financial assets at FVTPL are included in

‘other gains and losses'.

240 annal Report &% 2019/20

ST AEEm AR WS REBARES
F U7 25 28,036,000 L (=T — h4F -
17,927,000 70) BB AR F ERFFH 2 A
ATEFEEEZI G AER 2SR
EEMRRE - MATEF=BHF(LET
ANERZEMEE 2 AT ERELE
BErA [Etzs REE] -



Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring

basis (continued)
Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are
measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. The board of directors of the Company
has set up an investment committee, which is headed
up by the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and

inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group uses market-observable data to the extent
they are available. Where Level 1 inputs are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified
valuers to perform the valuation. The investment
committee works closely with the qualified external
valuers to establish the appropriate valuation
techniques and inputs to the model. The Chief
Financial Officer reports the investment committee's
findings to the board of directors of the Company
every half year to explain the cause of fluctuations in

the fair value of the assets and liabilities.

40. EMIE(E)

ERMIAZAREREE)

(i)

UEEMEERAFEHABRZAEE
ERMIRAZAFEGE)

R FEEEBRIGEBRE

AEBEBHBEERABRYBREE
WMEDAATFEFE  AARES
CERUEREZES HARAER
BHEEE UEELQATEEZE
B ERM R AR -

R EEXRABZAFER - A%
B ERAESZMSABRREIE - i
F—RBABEBETAR AXKEZR
EE=NAERMGEMETHE KR
EZB QR ERINE[REMZEEZS
TEARIE & 8 < fhE R R A &
B RIAABERBBERFERD
ZRA - ARV BEBSFFRAARE
EEeRmEREZBEZATHER -
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 40.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial instruments
that are measured at fair value on a recurring
basis (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value

measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial

SMIAE)

EMIAZAPEFEE)

() HERREEBATENEZSEE

EMIAZAFEGE)
RFERF

TRELAAEESRIAZ N FER
ERH

instruments:
As at 31 March 2020
R-ZB-EBF=A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—& EZH E=H #ar
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TFET TFHET FExT FExT
Listed equity instruments itz T B 117,442 - - 117,442
Unlisted debt instrument 3EETIERH T A - = 12,384 12,384
117,442 - 12,384 129,826

There were no transfer between levels in both years.
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

41.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments
(continued)

(ii) Fair value of the Group'’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair

value on a recurring basis

The management of the Group estimates the fair
value of its financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost using the discounted

cash flows analysis.

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated statement of financial position

approximate their fair values.
MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group entered
into a sale and purchase agreement in respect of purchase
of art works inventories of approximately HK$84,300,000
settled by issuance of 275,862,069 shares.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group entered
into finance lease arrangements in respect of purchase of
property, plant and equipment with a capital value at the
inception of the leases of approximately HK$37,244,000
(2019: HK$19,551,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group acquired
the entire equity interest of Hao Tian Credit. The
consideration was settled by the issuance of convertible
notes with principal amount of HK$213,000,000.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group further
subscribed for the subscription shares in a joint venture,
HT Riverwood Multi-Growth Fund at the amount of
approximately HK$32,639,000 settled by 22,985,000 shares
of Great Harvest Maeta Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3683).

e R R M

=osEa = e o e

40. EMIE(E)

ERMIAZAREREE)

(i) WHUAKEHEERQAFEFAEHES
EELREERERMABENATE

AEEEEREEFRAERREERED *ﬁ
HEHREHEK AT ENEHEER S
BEEZATE -

AEBERERR  HaUBilnE
FIARBHA RSB EREEN S
BAEENREERE N FERS

41. FEHFBRERS

BHE_ZT-_THF=A=1+—HLEE  £&&

E'J'E%,j%%(z@ 84,300,000 % 7T 2 17 i 17
BB B W - WiFE iR E 17275862069
BRAR 3 BT o

BHE_Z-_THF=-A=1+—HILEE  £&

EREEME  BERXEITVRERER
B RUEERKE2ERAEBENS
37,244,000 7T (ZZ — L4 : 19,551,000
JT) °

Iﬂﬁlﬁﬁ}zﬂﬂégiuﬁﬂﬂié i TJQEL/@?E T$$
#/3 213,000,000 & 7T 2 AR ZHEERT -

HE-Z-_TFE=A=1+—HILFE &%
HE— SRR E P HT Riverwood Multi-
Growth Fundz R B |k o £ B &
32,639,000 7T A 22,985,000 % 55 & Bk & 4%
IR BB AR (ARG RSR - 3683) BRI ELT °
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42. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. EXBBE RS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial BRIRE M MR EBIOFTIBEEN K&
statements, during the year the Group had the following ERFRNEBABRTETATEARS -

material transactions with related parties.

2020 2019
—EZBE _—_TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Property rental expense to [ LB A PR 2 =) (TS |) S AF

Profit Principle Limited VIR ERZ ()

(“Profit Principle”) (Note) 48 48
Director's loan interest expense BEEEXNERAX 704 1,350
License fee from Hao Tian Development [ 2 K% EUWEVFFFEE 855 -
Commission income from Hao Tian KEEXRERZASWA

Development 1,687 -
Note: Mr. Tang Yiu Chi James, being a director and a shareholder of izt - UM ESRBRRSBES A ENMARRAES -

Profit Principle, is also a director of the Company.
Compensation of key management personnel TEEEASNEHTH
The remuneration of directors and other members of key BE - ZFLK-_F—-—NF=A=+—H
management during the years ended 31 March 2020 and IFE EFNEMFEEEABNHD
2019 were as follows: IS
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FATT
Salaries, allowances and benefits 4 AL RERN 14,756 9,023
Retirement benefits scheme contributions & {Rf&F5H 24t 5% 134 124
14,890 9,147
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 &= =T =ZF=F=+—HILtFE

GUARANTEE

As at 31 March 2020, the Group provided guarantee
amounting to approximately HK$Nil (2019 HK$10,170,000)
to banks in respect of obligations under finance leases and
the Group's obligations under contracts with certain third
party customers. Under the guarantees, the Group would
be liable to make payments to the banks if the Group
failed to perform the relevant obligations to these
customers. As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, no provision for
the Group's obligations under the guarantee contracts has
been made as the directors of the Company considered
that it was not probable that the repayment of the finance
lease obligations were in default and it was not probable

that a claim would be made against the Group.
BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 31 January 2020, the Group acquired the entire equity
interests of Hao Tian Credit Company Limited (“Hao Tian
Credit"”) at the total consideration of HK$209,322,000,
which was satisfied in full by the issue of convertible notes
by the Company. Hao Tian Credit is a licensed money
lender under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Cap. 163 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and is principally engaged in
money lending in Hong Kong. The acquisition was made
with the aims to expand the Group's existing scale of

operation and enlarge the Group's market presence.

43.

44.

B

R-E_FF-A=+—H ' XEERE
HESERASERESTE =PI
ZAERMETZEERRTREERNTET
(ZZ—N% : 10,170,000 7T ) ° IRIEZF
BR - WASERGEETHHEZEEP 2
BMEME AEEARRTNEERE - R
“ERCEER-_FB AT
RARREZRAEEEREHESESTE
PRAEEBENOR T AR LS AT HAKE
EHZ RE A ARARARERERSOT
B LA -

EBavt

R-ZZE-ZF—A=+—H0 AEEKES
ReEBRAR(RXEE] 235E &
1B 209,322,000 7T 5 2N A &) 2517 Al #2i%
EREHEN RXREERBBEHIE 163
EMEANGOIFTAREZFHFEREA - EZR
ERENENEES - SERBEEEREALSE
ERAKEHAERRSAEETSEEEX -
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44. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 44. ¥BEHE(E)
The fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities Pk B o] s B8 2 R PR e B ERURE T
assumed at the completion date of acquisition are as HE Z AFENAT -
follows:
Fair values
RNFE
HK$'000
FAETT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 171
Deferred tax assets BEBHIAEE 327
Loan receivables U E 126,712
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AR F{EFHE B EE Lt ABiE 2
EREE 109,084
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments Hih U FRIE ~ e RFERIE 31
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEW R R FT 8 A RIFIA 554
Cash and cash equivalents ReKBREEEY 36,972
Other payables, receipt in advance and accruals ~ EfhfEFRIE « BRFIEREEA (698)
Borrowings BE (41,504)
Amounts due to intermediate holding companies JE{H EIEA% A 71518 (1,843)
Tax payables JERTARIA (2,183)
Net identifiable assets acquired by the Group AEBEPTNER R EEFE 227,623
Gain on bargain purchase =EBE KA (18,301)
Fair value of consideration satisfied by issue BRBETIRREBRENZREQTE
of convertible notes (Note 32) (Bf5¥32) 209,322
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition: UWWESEE £ 2 IR & AJFEE
Cash and bank balances acquired FrUsBEIR & R IR T 4S84 36,972
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BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

Note:

Gain on bargain purchase represents the excess of fair value of
consideration transferred at acquisition over the fair value of the identified
assets acquired and liabilities assumed for this acquisition. The gain
amount of HK$18,301,000 is recognised profit or loss for the year.

Since the acquisition date, Hao Tian Credit has contributed HK$2,819,000
and HK$29,419,000 to the Group's revenue and gain. Had the acquisition
occurred on 1 April 2019, the Group's revenue and gain for the year would
have been approximately HK$207,011,000 and HK$85,502,000 respectively
for the year ended 31 March 2020.

This pro forma information is for illustrative purpose and is not necessarily
an indication of revenue and the results of operations of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 April 2019, nor is it intended to be a projection of future results.

44.

EBaot(E)
it

ZEBBREEEBRTERREZATERBLEK
BRRREEHRNEERFAEABATEZZE - W
18,301,000/ L ERF N B R fER °

BB AR 2EXREREDHIARNEEGHRKA R
1 %5 2,819,000 7% 7T % 29,419,000/ 7T © i WER ==
—NENA-RET RAEEBEE-_Z_TF=H
=t+—RUEFEZFRBARKE D RIA A 207,011,000
77T K% 85,502,000 4 7T ©

EREHEEERERFBPRE  RUERRMGKEBR =F

—NEMA—BEK  AEEEBEMRE2WRARKLER
B T BHEREIRREAZ TR -
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. FENBATFE
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at NZE_ZEFR-_T-NF=RA=+—8"
31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows: RRATZEEZMBARIGENT

Proportion of

Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid issued share capital Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary registration share capital held by the Company  place of operations
MR, EETR FRARRECRT
WEAREMH it 2 BRRA RAEELH IERBREE LR
2020 2019
“R-%F —ENF
Crawler Krane Business British Virgin Islands  USD100 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding,
Limited' EBRBRES 100E7T Hong Kong
RARR  BE
Chim Kee Company Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 99.9% 99.9%  Construction machinery rental
Limited' &8 1,000,000/ 7T and trading and sales of
HRARAR construction materials,
Hong Kong
REHRMEE RHEN R
HEREMH  BA
Chim Kee Machinery Co., Hong Kong HK$1 99.9% 99.9%  Construction machinery rental
Limited' BB 18T and trading and sales of
HEMmAERAR" construction materials,
Hong Kong
RERBEERHEAR
HEREWH - BB
Chim Kee Transportation Hong Kong HK$1,200,000 99.9% 99.9%  Provision of machinery
Company Limited' &5 1,200,000/ 75 transportation services,
AR ERARAR Hong Kong
REENERRYE - B8
K'B Machinery Co., Limited"  Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0%  Construction machinery
B EBERAR BB BT trading and sales of
construction materials,
Hong Kong
BERMHERHEREDH
BB
Hao Tian International Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Futures brokerage business,
Futures Limited' &% 10,000,000/ T Hong Kong
EXERHERRAA! HERRXE B8
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. T EMBATFRE(E)
(continued)

Proportion of

Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid issued share capital Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary registration share capital held by the Company  place of operations
B3 E#TR FRARRACHRT
WELAREM w1 it 2 BRRE RAEELA TEXBREE T
2020 2019
“R-RE _FoE
Chim Kee Equipment Hong Kong HK$1 100.0% 100.0% Construction machinery rental,
Limited' BB 18T Hong Kong
ALREERAR BRERWEES - B
Hightion, Sociedade Macau MOP25,000 100.0% 100.0% Construction machinery rental,
Unipessoal Limitada’ B SRPIEE 25,000 7T Macau
PRE-ABRAA BEEWAE - R
K'B Crane Limited' Hong Kong HK$1,000 100.0% 100.0% Construction machinery
B ERERAR 90 1,000 7T trading, Hong Kong
BEBWHE B8
Solution Pro Investments British Virgin Islands  USD100 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding,
Limited' KERBRHS 1007 Hong Kong
REER BB
Glory Century Limited' Hong Kong HK$100 100.0% 100.0% Investment holding and
EAERAR BB 1007 provision of group
management and
administration services,
Hong Kong
REEBRARRHEEEERER
THR® - &S
K B Leasing Limited' Hong Kong HK$10,000 100.0% 100.0% Leasing, Hong Kong
RLHHERAR" EE 10,0007 HE - &4
Chim Kee Crane Company ~ Hong Kong HK$100 - 100.0%  Investment of leasehold land,
Limited' B 100/87T Hong Kong
AL EERARAR REMELH BB
Hao Tian International Hong Kong HK$100,000,000 100.0% 100.0% Securities brokerage business,
Securities Limited" & 100,000,000 7T Hong Kong
RRERBEFERDA BRERLE  BE
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. FEMBATFE(E)
(continued)

Proportion of

Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ fully paid issued share capital Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary registration share capital held by the Company  place of operations
R, BRITR FRARRACRT
WEAREMH it B BRRA RAEELH TEERRRE Y
2020 2019
“B°%F BF
Hao Tian Credit Company Hong Kong HK$200,000,000 100.0% - Money lending, Hong Kong
Limited' 0 200,000,000 7T WiE - BB
EXEEBRAR
Hao Tian International Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding,
Financial Holdings & 10,000,000/ 7T Hong Kong
Limited" REZR - B8
ERERCRERERAR"
Hao Tian International Hong Kong HK$2,000,000 100.0% 100.0% Money lending, Hong Kong
Finance Company &b 2,000,000 % 7T W EE
Limited'
ERERHBERRT]
Hao Tian Asset Management  Hong Kong HK$5,000,000 100.0% 100.0%  Provision of asset
Limited" &6 5,000,000/ 7T management service,
EREEERARRA Hong Kong
REEEEERS -
BB
SRR B E PRC RMB3,600,000 100.0% 100.0%  Investment holding, PRC
BRRA P ARH REER - hE
3,600,000 7T
1 Limited liability company 1 B ER AT
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company FRIBARREERRIETEREEE
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, BREENRNAFINELAR - RRAFEFER
principally affected the results or assets of the Group. To mOEREHMMEB AT CHFEEERANETB
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of RITK °

the directors of the Company, result in particulars of

excessive length.
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 46. AREZBMBMRRKRRE B
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

2020 2019
B8 —TNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHTB AR ZIKE 88,414 184,114
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB K& 182 112
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 401,424 =
490,020 184,226

Current assets REEE

Inventories FE 295 -
Prepayments AR 21 337
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E 404,293 406,731

Amount due from an intermediate JrE U — il AR e R A% R B F0E
holding company 26 =

Bank balances and cash RITEBR NS 13,128 20,679
417,763 427,747
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FEEtE B R E hFE ZIE 3,610 852
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE{ST BB A R FIE 28,108 8,110
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries FE R A B A RIIE 228 228
Amount due to the immediate JE A5 AR R B B FRIE
holding company - 1
Amount due to a director (Note) BN —RE S FHIE (M) 10,582 10,582
42,528 N3
Net current assets REBEEZEE 375,235 407,974
Non-current liability FRBEE
Convertible notes payable FE AT IR AR R 131,948 =
Net assets EEFEE 733,307 592,200
Equity R
Share capital A& 2K 44,279 41,500
Reserves s 689,028 550,700
Total equity RERBE 733,307 592,200
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46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 46. ARBZBHBMRR KRR (E)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: B EE

The amount due from the Company to a director is offset with the amount AAREMN—RESHEVER —RESEMN —EHB
due to a subsidiary by the same director. The net amount is presented on NEIFRIBARIESE - ERGEMBIRR N2 FIRFHE -
the consolidated statement of financial position as those amounts are RERZEFABGIRHLTHIRR - NEBEREE
subject to an enforceable offsetting arrangement that the Group currently BRRHIEN R HEZE SR FREERLEZ
has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and the intention to E5HE -

settle those amounts on a net basis.

Movement in the Company's reserves KNF 2 ERE
Share-
Convertible based Accumulated
Share Capital notes  payments losses
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
TR UROXA gif
R ERitE FERE  ERE BRRE @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET T T

At 1 April 2018 RZZ-/\¥IA—-A 169,724 6,291 - - (32.770) 143,245
Issue of right shares (net of BOERRN
direct attributable cost) (MBREREGRKE) 166,981 ' = - . 166,981
Issue of shares Ekh 198,000 48,950 - - = 246,950
Loss for the year FRER - - - - (6,476) (6,476)
At 31 March 2019 and R-F—NE
1 April 2019 ZB=t-BR
—E-h&mA-A 534,705 55,241 - - (39,246) 550,700
Issue of consideration shares BIRERG 82,759 - = = = 82,759
Issue of convertible notes BIARSE = - 64,136 = = 64,136
Share-based payments expenses WA % [ FUBRX S . R 737 - 737
Issue of emolument shares FMeRH "7 = & (737) . 20)
Loss for the year ENER i i N - (9,284) (9,284
At 31 March 2020 R-B-%F
SHEEF 618,181 55,241 64,136 - (48,530) 689,028
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47.

48.

For the year ended 31 March 2020 &=

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 2 April 2020, the Company entered into a share swap
agreement in respect of the subscription of 187,500,000
shares in Oshidori International Holdings Limited (stock
code: 622) settled by issuance of 625,000,000 shares of the
Company.

On 24 April 2020, the Company adopted a Share Award
Scheme under which the maximum number of award
shares may be granted is limited to 10% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in
issue as at the date of an offer is made. As of the date of
this report, 26,274,929 Award Shares had been granted

and remain outstanding.

Since the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019
("COVID-19") in January 2020, the prevention and control
of the COVID-19 has been going on throughout the
country. Subject to the development and spread of
COVID-19 subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
further changes in economic conditions may have an
impact on the financial results of the Group, the extent of
which could not be estimated as at the date of these
financial statements. The Group will keep continuous
attention on the situation of the COVID-19 and proactively
take action with an attempt to minimise its impact on the

Group's financial position and operating results.

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the directors on 26 June 2020.

47.

48.

e R R M

=osEa = e o e
wREHRER

R-ZZE-_ZTFMA=A - $Q7J¢%h
3% - 1538 ¥ 17 625,000,000 B A& 2

17 w%wmmmmhm$$¢kﬁ@
DA (D RER : 622) ZR%1D °

RZZEZTFMHAZ+MHA - AN EERA
IR SRENETE - B IR 2 REAR D &
SHENBELHEHE AARRBEITRA
BEBEZI0RAR - BEARSE A -
26,274,929 SRR 0 E R B A FFITHE ©

BT TF-ABE _T-NFEHRR
SH(COVID-19)) A% » 2B HHE
B #ECOVID-19 T8 B R IE Hll FE i o R F
S HIR LA COVID-19F 18 2 B R I (E1E
EN KEREE —SE(AESHASE
BB EERKRTE  EBREZSVE
Wk AR REMATTHEE - AEE K
ERECOVID-19Z B FEBEEITH)
BRBERDH RSB AR RLEZE
IBFTIER B2 o

MEBRRECHEETR_T_FTFH
Z R BHE R IR AETIE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBEHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—-HILEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
NSRS N\ D E—NE B BF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FET FHET
RESULTS E3
Revenue 25 200,275 194,364 165,869 176,518 192,445
(Loss) profit before taxation  EEi AT (E518) @ A (11,983) 920 (15,925) (6,610) 67,427
Tax credit (charge) HEE R (T H) 738 (613) 3,399 153 4,190
(Loss) profit for the year ERX(ER) %A (11,245) 307 (12,526) (6,457) 71,617
Attributable to: FELE -
Owners of the Company ZiN/NCIE 2= N (11,240) 300 (12,528) (6,452) 71,624
Non-controlling interests JEPRRRRE =S (5) 7 2 (5) (7)
(11,245) 307 (12,526) (6,457) 71,617
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
—F-F T +F —FT-N\F —_FT-NEF —2-BF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FATT FATT FET FAET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEERERE
Total assets BEBE 390,785 462,037 634,286 1,080,314 = 1,498,028
Total liabilities BERE (146,944) (217,889) (281,294) (313,553) = (509,475)
243,841 244,148 BE209072, 766,761 988,553
Equity attributable to owners 7~ AI%EH A (G ER
of the Company 243,598 243,898 352,740 766,514 988,313
Non-controlling interests e 243 250 252 247 240
243,841 244,148 352,992 766,761 988,553
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Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited ® £ KBl 228 EE@MAR A7)

GLOSSARY
Sk

the articles of association of the Company

ARAPIEBERAR

board of Directors

B2

Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited (stock code:
1341)
SREFERREEBERAE (RMORE : 1341)

Coronavirus Disease 2019

—E-NEFEARER

Director(s) of the Company
KREIES

the Company and its subsidiaries

RAFNEWNE QR

Hao Tian Credit Company Limited, one of the subsidiaries of the Group
holding a money lenders license

EXREEBERAF  AREEFT-HHMBAR - ERFEHEAMRR

Hao Tian Development Group Limited (stock code 474), the controlling
shareholder of the Company
RREREEER LA (RORIE : 474) - NABEIERAR

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B3 PraE s L AR A

the last financial year of the Group ended 31 March 2019
AEEBEE-_ZE-NF=A=+—HLL - EMRFE

Securities and Futures Commission
BELMEEHEREZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
BREDIE 571 BB H K AERD

Share(s) in the capital of the Company
KR AIRRA A B AR 1D
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1e financial year of the Group ended 31 March 2020 under review
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